
TOWN OF MELBOURNE BEACH 

TOWN COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

AUGUST 18, 2021 

AGENDA PACKET 

1



2



Town of Melbourne Beach 
REGULAR TOWN COMMISSION MEETING 

AUGUST 18, 2021 at 6:00 p.m. 
COMMUNITY CENTER – 509 OCEAN AVENUE 

 

AGENDA 
PUBLIC NOTICE 

 
The Town Commission will conduct a Regular Town Commission Meeting 

on Wednesday August 18, 2021 in the Community Center 
to address the items below 

 
Commission Members: 
Mayor Wyatt Hoover 
Vice Mayor Joyce D. Barton        
Commissioner Steve Walters     
Commissioner Sherrie Quarrie 
Commissioner Corey Runte 
 
Staff Members: 
Town Manager Elizabeth Mascaro 
Town Clerk Jennifer Torres 
Town Attorney Clifford Repperger 

 
 
Notice: Commission discussion and possible action may occur during any Commissioner Meeting. The 
following sections of the Agenda are always subject to such discussion and possible action without further 
motion by the Commission: Changes to the Agenda, Public Hearings, Old Business, and New Business. 

The public is advised that members of the Town Commission may be in attendance and participate in 
proceedings of the board. Attorney General Opinions (AGO) AGO 91-95, AGO 98-14, AGO 2000-68. 

PURSUANT TO SECTION 286.0105, FLORIDA STATUTES, THE TOWN HEREBY ADVISES THE PUBLIC 
THAT: In order to appeal any decision made at this meeting, you will need a verbatim transcript of the 
proceedings. It will be your responsibility to ensure such a record is made. Such person must provide a 
method for recording the proceedings verbatim as the Town does not do so. 

In accordance with the Americans with Disability Act and Section 286.26, Florida Statutes, persons needing 
special accommodations for this meeting shall, at least 5 days prior to the meeting, contact the Office of the 
Town Clerk at (321) 724-5860 or Florida Relay System at 711. 

 

 

 

3



1. Call to Order

2. Roll Call

3. Pledge of Allegiance and Moment of Silence

4. Presentations

A. Presentation of Citizen of the Year
B. Fire Department Promotional Ceremony

5. Boards and Committees

6. Public Comments

After being acknowledged by the Mayor, members of the public should state their
name and address for the record. The Commission encourages citizens to prepare
their comments in advance. Each individual will have three (3) minutes to address
the Commission on any topic(s) related to Town business not on the Agenda.

7. Approval of the Agenda

8. Consent Agenda

A. Approval of the July 7, 2021 TCW Draft Minutes – Town Clerk Torres
B. Approval of the July 21, 2021 RTCM Draft Minutes – Town Clerk Torres
C. Site Plan Approval for 902 Oak Street

9. Public Hearings

A. Second Reading of Ordinance 2021-03 Related to Removing any Potential
Prohibition or Limit of the Sale, Purchase, Transfer, Distribution, Display,
Possession, or Exchange of any Weapon During a Civil Emergency – Town
Attorney Repperger

10. Old Business

A. Review Budget Changes – Town Manager Mascaro
B. Consideration of Town Parking Stickers for Non-Residents - Town

Manager Mascaro

11. New Business

A. Confirm Qualified Candidates and Nominate to The Town Commission –
Town Clerk Torres

B. Research Painting of Crosswalks – Mayor Hoover
C. Discussion of Town Leadership - Commissioner Walters

4



D. Contract Renewal for James Moore & Co., P.L. – Town Manager Mascaro  
E. Consideration of Parks Board Schedule of Events & Logo - Town Manager 

Mascaro  
F. Consideration of request from Planning & Zoning Board to Research Code 

Changes – Town Manager Mascaro  
G. Appointment of Conflict Legal Counsel for Code Enforcement Case 2020-CE-

198 – Town Attorney Repperger  
H. Resolution 2021-05 – Budget Amendment – Finance Manager Kerr 
I. Resolution 2021-06 – Addition of Application Amendment Fee to the Town of 

Melbourne Beach Fee Schedule – Town Clerk Torres 
J. Proposed Updates to Town of Melbourne Beach Code of Ordinances as it 

pertains to Fire Protection – Fire Chief Brown 
K. Consideration of contracting a landscaping company – Public Works Director 

Davis  
 

12. Staff Reports  
A. Town Attorney Report 
B. Town Manager Report  
C. Town Clerk Report  
D. Departmental Reports 

1. Building Department  
2. Public Works Department  
3. Code Enforcement  
4. Police Department  
5. Fire Department  
6. Finance Department  

 
13.    Town Commission Comments   

A. General Comments 
B. Review of Commission Action List  

 
14.   Adjournment 

5



6



Town Commission Agenda Item 
Section: Presentations 

Meeting Date: August 18, 2021 

Subject: Citizen of the Year Award 

Submitted By: Town Clerk Torres 

Background Information:  

Announcement of the Annual Town of Melbourne Beach Citizen of the Year 

Recommendation: 

To be announced at the August 18, 2021 RTCM 

. 

Attachments:  

• None

7



Town Commission Agenda Item    
Section: Presentations 

Meeting Date: August 18, 2021 

Subject:  Fire Department Promotional Ceremony  

Submitted By:  

Background Information:  

Fire Chief Gavin Brown will present Fire 1 Firefighter status to a new class during this Fire 
Department Promotional Ceremony. 

. 

Attachments:   

• None  
 
 

8



Town Commission Agenda Item    
Section: Consent Agenda 

Meeting Date:  August 18, 2021  

Subject: July Draft Commission Minutes   

Submitted By: Town Clerk Torres 

Background Information:  

• Approval of the July 7, 2021 TCW Draft Minutes 
• Approval of the July 21, 2021 RTCM Draft Minutes  
• Site Plan Approval for 902 Oak Street (approved by the Planning & Zoning Board 

during their August 3, 2021 Meeting. 

Recommendation: 

Approve July Draft Commission Minutes 

. 

Attachments:   

• July 7, 2021 TCW Draft Minutes 
• July 21, 2021 RTCM Draft Minutes  
• Site Plan for 902 Oak Street.  

 
 
 

9



10



11



12



13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



Town Commission Agenda Item    
Section: Public Hearings 

Meeting Date: August 18, 2021 

Subject: Consider the following proposed Ordinance amending Section 16-3 of the  
  Code of the Town of Melbourne Beach:   

Submitted By: Town Attorney Repperger  

Background Information:  

Second Reading of Ordinance 2021-03, Related to Removing any Potential Prohibition 
or Limit of the Sale, Purchase, Transfer, Distribution, Display, Possession, or Exchange 
of any Weapon During a Civil Emergency – 

Recommendation: 

Approve Ordinance 2021-03 on Second Reading 

Attachments:   

• Draft Ordinance 2021-03 
 
 

53



   ORDINANCE NO. 2021-03 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN OF MELBOURNE 
BEACH, BREVARD COUNTY, FLORIDA, AMENDING 
SECTION 16-3, CODE OF THE TOWN OF MELBOURNE 
BEACH REGARDING EMERGENCY POWERS AND 
MEASURES BY REMOVING ANY POTENTIAL 
PROHIBITION OR LIMIT OF THE SALE, PURCHASE, 
TRANSFER, DISTRIBUTION, DISPLAY, POSSESSION, OR 
EXCHANGE OF ANY WEAPON DURING A CIVIL 
EMERGENCY; PROVIDING A SERVERABILITY/ 
INTERPRETATION CLAUSE; PROVIDING FOR 
CODIFICATION AND RENUMBERING; PROVIDING FOR 
REPEAL OF CONFLICTING ORDINANCES AND 
RESOLUTIONS; PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE; 
AND PROVIDING AN ADOPTION SCHEDULE. 

 
WHEREAS, Chapter 16, Code of the Town of Melbourne Beach, governs civil emergencies 

within the Town of Melbourne Beach; and, 

WHEREAS, Section 16-3, Code of the Town of Melbourne Beach, defines “Emergency 

Powers and Measures” during a declared local civil emergency within the Town of Melbourne 

Beach; and, 

  WHEREAS, Section 16-3 (j), Code of the Town of Melbourne Beach currently allows for 

the potential prohibition or limit on the sale, purchase, transfer, distribution, display, possession, 

or exchange of any weapon during a declared local civil emergency within the Town of Melbourne 

Beach; and,  

WHEREAS, Fla. Stat. Sec. 790.33 (1), provides that the whole field of regulation of firearms 

and ammunition is preempted to the State of Florida Legislature; and, 

WHEREAS,  Chapter 2021-15, Laws of Florida, effective July 1, 2021, further strengthens 

the preemption of the whole field of regulation of firearms and ammunition to the State of Florida 

Legislature; and,  

54



WHEREAS,  the Town Commission of the Town of Melbourne Beach desires to ensure that 

its Code is consistent with the preemption of the whole field of regulation of firearms and 

ammunition to the State of Florida Legislature; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ENACTED BY THE TOWN OF MELBOURNE 

BEACH, FLORIDA: 

SECTION 1.  That Section 16-3,  Code of the Town of Melbourne Beach, Florida, is hereby 

amended to read as follows:  

§16-3. EMERGENCY POWERS AND MEASURES . 

Whenever a civil emergency is declared pursuant to § 16-2, the written instrument of the 
Mayor, Vice- Mayor, or Chief of Police shall set forth the nature of the civil emergency, any lawful 
measures deemed necessary to preserve and protect the public health, safety, and welfare, and the 
duration said measures shall remain in effect.  Any measure promulgated under this section shall 
have the force and effect of law.  Such measures shall only be effective during the state of civil 
emergency.  Such measures may include, but are not limited to, the following: 

(a)   Establish curfews, including, but not limited to, the prohibition of or restrictions on 
pedestrian and vehicular movement, standing and parking, except for the provisions of designated 
essential services, such as fire, police, emergency medical services (including the transportation 
of patients and emergency calls by physicians or other approved medical personnel), and public 
works services (including utility emergency repairs). 

    (b)   Utilize all available resources of the town government as reasonably necessary to cope 
with the civil emergency, including emergency expenditures.  However, in the case of a declaration 
of civil emergency by the Mayor, Vice-Mayor, or Chief of Police, such emergency expenditure 
shall not exceed $50,000.00. 

(c)   Declare certain areas of the city off limits and closed to all nonessential personnel. 

(d)   Make provisions for the availability and use of temporary emergency housing and the 
emergency warehousing of materials. 

  (e)   Establish an emergency operating center and employee shelter in addition to or in 
place of those provided for in the Brevard County’s emergency plan. 

    (f)   Establish price controls pursuant to § 16-5. 

   (g)   Confiscate merchandise, equipment, vehicles, or property needed to alleviate the 
emergency.  Reimbursement shall be within 60 days and at customary value charged for the items 
during the 90 days previous to the emergency. 

  (h)   In cooperation with Brevard County emergency management and on behalf of the 

55



town, call on the National Guard or the Army, Coast Guard or other law enforcement divisions as 
necessary to assist in the mitigation of the emergency or to help maintain law and order, rescue 
and traffic control. 

    (i)   Activate the statewide mutual-aid system. 

   (j)   Prohibit or limit the sale, purchase, transfer, distribution, display, possession, or 
exchange of any weapon; except that this provision shall not apply to duly authorized law 
enforcement officials acting in an official capacity. 

(kj)   Prohibit or limit the sale, purchase, transfer, distribution, display, possession, 
exchange of any alcoholic beverage, flammable liquid, explosive substance or hazardous material 
or substance. 

(lk)   Prohibit or limit any person or persons from assembling in public places. 

(ml)   Prohibit or limit the public’s use of public facilities including but not limited to, 
parks, government buildings, rights-of-way, and beaches. 

 SECTION 2.  Severability/Interpretation Clause.   

(a)  In the event that any term, provision, clause, sentence or section of this 

Ordinance shall be held by a court of competent jurisdiction to be partially or wholly unenforceable 

or invalid for any reason whatsoever, any such invalidity, illegality, or unenforceability shall not 

affect any of the other or remaining terms, provisions, clauses, sentences, or sections of this 

Ordinance, and this Ordinance shall be read and/or applied as if the invalid, illegal, or 

unenforceable term, provision, clause, sentence, or section did not exist. 

(b)  In interpreting the provisions of this Ordinance, the following rules and 

symbols shall apply: 

(1)  Words underlined are additions to existing text. 

(2)  Words stricken through are deletions from existing text. 

(3)  Asterisks (* * *) indicates a deletion from the Ordinance of text existing 

in the Code of Ordinances.  It is intended that the text in the Code of Ordinance denoted by the 

asterisks and not set forth in this Ordinance shall remain unchanged from the language existing 

prior to adoption of this Ordinance. 

56



 SECTION 3.  Codification and Renumbering. The provisions of this Ordinance shall be 

codified as, and become and be made a part of, the Town of Melbourne Beach Code of Ordinances. 

The sections of this Ordinance may be renumbered or re-lettered to accomplish such intention. 

 SECTION 4.  Ordinances and Resolutions in Conflict.  All ordinances or resolutions or 

parts thereof that may be determined to be in conflict herewith are hereby repealed. 

 SECTION 5.  Effective Date.  This Ordinance shall become effective upon adoption.  
 

 SECTION 6.  Adoption Schedule.  

 PASSED by the Town Commission of the Town of Melbourne Beach on first reading on 

the 21st day of July, 2021, and ADOPTED by the Town Commission of the Town of Melbourne 

Beach, Florida, on final reading on the 18th day of August, 2021. 

 
 
TOWN OF MELBOURNE BEACH, FLORIDA 

 
 

By:____________________________ 
        WYATT HOOVER, Mayor 

 
ATTEST: 
      (TOWN SEAL) 
_______________________ 
Jennifer Torres,  
Town Clerk 

57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



67



68



Town Commission Agenda Item    
Section:  Old Business 

Meeting Date: August 18, 2021 

Subject:  Town Parking Stickers for Non-Residents 

 Submitted By: Elizabeth Mascaro, Town Manager 

 

Background:  Town Hall has been contacted each month by non-residents requesting 
the Town issue parking stickers to non-residents. The parking stickers would be valid for 
Ryckman Park and the beach crossovers only.  There have been 1795 units purchased 
at the crossovers since March compared to 7079 in Ocean Park and 5326 unit in 
Ryckman Park 

 

Recommendation: Discuss the possibility of issuing a limited number of passes for 
non-residents, to be renewed yearly.  The cost of a pass was suggested at $100.00 and 
would not be prorated. 

 

Attachments: None  

 

 
 

69



70



Town Commission Agenda Item    
Section: New Business 

Meeting Date: August 18, 2021 

Subject:  Confirm Qualified Candidates and Nominate to the Town Commission  
   

Submitted By: Town Clerk Torres 

Background Information:  

The qualifying period for candidates in the November 2, 2021 Election for two Town Of 
Melbourne Beach Commission Seats began at Noon on Monday, August 9, 2021 and 
ended at Noon on Friday, August 13, 2021. During that time, two candidates qualified;  

- Sherri Quarrie 
- Marivi Walker 

Recommendation: 

As uncontested candidates, following their confirmation as qualified by the Town 
Commission, nominate Sherrie Quarrie and Marivi Walker to the Town of Melbourne 
Beach Commission, with each serving as Commissioner-at-large for a three (3) year 
term to be sworn in after November 2, 2021.  

. 

Attachments:   

• Sherrie Quarrie Candidate File 
• Marivi Walker Candidate File 

 
 

71



72



73



74



75



76



77



78



79



80



81



82



83



84



85



86



87



88



89



90



91



92



93



94



95



96



97



98



99



100



101



102



103



104



Town Commission Agenda Item    
Section: New Business  

Meeting Date: August 18, 2021 

Subject: Research Painting of Crosswalks   

Submitted By: Mayor Hoover 

Background Information:  

Recommendation:  

1. Approve start of research on painting of negative spaces inside Town 
crosswalks, see attached materials for examples.  Reach out to SPAR council 
and Brevard arts community (EGAD, Brevard Cultural Alliance) for 
recommendations on professional artists & materials for project.  Following 
research on cost, artists, and design options the Town Manager will bring this 
back as an agenda item for our consideration and a vote for approval. 

2. Pressure clean and refinish existing crosswalks that have pavers (along west 
Ocean Ave), to begin immediately. 

3. Paint crosswalks in all locations where a sidewalk intersects with an town street, 
to begin immediately.  These locations include, but are not limited to: 

a. North A1A at Magnolia, Colony, Acacia, Sunset, Ave B (both sides), Ave A 
(both sides) 

b. Riverside at Poinsettia, Harland, Riverside Cr, Sunset, Ave B, Ave A 

c. South A1A at 1st, 2nd, 3rd, 4th, 5th, 6th, Surf, Cherry 

d. Oak St at 1st, 2nd, 3rd, 4th, 5th, 6th, Surf, Orange, Cherry 

 

Attachments: 

• Six (6) Photos 

105



106



107



108



109



110



111



112



Town Commission Agenda Item    
Section: New Business 

Meeting Date: August 18, 2021  

Subject: Discussion of Town leadership (Town Manager)   

Submitted By: Commissioner Walters 

Background Information:  

The Town finance clerk was hired as Town Manager on or about March 12, 2019. in 
violation of written Town Commission hiring policies.  There are minimum requirements 
for the job which she did not meet.   Since that time there have several incidents 
involving violations of State Law to include but not limited to allowing a police employee 
to install town property in his personal vehicle which he then used on police patrol 
daily.  This exposed the Town to massive liability.   The Town manager authorized the 
Town Attorney to write two Ordinances and an agreement for a private citizen (Frank 
Kofflin 500 First avenue.) at a cost that exceeds $3500.00.  The Town Manager, in 
violation of state law, polled the majority Town Commissioners privately and then 
authorized and paid a non-budgeted contract in reference to the police chief 
investigation into assaulting a subordinate officer.  
 
The Town has lost about half of the Town employees to date due to terminations and 
resignations, most forced.   
 
The Town Manager has refused/failed to provide me with public records I requested 
(see email requesting the billing she said on May19, 2021 was sent to Mr. Kofflin) 
 
The Town Manager has failed to respond to my questions sent via email. 
 
The Town Manager has failed to manage the police department and Town 
staff resulting in numerous terminations or resignations of professional police officers 
and town employees with years of experience and excellent evaluations.   Walton Ray, 
Nancy Wilson, Fitzgerald, Vila, Teliso, Ftzgerald, Eply, and several others.  
 
The Town manager failed to follow direction of the Town Commission to write DOT and 
request a traffic light change.    
 
The Town Manager failed to properly supervise the previous Town code officer resulting 
in fiasco with over size boats and trailers where a resident in clear violation was sent a 
letter saying he was not in violation  
 
The Town Manager has allow continued strife in the police department.  One officer who 
is not sick being encouraged to take his sick time and retire early using sick time.  This 
is in direct violation of town policy. Another being written for contacting his Union Rep 

113



(Lawyer). Note: nothing in the police policies requires him to contact the police chief 
first unless he chooses to do so.  To say he can't talk to his Union representative over a 
police policy issue before talking with the police chief is a violation of his rights.  Period 
 

Recommendation: 

To be discussed at meeting. 

.Attachments:   

• Frank Kofflin Billing – Not Found 
 
• Officer Dovale  complaint   

 
• Officer Smith's write up (discussion)  

 
• My email to Town Manager requesting the Frank Kofflin's billing  

 
• My email to the Town Clerk requesting Frank Kofflin billing. 

 
• Contract for investigation of police chief  (non-budgeted, violation of State law.)  

• Officer Fitzgerald complaint 
 
• Officer Telsio complaint  

 
• Officer Vila response to his resigning.  

 
• Lt.  Eply resignation and response  

 
 
 

114



115



116



117



118



119



120



121



122



123



124



125



126



127



128



129



130



131



132



133



134



135



136



137



138



From: Melbourne Beach Town Manager
To: Steve Walters; Melbourne Beach Town Clerk
Subject: RE: BILLING 500 FIRST AVENUE FOR ZONING CHANGE COSTS
Date: Friday, June 25, 2021 9:38:59 AM
Attachments: image002.jpg

Steve,
I have not been able to locate a copy of the invoice sent from the finance office. When a copy is
located, it will be sent to you. I don’t expect the finance manager to return until the end of July.
Regards

Elizabeth Mascaro
Town Manager
townmanager@melbournebeachfl.org
507 Ocean Ave., Melbourne Beach, FL 32951-2523
(321) 724-5860 Fax (321) 984-8994
www.melbournebeachfl.org

logo-sm

Brevard County’s Oldest Beach Community – Established 1883
Under Florida law, e-mail addresses are public records. If you do not want your e-mail address released in response to a public-records request, do not
send electronic mail to this entity. Instead, contact this office by phone or in writing.
CONFIDENTIALITY NOTICE: This electronic transmission, including any attachments, may contain confidential information that is legally privileged and
exempt from disclosure. The information is intended only for the use of the individual or entity named above. If the reader of this message is not the
intended recipient or any employee/agent responsible for delivering the message to that recipient, you are hereby notified that any disclosure,
dissemination, copying, distribution or the taking of any action in reliance on the contents of this confidential information is strictly prohibited. If you have
received this communication in error, please destroy it and immediately notify me at townmanager@melbournebeachfl.org or (321) 724-5860.

From: Steve Walters 
Sent: Friday, June 25, 2021 9:21 AM
To: Melbourne Beach Town Clerk 
Cc: Melbourne Beach Town Manager 
Subject: BILLING 500 FIRST AVENUE FOR ZONING CHANGE COSTS
Good morning
I am still waiting for the requested public records requested 10 days ago. The Town Manager
advised me in our public meeting that he was billed for the cost of this zoning change request.
If you can not produce the billing documents. Please advise me as to "why" you can not as
stipulated
in the public records law.
Thank you
SW

139

mailto:townmanager@melbournebeachfl.org
mailto:swalters@melbournebeachfl.org
mailto:townclerk@melbournebeachfl.org
mailto:townmanager@melbournebeachfl.org



From: Steve Walters
To: Melbourne Beach Town Manager
Cc: Wyatt Hoover; Joyce Barton; Sherri Quarrie; Corey Runte; Melbourne Beach Town Clerk
Subject: Re: BILLING FRANK KOFFLIN, 500 FIRST AVENUE FOR ZONING CHANGE ATTORNEY COSTS
Date: Friday, June 25, 2021 10:57:07 AM

Good morning Elizabeth

(Town Commssioners please do not respond to me to preserve sunshine law)

Why would our finance manager be off for more than a month? Why would it matter as it
relates to a public record? Can't you give her a call and ask her? 

You are a Town Manager who was employed as the Finance Clerk then Finance Manager for a
few years and taught the finance job to our current finance manager who had no experience
(see Town audits) and you should know how to retrieve a billing. I will try to contact Mr.
Kofflin to see if he received a billing and l will place this entire issue on the next regular
meeting agenda. I think it a shame that residents and elected Town Commissioners have to
wait for over a month to receive a "financial public record" when the law clearly says
differently.

You know that I also challenged that the taxpayers paid more than $3500 in legal and other
services to a private citizen on his personal request to change zoning. Is that even legal? He
should have hired his own attorney. You and the Town Attorney told me the 500 first avenue
owner would be billed for the excess costs even though you forgot to add that specific cost to
the Towns current resolutions/ordinances. (we finally did at the last regular meeting) 

As a reminder that was after several costly ordinances sent to us by the Town Planning and
Zoning board when the Town commission had no interest or knowledge were rejected. Those
P&Z proposed ordinances weren't authorized by the Town Commission. That resulted in
wasting thousands of taxpayer dollars and the Town Commission telling you then NO more
Ordinances without Town Commission approval.

How this mistake ever happened is beyond my comprehension. Paying for a private citizen's
legal fees via two Ordinances and a written agreement was wrong in my opinion and the
taxpayers need to be reimbursed.

Regards

Commissioner Walters

140

mailto:swalters@melbournebeachfl.org
mailto:townmanager@melbournebeachfl.org
mailto:whoover@melbournebeachfl.org
mailto:jbarton@melbournebeachfl.org
mailto:squarrie@melbournebeachfl.org
mailto:crunte@melbournebeachfl.org
mailto:townclerk@melbournebeachfl.org


From: Steve Walters
To: Melbourne Beach Town Clerk
Subject: Records: Billing of owner 500 first avenue
Date: Sunday, June 13, 2021 11:08:30 AM

Good morning 

Please provide me a copy of the billing to the owner of 500 First avenue. That billing would be
to cover extensive extra costs, to include attorney fees,  for his failed attempt to change our
zoning laws so he could build a 4 plex apartment unit in a single family residential zone. 

Also include a copy of his payment of that billing. 

Thanks

141

mailto:swalters@melbournebeachfl.org
mailto:townclerk@melbournebeachfl.org


142



143



144



145



146



147



148



149



150



151



152



153



154



Town Commission Workshop    
 

Section:   New Business  

Meeting Date:  August 18, 2021  

Subject:  Contract Renewal for James Moore & Co., P.L. 

Submitted By:  Elizabeth Mascaro, Town Manager 

 

Background Information:  James Moore & Co., P.L. has performed the annual financial 
audit for the Town of Melbourne Beach since FY2016.  This will be the third (3rd) contract 
renewal for James Moore.  Under Florida State Statue (218.391) the GFOA’s Best 
Practice recommends governmental agencies enter into multiyear agreements of at least 
5 years in duration when obtaining the services of an independent auditor. The law does 
not prescribe a maximum term for an audit service contract or a maximum number of 
renewal periods.  Our current contract (October 3, 2018) which provides audit services 
through Fiscal Year 2020 indicates renewal periods of up to two additional three-year 
periods. (Page 8, paragraph 3) in keeping with Florida State Statue section 218.391-7(c), 
8. 

The fee for FY21 would be the same as FY20.  Thereafter a 2% increase is proposed. 

  

Recommendation: Based upon James Moore commitment to providing the Town of 
Melbourne Beach thorough, professional and timely service, I would recommend approval of the 
new contract. 
 
 
Attachments: 

• Contract from 10/3/2018 
• Current Contract for review 
• Florida Statues 218.391  

155



 

 

  October 3, 2018 

To the Honorable Mayor and Town Commission Members, 
  Town of Melbourne Beach, Florida 
507 Ocean Ave. 
Melbourne Beach, FL 32951 

You have requested that we audit the financial statements of the governmental activities, each major fund, 
and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Town of Melbourne Beach, Florida (the Town), as 
of September 30, 2019 and 2020, and for the years then ended, and the related notes to the financial 
statements, which collectively comprise the Town’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of 
contents.  

In addition, we will audit the Town’s compliance over major federal award programs and major state 
projects for the year(s) ended September 30, 2019 and 2020, as applicable. We are pleased to confirm our 
acceptance and our understanding of this audit engagement by means of this letter. Our audits will be 
conducted with the objectives of our expressing an opinion on each opinion unit and an opinion on 
compliance regarding the Town’s major federal award programs and major state projects. 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, (U.S. GAAP,) as promulgated 
by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) require that supplementary information, such 
as management's discussion and analysis (MD&A) or budgetary comparison information, be presented to 
supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial 
statements, is required by the GASB, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for 
placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. As 
part of our engagement, we will apply certain limited procedures to the required supplementary 
information (RSI) in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America (U.S. GAAS). These limited procedures will consist primarily of inquiries of management 
regarding their methods of measurement and presentation, and comparing the information for consistency 
with management’s responses to our inquiries. We will not express an opinion or provide any form of 
assurance on the RSI. The following RSI is required by U.S. GAAP. This RSI will be subjected to certain 
limited procedures but will not be audited: 

1. Management’s Discussion and Analysis. 

2. Pension and OPEB required schedules. 

Supplementary information other than RSI will accompany the Town’s basic financial statements. We 
will subject the following supplementary information to the auditing procedures applied in our audit of 
the basic financial statements and perform certain additional procedures, including comparing and 
reconciling the supplementary information to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare 
the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and additional procedures in 
accordance with U.S. GAAS. We intend to provide an opinion on whether the following supplementary 
information is presented fairly in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements as a 
whole: 

1. Schedule of expenditures of federal awards and state financial assistance. 

156



To the Honorable Mayor and Town Commission Members, 
  Town of Melbourne Beach, Florida 
October 3, 2018 
Page 2 

 

2. Combining and individual fund statements and schedules 

Data Collection Form 

Prior to the completion of our engagement, if applicable, we will complete the sections of the Data 
Collection Form that are our responsibility. The form will summarize our audit findings, amounts and 
conclusions. It is management’s responsibility to submit a reporting package including financial 
statements, schedule of expenditure of federal awards, summary schedule of prior audit findings and 
corrective action plan along with the Data Collection Form to the federal audit clearinghouse. The 
financial reporting package must be text searchable, unencrypted, and unlocked. Otherwise, the reporting 
package will not be accepted by the federal audit clearinghouse. We will assist you in the electronic 
submission and certification. You may request from us copies of our report for you to include with the 
reporting package submitted to pass-through entities.  

The Data Collection Form is required to be submitted within the earlier of 30 days after receipt of our 
auditors’ reports or nine months after the end of the audit period, unless specifically waived by a federal 
cognizant or oversight agency for audits. Data Collection Forms submitted untimely are one of the factors 
in assessing programs at a higher risk. 

Audit of the Financial Statements 

We will conduct our audit in accordance with U.S. GAAS and the standards applicable to financial audits 
contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States of 
America; the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform 
Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform 
Guidance), Section 215.97, Florida Statutes, Florida Single Audit Act, and the provisions of Chapter 
10.550, Rules of the State of Florida, Office of the Auditor General. Those standards and the Uniform 
Guidance require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the 
basic financial statements are free from material misstatement. An audit involves performing procedures 
to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures 
selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement 
of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, misappropriation of assets, or violations of laws, 
governmental regulations, grant agreements, or contractual agreements. An audit also includes evaluating 
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates 
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. If 
appropriate, our procedures will therefore include tests of documentary evidence that support the 
transactions recorded in the accounts, tests of the physical existence of inventories, and direct 
confirmation of cash, investments, and certain other assets and liabilities by correspondence with 
creditors and financial institutions. As part of our audit process, we will request written representations 
from your attorneys, and they may bill you for responding. At the conclusion of our audit, we will also 
request certain written representations from you about the financial statements and related matters. 

Because of the inherent limitations of an audit, together with the inherent limitations of internal control, 
an unavoidable risk that some material misstatements or noncompliance (whether caused by errors, 
fraudulent financial reporting, misappropriation of assets, or violations of laws or governmental 
regulations) may not be detected exists, even though the audit is properly planned and performed in 
accordance with U.S. GAAS; Government Auditing Standards of the Comptroller General of the United 
States of America; Section 215.97, Florida Statutes, Florida Single Audit Act; the provisions of Chapter 
10.550, Rules of the State of Florida, Office of the Auditor General and will include tests of accounting 
records, a determination of major state project(s) in accordance with Chapter 10.550, Rules of the State of 
Florida, Office of the Auditor General and other procedures we consider necessary to enable us to express 

157



To the Honorable Mayor and Town Commission Members, 
  Town of Melbourne Beach, Florida 
October 3, 2018 
Page 3 

 

such opinions and to render the required reports. Please note that the determination of abuse is subjective 
and Government Auditing Standards does not require auditors to detect abuse. 

In making our risk assessments, we consider internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair 
presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s 
internal control. However, we will communicate to you in writing concerning any significant deficiencies 
or material weaknesses in internal control relevant to the audit of the financial statements that we have 
identified during the audit. Our responsibility as auditors is, of course, limited to the period covered by 
our audit and does not extend to any other periods. 

We cannot provide assurance that unmodified opinions will be expressed. Circumstances may arise in 
which it is necessary for us to modify our opinions or add emphasis-of-matter or other-matter paragraphs. 
If our opinions on the basic financial statements are other than unmodified, we will discuss the reasons 
with you in advance. If, for any reason, we are unable to complete the audit or are unable to form or have 
not formed opinions, we may decline to express opinions or to issue a report as a result of this 
engagement.  

We will issue a written report upon completion of our audit of the Town’s basic financial statements. Our 
report will be addressed to the governing body of the Town. We cannot provide assurance that 
unmodified opinions will be expressed. Circumstances may arise in which it is necessary for us to modify 
our opinions, add an emphasis-of-matter or other-matter paragraph(s), or withdraw from the engagement. 

In accordance with the requirements of Government Auditing Standards, we will also issue a written 
report describing the scope of our testing over internal control over financial reporting and over 
compliance with laws, regulations, and provisions of grants and contracts, including the results of that 
testing. However, providing an opinion on internal control and compliance over financial reporting will 
not be an objective of the audit and, therefore, no such opinion will be expressed. 

We also will issue a written report as required by Chapter 10.550, Rules of the State of Florida, Office of 
the Auditor General upon completion of our audit.  

Audit of Major Program/Project Compliance 

If applicable, our audit of the Town’s major federal award program(s) and state project(s) compliance will 
be conducted, in accordance with the requirements of the Single Audit Act, as amended; the Uniform 
Guidance; and Chapter 10.550, Rules of the State of Florida, Office of the Auditor General; and will 
include tests of accounting records, a determination of major programs/projects in accordance with the 
Uniform Guidance, Chapter 10.550, Rules of the State of Florida, Office of the Auditor General, and 
other procedures we consider necessary to enable us to express such an opinion on major federal award 
program and major state project compliance and to render the required reports. We cannot provide 
assurance that an unmodified opinion on compliance will be expressed. Circumstances may arise in which 
it is necessary for us to modify our opinion or withdraw from the engagement. 

The Uniform Guidance requires that we also plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance 
about whether the entity has complied with applicable laws and regulations and the provisions of 
contracts and grant agreements applicable to major federal award programs. Our procedures will consist 
of determining major federal programs and performing the applicable procedures described in the U.S. 
Office of Management and Budget OMB Compliance Supplement for the types of compliance 
requirements that could have a direct and material effect on each of the entity’s major programs. The 
purpose of those procedures will be to express an opinion on the entity’s compliance with requirements 

158



To the Honorable Mayor and Town Commission Members, 
  Town of Melbourne Beach, Florida 
October 3, 2018 
Page 4 

 

applicable to each of its major programs in our report on compliance issued pursuant to the Uniform 
Guidance. 

Also, as required by the Uniform Guidance, we will perform tests of controls to evaluate the effectiveness 
of the design and operation of controls that we consider relevant to preventing or detecting material 
noncompliance with compliance requirements applicable to each of the entity’s major federal award 
programs. However, our tests will be less in scope than would be necessary to render an opinion on these 
controls and, accordingly, no opinion will be expressed in our report.  

Chapter 10.550, Rules of the State of Florida, Office of the Auditor General requires that we also plan and 
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the auditee has complied with applicable 
laws and regulations and the provisions of contracts and grant agreements applicable to major state 
projects. Our procedures will consist of tests of transactions and other applicable procedures described in 
the State of Florida State Projects Compliance Supplement for the types of compliance requirements that 
could have a direct and material effect on each of the Organization’s major state projects. The purpose of 
these procedures will be to express an opinion on the Town’s compliance with requirements applicable to 
each of its major state projects in our report on compliance issued pursuant to Chapter 10.550, Rules of 
the State of Florida, Office of the Auditor General. 

Also, as required by Chapter 10.550, Rules of the State of Florida, Office of the Auditor General, we will 
perform tests of controls over compliance to evaluate the effectiveness of the design and operation of 
controls that we consider relevant to preventing or detecting material noncompliance with compliance 
requirements applicable to each major state project. However, our tests will be less in scope than would 
be necessary to render an opinion on those controls and, accordingly, no opinion will be expressed in our 
report on internal control issued pursuant to Chapter 10.550, Rules of the State of Florida, Office of the 
Auditor General. 

We will issue a report on compliance that will include an opinion or disclaimer of opinion regarding the 
entity’s major federal award programs and major state projects, and a report on internal controls over 
compliance that will report any significant deficiencies and material weaknesses identified; however, such 
report will not express an opinion on internal control. 

Management’s Responsibilities 

Our audit will be conducted on the basis that management acknowledge and understand that they have 
responsibility: 

1. For the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; 

2. For the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation 
and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due 
to fraud or error; 

3. For identifying, in its accounts, all federal awards received and state financial assistance 
expended during the period and the federal programs under which they were received, including 
federal awards and funding increments received prior to December 26, 2014 (if any), and those 
received in accordance with the Uniform Guidance (generally received after December 26, 2014); 

4. For maintaining records that adequately identify the source and application of funds for federally 
funded activities; 

5. For preparing the schedule of expenditures of federal awards and state financial assistance 
(including notes and noncash assistance received) in accordance with the Uniform Guidance and 
Chapter 10.550, Rules of the State of Florida, Office of the Auditor General requirements; 

159



To the Honorable Mayor and Town Commission Members, 
  Town of Melbourne Beach, Florida 
October 3, 2018 
Page 5 

 

6. For the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control over federal awards, state 
financial assistance, and compliance; 

7. For establishing and maintaining effective internal control over federal awards and state financial 
assistance that provides reasonable assurance that the nonfederal entity is managing federal 
awards and state projects in compliance with federal and state statutes, regulations, and the terms 
and conditions of the federal awards and state financial assistance; 

8. For identifying and ensuring that the entity complies with federal and state statutes, regulations, 
and the terms and conditions of federal award programs and state financial assistance projects and 
implementing systems designed to achieve compliance with applicable federal and state statutes, 
regulations, and the terms and conditions of federal award programs and state financial assistance 
projects;   

9. For disclosing accurately, currently, and completely the financial results of each federal award 
and major state project in accordance with the requirements of the award; 

10. For identifying and providing report copies of previous audits, attestation engagements, or other 
studies that directly relate to the objectives of the audit, including whether related 
recommendations have been implemented; 

11. For taking prompt action when instances of noncompliance are identified; 
12. For addressing the findings and recommendations of auditors, for establishing and maintaining a 

process to track the status of such findings and recommendations and taking corrective action on 
reported audit findings from prior periods and preparing a summary schedule of prior audit 
findings; 

13. For following up and taking corrective action on current year audit findings and preparing a 
corrective action plan for such findings; 

14. For submitting the reporting package and data collection form to the appropriate parties;  
15. For making the auditor aware of any significant contractor relationships where the contractor is 

responsible for program compliance; 
16. To provide us with: 

a. Access to all information of which management is aware that is relevant to the 
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements, and relevant to federal award 
programs and state financial assistance projects, such as records, documentation, and 
other matters; 

b. Additional information that we may request from management for the purpose of the 
audit; and 

c. Unrestricted access to persons within the entity from whom we determine it necessary to 
obtain audit evidence. 

17. For adjusting the financial statements to correct material misstatements and confirming to us in 
the management representation letter that the effects of any uncorrected misstatements aggregated 
by us during the current engagement and pertaining to the current year period(s) under audit are 
immaterial, both individually and in the aggregate, to the financial statements as a whole; 

18. For acceptance of nonattest services, including identifying the proper party to oversee nonattest 
work; 

19. For maintaining adequate records, selecting and applying accounting principles, and safeguarding 
assets;  

20. For informing us of any known or suspected fraud affecting the entity involving management, 
employees with significant role in internal control and others where fraud could have a material 
effect on compliance; 

21. For the accuracy and completeness of all information provided; 
22. For taking reasonable measures to safeguard protected personally identifiable and other sensitive 

information;  
23. For confirming your understanding of your responsibilities as defined in this letter to us in your 

management representation letter; and 

160



To the Honorable Mayor and Town Commission Members, 
  Town of Melbourne Beach, Florida 
October 3, 2018 
Page 6 

 

24. For identifying and ensuring that the entity complies with applicable laws, regulations, contracts, 
agreements, and grants. Additionally, as required by Uniform Guidance and Chapter 10.550, 
Rules of the State of Florida, Office of the Auditor General, it is management’s responsibility to 
follow up and take corrective action on reported audit findings and to prepare a summary 
schedule of prior audit findings and a corrective action plan. The summary schedule of prior audit 
findings should be available for our review at the commencement of fieldwork. 

With regard to the supplementary information referred to above, you acknowledge and understand your 
responsibility (a) for the preparation of the supplementary information in accordance with the applicable 
criteria, (b) to provide us with the appropriate written representations regarding supplementary 
information, (c) to include our report on the supplementary information in any document that contains the 
supplementary information and that indicates that we have reported on such supplementary information, 
and (d) to present the supplementary information with the audited financial statements, or if the 
supplementary information will not be presented with the audited financial statements, to make the 
audited financial statements readily available to the intended users of the supplementary information no 
later than the date of issuance by you of the supplementary information and our report thereon.  

As part of our audit process, we will request from management written confirmation concerning 
representations made to us in connection with the audit. 

Investment Attestation Engagement 

You have requested that we examine compliance with Section 218.415, Florida Statutes, Local 
Government Investment Policies of the City for the years ended September 30, 2019 and 2020. We are 
pleased to confirm our acceptance and our understanding of this examination engagement by means of 
this letter. Our examination will be conducted with the objective of expressing an opinion as to whether 
the City complied in all material respects with Section 218.415, Florida Statutes, Local Government 
Investment Policies. 

Practitioner Responsibilities 

We will conduct our examination in accordance with the attestation standards related to examinations of 
the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants. An examination-level attestation engagement 
involves performing procedures to obtain attest evidence about whether compliance with Section 
218.415, Florida Statutes, Local Government Investment Policies  is fairly presented, in all material 
respects, in conformity with Section 218.415, Florida Statutes, Local Government Investment Policies. 
The procedures selected depend on the practitioner’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of 
material misstatement or misrepresentation of the subject matter, whether due to fraud or error.  

Because of the inherent limitations of an examination, together with the inherent limitations of internal 
control, an unavoidable risk that some material misstatements or misrepresentations may not be detected 
exists, even though the examination is properly planned and performed in accordance with the attestation 
standards related to examinations of the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants. However, we 
will inform you of any material errors or fraud that comes to our attention, unless clearly inconsequential. 

Management Responsibilities 

Our examination will be conducted on the basis that management and, when appropriate, those charged 
with governance acknowledge and understand that they have responsibility: 

161



To the Honorable Mayor and Town Commission Members, 
  Town of Melbourne Beach, Florida 
October 3, 2018 
Page 7 

 

25. For the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to 
Section 218.415, Florida Statutes, Local Government Investment Policies, which is the best 
means of preventing or detecting errors or fraud; 

26. For selecting and determining the suitability and appropriateness of the criteria upon which the 
Section 218.415, Florida Statutes, Local Government Investment Policies will be evaluated; and 

27. To provide us with: 

a. Access to all information of which management is aware that is relevant to the 
Section 218.415, Florida Statutes, Local Government Investment Policies such as records, 
documentation, and other matters and that you are responsible for the accuracy and 
completeness of that information; 

b. Additional information that we may request from management for the purpose of the 
examination; and 

c. Unrestricted access to persons within the entity from whom we determine it necessary to 
obtain attest evidence. 

As part of our examination process, we will request from you written confirmation concerning 
representations made to us in connection with the examination.  

Reporting 

We will issue a written report upon completion of our examination of Section 218.415, Florida Statutes, 
Local Government Investment Policies. Our report will be addressed to the governing body. We cannot 
provide assurance that an unmodified opinion will be expressed. Circumstances may arise in which it is 
necessary for us to modify our opinion, add an emphasis-of-matter or other-matter paragraph(s), or 
withdraw from the engagement. 

Engagement Administration, Fees, and Other 

We understand that your employees will prepare all cash, accounts receivable, or other confirmations we 
request and will locate any documents or support for any other transactions we select for testing. 

During the course of the audit, we may observe opportunities for economy in, or improved controls over, 
your operations. We will bring such matters to the attention of the appropriate level of management, 
either orally or in writing.  

You agree to inform us of facts that may affect the financial statements of which you may become aware 
during the period from the date of the auditor’s report to the date the financial statements are issued. 

Zach Chalifour is the service leader for the audit services specified in this letter. His responsibilities 
include supervising the services performed as part of this engagement and signing or authorizing another 
qualified firm representative to sign the reports. 

Our fees for the audit of the financial statements, including expenses, for the years ending September 30, 
2019 and 2020, are as follows:  

Year Amount

2019 $ 21,900
2020 22,300

162



To the Honorable Mayor and Town Commission Members, 
  Town of Melbourne Beach, Florida 
October 3, 2018 
Page 8 

 

Should the Town be subject to a Federal and/or State Single Audit in any years under this engagement, an 
additional fee of $3,000 per major program tested shall apply to the respective year under audit. 

This engagement may be terminated by either party with 60 days' notice.  

This engagement may be renewed at the option of both parties for up to two additional three-year periods. 
Any renewals will be evidenced by a new engagement letter. 

At the conclusion of our audit engagement, we will communicate to those charged with governance the 
following significant findings from the audit: 

 Our view about the qualitative aspects of the entity’s significant accounting practices; 
 Significant difficulties, if any, encountered during the audit; 
 Uncorrected misstatements, other than those we believe are trivial, if any; 
 Disagreements with management, if any; 
 Other findings or issues, if any, arising from the audit that are, in our professional judgment, 

significant and relevant to those charged with governance regarding their oversight of the 
financial reporting process;  

 Material, corrected misstatements that were brought to the attention of management as a result of 
our audit procedures; 

 Representations we requested from management; 
 Management’s consultations with other accountants, if any; and 
 Significant issues, if any, arising from the audit that were discussed, or the subject of 

correspondence, with management. 

In accordance with the requirements of Government Auditing Standards, we have attached a copy of our 
latest external peer review report of our firm for your consideration and files. 

We will perform the following nonattest services: preparation of financial statements, other schedules, 
and related notes; preparation of data collection form (if applicable). With respect to any nonattest 
services we perform, the Town’s management is responsible for (a) making all management decisions and 
performing all management functions; (b) assigning a competent individual (Elizabeth Mascaro, Finance 
Manager) to oversee the services; (c) evaluating the adequacy of the services performed; (d) evaluating 
and accepting responsibility for the results of the services performed; and (e) establishing and maintaining 
internal controls, including monitoring ongoing activities. 

The audit documentation for this engagement is the property of James Moore & Co., P.L. and constitutes 
confidential information. However, we may be requested to make certain audit documentation available 
to a grantor or their designee, a federal or state agency providing direct or indirect funding, or the U.S. 
Government Accountability Office pursuant to authority given to it by laws or regulation, or to peer 
reviews. If requested, access to such audit documentation will be provided under the supervision of James 
Moore & Co., P.L. personnel. We will notify you of any such request. Furthermore, upon request, we 
may provide copies of selected audit documentation to these agencies and regulators. The regulators and 
agencies may intend, or decide, to distribute the copies or information contained therein to others, 
including other governmental agencies. 

This engagement letter includes the attached James Moore & Co., P.L. Standard Terms and Conditions as 
Attachment A which is incorporated and made a part of this engagement letter by reference. 

163



To the Honorable Mayor and Town Commission Members, 
  Town of Melbourne Beach, Florida 
October 3, 2018 
Page 9 

 

We appreciate the opportunity to be of service to the Town and believe this letter accurately summarizes 
the significant terms of our engagement. If you have any questions, please let us know. If you agree with 
the terms of our engagement as described in this letter, please sign the enclosed copy and return it to us. 

Very truly yours, 
 

 

JAMES MOORE & CO., P.L. 

RESPONSE: 

This letter correctly sets forth the understanding of the Town of Melbourne Beach, Florida. 

By  

Title  

Date  

164



- 1 - 

Attachment A 

James Moore and Co., P.L.  

Standard Terms and Conditions 

The terms and conditions set forth below are incorporated into the engagement letter agreement pursuant to 

which James Moore & Co., P.L. (“JMCO”, the “Firm”) will provide services to the Town of Melbourne 
Beach, Florida (“Client”).

1. Management’s Responsibilities––Management of Client is responsible for establishing and
maintaining an effective internal control system. JMCO services may include advice and
recommendations which management may or may not adopt. Client’s management shall be fully and
solely  responsible for applying independent  business judgment with respect to the services and
work product provided by JMCO, to make implementation decisions, if any, and to determine further
courses of action with respect to any matters addressed in any advice, recommendations, services,
reports, or other work product or deliveries to Client.  Management is responsible for the
safeguarding of assets, the proper recording of transactions in the books of accounts, the substantial
accuracy of the financial records, and the full and accurate disclosure of all relevant facts affecting
the engagement to us. Client should retain all the documents, canceled checks, and other data that
form the basis of income and deductions. If the engagement also includes tax services, these records
may be necessary to prove the accuracy and completeness of tax returns to a taxing authority. Client
has final responsibility for the tax return(s) and; therefore should review the return(s) carefully
before signing and filing.

2. Responsible Person––Client designates the individual signing the engagement letter
(“Representative”) as the individual to whom JMCO should look to provide information,
communicate, answer questions and make elections.  Client understands that JMCO will rely on the
Representative designated above and that decisions by the Representative may be beneficial to some
and detrimental to others.  JMCO is directed to rely on the Representative for all Client decisions
including but not limited to tax treatments, allocation of income and expense items, tax elections and
accounting treatments.  All communication with the Representative is deemed to be communication
with Client.

3. Advice in Writing––JMCO only provides advice for Client to rely upon in writing.  Casual
discussions of tax, accounting or other issues and informal communication are not advice upon
which Client can rely. Client agrees that the only advice from JMCO upon which Client may rely is
written advice received from JMCO on our letterhead or via e-mail.

4. Unencrypted E-Mail Use Authorized for Communication––In connection with this engagement,
JMCO may communicate with Client or others via e-mail transmission.  As e-mails can be
intercepted and read, disclosed, or otherwise used or communicated by an unintended third party, or
may not be delivered to each of the parties to whom they are directed and only to such parties,
JMCO cannot guarantee or warrant that e-mails from JMCO will be properly delivered and read only
by the addressee.  Therefore, JMCO specifically disclaims and waives any liability or responsibility
whatsoever for interception or unintentional disclosure or communication of e-mail transmissions or
for the unauthorized use or failed delivery of e-mails transmitted by JMCO in connection with the
performance of this engagement.   In that regard, Client agrees that JMCO shall have no liability for
any loss or damage to any person or entity resulting from the use of e-mail transmissions, including
any consequential, incidental, direct, indirect, or special damages, such as loss of revenues or
anticipated profits, or disclosure or communication of confidential or proprietary information.
During the term of this engagement Client may elect by notification in writing to JMCO to suspend
or terminate the use of e-mail.

165



 

- 2 - 

5. Cooperation––Client agrees to cooperate with JMCO in the performance of JMCO services for the 
Client, including providing JMCO with reasonable facilities and timely access to Client’s data, 
information and personnel. Client shall be responsible for the performance of Client’s employees and 
agents and for the accuracy and completeness of all data and information provided to JMCO for 
purposes of this engagement.  In the event that JMCO is unable to obtain required information on a 
timely basis JMCO may revise its estimate of fees, alter the services required and/or terminate the 
engagement. 

6. Independent Contractor––Client and JMCO are both independent contractors and neither Client 
nor JMCO are, or shall be considered to be, an agent, distributor or representative of the other. 
Neither Client nor JMCO shall act or represent itself, directly or by implication, as an agent of the 
other or in any manner assume or create any obligation on behalf, or in the name of, the other. 

7. Payment of Invoices––JMCO will bill Client for professional services, expenses, and out-of-pocket 
costs on a monthly basis. Payment is due within 30 days of the date on the billing statement.  JMCO 
reserves the right to suspend work or terminate the engagement in the event that payment is not 
received within 30 days of the date on the billing statement. JMCO may also suspend work or 
terminate the engagement if information furnished is not satisfactory for JMCO to perform work on a 
timely basis. JMCO will notify Client if work is suspended or terminated.  If JMCO elects to 
terminate the engagement for nonpayment or for any other reason provided for in this letter, the 
engagement will be deemed to have been completed for purposes of payment being due from Client.  
Upon written notification of termination, even if JMCO has not released work product,  Client will 
be obligated to compensate JMCO for all time expended and to reimburse JMCO for all out-of-
pocket costs through the date of termination.  Suspension of work or termination of the engagement 
may result in missed deadlines, penalties/interest along with other consequences and Client agrees 
that suspended work or termination of the engagement shall not entitle Client to recover damages 
from JMCO. All fees, charges and other amounts payable to JMCO hereunder do not include any 
sales, use, value added or other applicable taxes, tariffs or duties, payment of which shall be the sole 
responsibility of Client, excluding any applicable taxes based on JMCO’s net income or taxes arising 
from the employment or independent contractor relationship between JMCO and JMCO’s personnel. 
A late payment charge of 1½% per month will be assessed on any balance that remains unpaid after 
deduction of current payments, credits, and allowances after 90 days from the date of billing. This is 
an Annual Percentage Rate of 18%. 

8. Confidential & Proprietary Information––Client and JMCO both acknowledge and agree that all 
information communicated by one party (the “Disclosing Party”) to the other (the “Receiving Party”) 
in connection with this engagement shall be received in confidence, shall be used only for purposes 
of this engagement, and no such confidential information shall be disclosed by the Receiving Party 
or its agents or personnel without the prior written consent of the other party. Except to the extent 
otherwise required by applicable law or professional standards, the obligations under this section do 
not apply to information that: (a) is or becomes generally available to the public other than as a result 
of disclosure by the Receiving Party, (b) was known to the Receiving Party or had been previously 
possessed by the Receiving Party without restriction against disclosure at the time of receipt thereof 
by the Receiving Party, (c) was independently developed by the Receiving Party without violation of 
this agreement or (d) Client and JMCO agree from time to time to disclose. Each party shall be 
deemed to have met its nondisclosure obligations under this paragraph as long as it exercises the 
same level of care to protect the other’s information, except to the extent that applicable law, 
regulations or professional standards impose a higher requirement. JMCO may retain, subject to the 
terms of this Paragraph, one copy of Client’s confidential information required for compliance with 
applicable professional standards or internal policies. If either Client or JMCO receives a subpoena 
or other validly issued administrative or judicial demand requiring it to disclose the other party’s 
confidential information, such party shall (if permitted to do so) provide written notice to the other of 
such demand in order to permit it to seek a protective order. So long as the notifying party gives 

166



 

- 3 - 

notice as provided herein, the notifying party shall be entitled to comply with such demands to the 
extent permitted by law, subject to any protective order or the like that may have been entered in the 
matter.  In the event that Client wishes to assert a privilege or Client fails to respond and JMCO 
asserts the privilege on Client’s behalf, Client agrees to pay for all expenses incurred by JMCO in 
defending the privilege, including, by way of illustration only, JMCO’s attorney’s fees, court costs, 
outside adviser’s costs, penalties and fines imposed as a result of Client asserting the privilege or 
Client’s direction to JMCO to assert the privilege.  JMCO’s techniques, judgments, methodology and 
practices relating to its engagement practices are agreed by Client and JMCO to constitute 
proprietary confidential business information in the nature of trade secrets, security measures, 
systems and procedures which are in the nature of competitive interests which would impair the 
competitive business of JMCO should the information be released. 

9. Disclosures––Certain communications involving advice are privileged and not subject to disclosure. 
By disclosing the contents of those communications to anyone, or by turning over information about 
those communications to the government, Client, Client’s employees or Client’s agents may be 
waiving this privilege. To protect this right to privileged communication, please consult with JMCO 
or an attorney prior to disclosing any information about JMCO advice. Should Client determine that 
it is appropriate for JMCO to disclose any potentially privileged communication; Client agrees to 
provide JMCO with written, advance authority to make that disclosure. 

10. Force Majeure––Neither Client nor JMCO shall be liable for any delays resulting from 
circumstances or causes beyond our reasonable control, including, without limitation, fire or other 
casualty, act of God, strike or labor dispute, war or other violence, or any law, order or requirement 
of any government agency or authority. 

11. Indemnification––Client, its officers and directors hereby agrees to indemnify; agrees to pay for the 
defense (with counsel of JMCO’s choosing) of JMCO, (including JMCO’s principals, employees and 
authorized agents) and agrees to hold JMCO harmless from any and all suits, claims, actions, 
proceedings, liabilities, judgments, losses and costs whatsoever (including but not limited to 
attorneys’ fees and litigation costs) arising in connection with any services performed or products 
provided by JMCO pursuant to, or under the cover of this engagement letter (Indemnity) as 
described in this paragraph.  This Indemnity relates only to circumstances in which there is a 
knowing misrepresentation by Client and/or its management relating to this engagement. The 
foregoing indemnity is intended to apply to the extent not contrary to applicable law. This provision 
shall survive the termination of this engagement for a period of five years.  

12. Document Retention and Ownership––The parties agree that JMCO will endeavor to retain 
documents and records in accordance with the Firm’s Record Retention and Destruction Policy.  
Client agrees that after the specified period of retention expires (typically seven (7) years), 
documents and records may not be available. However, the related engagement records will not be 
destroyed regardless of the retention period, if JMCO has knowledge of potential or pending legal 
action and/or investigation by a regulatory agency, and it has been determined by the Firm that the 
records in question are relevant to said legal action and/or investigation.  If it is determined that the 
records in question are relevant to the legal action and/or investigation, the Firm will impose a 
litigation hold on the records thereby suspending the scheduled destruction of the records.  As 
potential or pending legal action or an investigation may not be public knowledge, we request that 
you inform us of any such legal action or investigation in a timely manner.  Likewise, we request 
that you inform us when all legal action or investigation has been concluded so that the Firm can 
release the litigation hold and the records related to our engagement can be destroyed in accordance 
with our Record Retention and Destruction Policy.  JMCO does not retain original client records or 
documents. Records prepared by us specifically for you as part of this engagement (for example, 
financial statements and other financial reports, tax returns, general ledgers, depreciation schedules, 
etc.) and other supporting records prepared by us (for example, adjusting entries and related support, 

167



 

- 4 - 

data combining schedules, calculations supporting amounts in tax returns and financial statements, 
letters, memos and electronic mail, etc.) will remain part of the engagement records. When any 
records are returned or provided to you, it is your responsibility to retain and protect them for 
possible future use, including potential examination by any government or regulatory agencies.  
JMCO owns and retains the rights to JMCO’s internal working papers; any information created by 
JMCO is not the property of Client.  In the event that documents are requested by the Representative 
or any other individual considered by law or regulation to be our client we will furnish the 
documents readily available in the Client file (which shall not include any obligation on JMCO’s part 
to undertake a search of JMCO’s electronic document and email files) to the requesting party.   

13. Professional Standards––JMCO will perform this engagement in accordance with the professional 
standards applicable to the engagement including those standards promulgated by the American 
Institute of Certified Public Accountants.  In the event that issues arise that present a conflict of 
interest and/or a potential for breach of professional standards it may become necessary to terminate 
or suspend services of this engagement. 

14. Use of Third Party Providers––In the normal course of business, JMCO uses the services of third-
parties and individual contractors, which are not employees of JMCO.  Those services are performed 
at various levels and in various aspects of JMCO’s engagements including bookkeeping, tax return 
preparation, consulting, audit and other attest services and clerical and data entry functions.  It is 
possible that during the course of the engagement JMCO may utilize such third-party and individual 
contractor sources.  Additionally, the engagement will, of necessity, require JMCO to handle 
confidential information and JMCO expects third-party service providers and individual contractors 
to maintain the confidentiality of such information.  To be reasonably assured that unauthorized 
release of confidential client information does not occur, JMCO requires those individuals and third-
party service providers to enter into a written agreement to maintain the confidentiality of such 
information.  Client acceptance of this arrangement acknowledges and accepts our handling of 
confidential Client information including access by third-party and individual service providers. 

15. Limitation of Liability and Actions––Neither party may assert against the other party any claim in 
connection with this engagement unless the asserting party has given the other party written notice of 
the claim within one (1) year after the asserting party first knew or should have known of the facts 
giving rise to such claim. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary, JMCO’s maximum aggregate 
liability in this engagement (regardless of the nature of the any claim asserted, including contract, 
statute, any form of negligence, tort, strict liability or otherwise and whether asserted by Client, 
JMCO or others) shall be limited to twice the sum of the fees paid to JMCO during the term of this 
engagement. In no event shall JMCO be liable for consequential, incidental, special or punitive loss, 
damage or expense (including, without limitation, lost profits, opportunity costs, etc.) even if JMCO 
had been advised of their possible existence. This provision shall survive the termination of this 
agreement.  

16. Mediation––Prior to resorting to arbitration or litigation that may arise regarding the meaning, 
performance or enforcement of this engagement or any prior engagement the parties agree to attempt 
resolution of any dispute in mediation administered by and conducted under the rules of the 
American Arbitration Association in mediation session(s) in Alachua County, Florida.  Unless the 
parties agree in writing to the contrary, the parties will engage in the mediation process in good faith 
once a written request to mediate has been given by any party to the engagement.  The results of any 
such mediation shall be binding only upon agreement of each party to be bound.  Each party may 
disclose any facts to the other party or to the mediator that it in good faith considers reasonably 
necessary to resolve the dispute.  However, all such disclosures shall be deemed in furtherance of 
settlement efforts and shall not be admissible in any subsequent proceeding against the disclosing 
party.  Except as agreed to in writing by both parties, the mediator shall keep confidential all 
information disclosed during mediation.  The mediator shall not act as a witness for either party in 

168



 

- 5 - 

any subsequent proceeding between the parties. The costs of any mediation proceeding shall be 
shared equally by the participating parties.   

17. Binding Arbitration––All disputes not resolved by mediation (as described above) arising out of 
and/or related to the services and/or relationship with JMCO and Client will be resolved through 
binding arbitration.   The parties agree that they are irrevocably voluntarily waiving the right to a 
trial by jury by entering into this voluntary binding arbitration agreement.  The arbitration 
proceeding shall take place in Alachua County, Florida.  The arbitration shall be governed by the 
provisions of the laws of Florida (except if there is no applicable state law providing for such 
arbitration, then the Federal Arbitration Act shall apply) and the substantive law of Florida shall be 
applied without reference to conflicts of law rules.  In any arbitration instituted hereunder, the 
proceedings shall proceed in accordance with the then current Arbitration Rules for Professional 
Accounting and Related Disputes of the American Arbitration Association (AAA), except that 
discovery shall be limited to identification of witnesses, exchange of expert reports, deposition of 
experts only, exchange of documents in the Client file and interrogatories and shall not include any 
exchange of e-mail or any requirement to produce or search for e-mail.  Any Dispute regarding 
discovery, or the relevance or scope thereof, shall be determined by the Arbitration Panel (as defined 
below).  For amounts in dispute less than One Million Dollars, the arbitration shall be conducted 
before a single arbitrator appointed as a neutral by the American Arbitration Association.  The single 
arbitrator shall be both a licensed attorney and a licensed certified public accountant at the time of 
appointment as the arbitrator.  If the amount in dispute is One Million Dollars or more, the 
arbitration shall be conducted before a panel of three persons, all panel members must be members 
of the American Arbitration Association’s panel of neutrals with one arbitrator selected by each 
party (party selection shall be completed within twenty days of receipt of the panel nominees from 
the American Arbitration Association or, failing party selection the panel members shall be 
appointed by the American Arbitration Association), and the third member of the panel will be 
selected by the American Arbitration Association will be licensed as a certified public accountant at 
the time of appointment to the panel (the “Arbitration Panel”).  The party-selected arbitrators shall be 
treated as neutrals.  The Arbitration Panel shall have no authority to award non-monetary or 
equitable relief, but nothing herein shall be construed as a prohibition against a party from pursuing 
non-monetary or equitable relief in a state or federal court.  The parties also waive the right to 
punitive damages and the arbitrators shall have no authority to award such damages or any other 
damages that are not strictly compensatory in nature.  In rendering their award the Arbitration Panel 
shall issue a reasoned award.  The arbitration panel is directed to award attorneys’ fees and costs 
along with the costs of the arbitration proceeding to the prevailing party as determined by the 
Arbitration Panel.  The confidentiality provisions applicable to mediation shall also apply to 
arbitration.  The award issued by the Arbitration Panel may be confirmed in a judgment by any 
federal or state court of competent jurisdiction.  In no event shall a demand for arbitration be made 
after the date on which the initiation of the legal or equitable proceeding on the same Dispute would 
be barred by the applicable statute of limitations or statute of repose or this agreement.  For the 
purposes of applying the statute of limitations or repose or this agreement, receipt of a written 
demand for arbitration by the AAA shall be deemed the initiation of the legal or equitable 
proceeding based on such Dispute. 

18. Employees––Both Client and JMCO agree that they will not employ any employee of the other 
within one year of the employee’s last day of employment with the other.   Employment of a former 
employee within one year of the employee leaving the other party may cause significant economic 
losses and/or breach of professional standards for JMCO and potential economic loss and/or 
potential conflicts of interest for Client. 

169



 

- 6 - 

19. Posting and Distribution of Information––JMCO’s permission is required prior to distribution or 
posting of JMCO work product.  If Client plans to distribute or post  online any of JMCO’s work 
product, a copy of the document, reproduction master or proof will be submitted to JMCO not less 
than seven days prior to distribution or posting to provide JMCO sufficient time for our reading and 
approval prior to distribution or posting. If, in our professional judgment, the circumstances require, 
we may withhold our written consent.  Client agrees that prior to posting an electronic copy  of any 
of JMCO’s work product, including but not limited to financial statements and our report(s) thereon, 
that Client will ensure that there are no differences in content between the electronic version posted 
and the original signed version provided to management by JMCO.  Client agrees to indemnify 
JMCO, defend using counsel of JMCO’s choosing and hold JMCO harmless from any and all claims 
that may arise from any differences between electronic and original signed versions of JMCO’s work 
product.  

20. Assignment––Neither party may assign any of its rights or obligations under the terms of this 
engagement without the prior written consent to the other. 

21. Additional Work––From time to time Client may request that JMCO undertake to complete 
additional work.  In the event that such work is undertaken without a separate written engagement 
understanding then the terms of this engagement letter shall govern the additional work. 

22. Entire Agreement––This engagement letter constitutes the entire understanding between the parties 
regarding the JMCO services and supersedes all prior understandings relating to JMCO services. No 
amendment, modification, waiver or discharge of the terms of this engagement letter shall be valid 
unless in writing and signed by authorized representatives of both parties.  This understanding has 
been entered into solely between Client and JMCO, and no third-party beneficiaries are created 
hereby.  In the event any provision(s) of the terms of this document shall be invalidated or otherwise 
deemed unenforceable, such finding shall not cause the remainder of this document to become 
unenforceable. The proper venue for all actions involving the relationship between JMCO and Client 
are the tribunals of principal jurisdiction in Alachua County, Florida.  This engagement and the 
relationship between the parties shall be construed and enforced in accordance with, and governed by 
Florida law without giving effect to Florida’s choice of law principles. This document may be 
transmitted in electronic format and shall not be denied legal effect solely because it was formed or 
transmitted, in whole or in part, by electronic record; however, this document must then remain 
capable of being retained and accurately reproduced, from time to time, by electronic record by the 
parties and all other persons or entities required by law.  An electronically transmitted signature or 
acknowledgment will be deemed an acceptable original for purposes of binding the party providing 
such electronic signature. 

170



SYSTEM REVIEW REPORT

January 22, 2015

HADDOX

REID

EUBANK

BETTSpuc

CPAs & Advisors

To the Members

James Moore & Co., P.L.
and the AICPA National Peer Review Committee

We have reviewed the system of quality control for the accounting and auditing practice
of James Moore & Co., P.L. (the firm) in effect for the year ended October 31, 2014. Our
peer review was conducted in accordance with the Standards for Performing and
Reporting on Peer Reviews established by the Peer Review Board of the American
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. As a part of our peer review, we considered
reviews by regulatory entities, if applicable, in determining the nature and extent of our
procedures. The firm is responsible for designing a system of quality control and
complying with it to provide the firm with reasonable assurance of performing and
reporting in conformity with applicable professional standards in all material respects.
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the design of the system of quality control
and the firm's compliance therewith based on our review. The nature, objectives, scope,
limitations of, and the procedures performed in a System Review are described in the
standards at www.aicpa.org/prsummarv.

As required by the standards, engagements selected for review included engagements
performed under Government Auditing Standards, audits of employee benefit plans, and
examinations of service organizations (Service Organizations Control (SOC) 2
engagements).

In our opinion, the system of quality control for the accounting and auditing practice of
James Moore & Co., P.L. in effect for the year ended October 31, 2014, has been suitably
designed and complied with to provide the firm with reasonable assurance of performing
and reporting in conformity with applicable professional standards in all material
respects. Firms can receive a rating of pass, pass with deficiency(ies) or fail. James
Moore & Co., P.L. has received a peer review rating ofpass.

jU^ PLLC

Jackson, Mississippi

One Jackson Place, Suite 500 • P.O. Drawer 22507 • Jackson, MS 39225-2507 • Ph: 601-948-2924 • Fx: 601-960-9154 •www.HaddoxReid.com

171



 

 

 

July 26, 2021 

To the Honorable Mayor and Town Commission Members, 
  Town of Melbourne Beach, Florida: 

You have requested that we audit the financial statements of the governmental activities, each major fund, 
and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Town of Melbourne Beach, Florida (the Town), as of 
September 30, 2021, 2022, and 2023, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively 
comprise the Town’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.  

In addition, if applicable, we will audit the Town’s compliance over major federal award programs and 
major state projects for the years ended September 30, 2021, 2022, and 2023. We are pleased to confirm 
our acceptance and our understanding of this audit engagement by means of this letter. Our audits will be 
conducted with the objectives of our expressing an opinion on each opinion unit and an opinion on 
compliance regarding the Town’s major federal award programs and major state projects. 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, (U.S. GAAP) as promulgated 
by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) require that supplementary information, such 
as management's discussion and analysis (MD&A) or budgetary comparison information, be presented to 
supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial 
statements, is required by the GASB, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for 
placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. As part 
of our engagement, we will apply certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information 
(RSI) in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America (U.S. 
GAAS). These limited procedures will consist primarily of inquiries of management regarding their 
methods of measurement and presentation, and comparing the information for consistency with 
management’s responses to our inquiries. We will not express an opinion or provide any form of assurance 
on the RSI. The following RSI is required by U.S. GAAP. This RSI will be subjected to certain limited 
procedures but will not be audited: 

1. Management’s Discussion and Analysis. 

2. Budgetary Comparison Schedules 

3. Pension and OPEB Schedules (as applicable) 

Supplementary information other than RSI will accompany the Town’s basic financial statements. We will 
subject the following supplementary information to the auditing procedures applied in our audit of the basic 
financial statements and perform certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling the 
supplementary information to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic 
financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and additional procedures in 
accordance with U.S. GAAS. We intend to provide an opinion on whether the following supplementary 
information is presented fairly in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole: 

1. General and Nonmajor fund combining schedules. 

2. Schedule of expenditures of federal awards and state financial assistance (if applicable). 

172



173



174



175



Town of Melbourne Beach, Florida 
July 26, 2021 
Page 2 

Data Collection Form 

Prior to the completion of our engagement, if applicable, we will complete the sections of the Data 
Collection Form that are our responsibility. The form will summarize our audit findings, amounts and 
conclusions. It is management’s responsibility to submit a reporting package including financial statements, 
schedule of expenditure of federal awards, summary schedule of prior audit findings and corrective action 
plan along with the Data Collection Form to the federal audit clearinghouse. The financial reporting 
package must be text searchable, unencrypted, and unlocked. Otherwise, the reporting package will not be 
accepted by the federal audit clearinghouse. We will assist you in the electronic submission and 
certification. You may request from us copies of our report for you to include with the reporting package 
submitted to pass-through entities.  

The Data Collection Form, when applicable, is required to be submitted within the earlier of 30 days after 
receipt of our auditors’ reports or nine months after the end of the audit period, unless specifically waived 
by a federal cognizant or oversight agency for audits. Data Collection Forms submitted untimely are one of 
the factors in assessing programs at a higher risk. 

Audit of the Financial Statements 

We will conduct our audit in accordance with U.S. GAAS and, as applicable, the standards applicable to 
financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the 
United States of America; the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 
200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, Audit Requirements for Federal Awards 
(Uniform Guidance), Section 215.97, Florida Statutes, Florida Single Audit Act, and the provisions of 
Chapter 10.550, Rules of the State of Florida, Office of the Auditor General. Those standards and the 
Uniform Guidance require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether 
the basic financial statements are free from material misstatement. An audit involves performing procedures 
to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures 
selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement 
of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, misappropriation of assets, or violations of laws, 
governmental regulations, grant agreements, or contractual agreements. An audit also includes evaluating 
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates 
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. If 
appropriate, our procedures will therefore include tests of documentary evidence that support the 
transactions recorded in the accounts, tests of the physical existence of inventories, and direct confirmation 
of cash, investments, and certain other assets and liabilities by correspondence with creditors and financial 
institutions. As part of our audit process, we will request written representations from your attorneys, and 
they may bill you for responding. At the conclusion of our audit, we will also request certain written 
representations from you about the financial statements and related matters. 

Because of the inherent limitations of an audit, together with the inherent limitations of internal control, an 
unavoidable risk that some material misstatements or noncompliance (whether caused by errors, fraudulent 
financial reporting, misappropriation of assets, or violations of laws or governmental regulations) may not 
be detected exists, even though the audit is properly planned and performed in accordance with U.S. GAAS; 
Government Auditing Standards of the Comptroller General of the United States of America; Section 
215.97, Florida Statutes, Florida Single Audit Act; the provisions of Chapter 10.550, Rules of the State of 
Florida, Office of the Auditor General and will include tests of accounting records, a determination of major 
state project(s) in accordance with Chapter 10.550, Rules of the State of Florida, Office of the Auditor 
General and other procedures we consider necessary to enable us to express such opinions and to render 
the required reports. Please note that the determination of abuse is subjective and Government Auditing 
Standards does not require auditors to detect abuse. 

176



Town of Melbourne Beach, Florida 
July 26, 2021 
Page 3 

In making our risk assessments, we consider internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair 
presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal 
control. However, we will communicate to you in writing concerning any significant deficiencies or 
material weaknesses in internal control relevant to the audit of the financial statements that we have 
identified during the audit. Our responsibility as auditors is, of course, limited to the period covered by our 
audit and does not extend to any other periods. 

We cannot provide assurance that unmodified opinions will be expressed. Circumstances may arise in 
which it is necessary for us to modify our opinions or add emphasis-of-matter or other-matter paragraphs. 
If our opinions on the basic financial statements are other than unmodified, we will discuss the reasons with 
you in advance. If, for any reason, we are unable to complete the audit or are unable to form or have not 
formed opinions, we may decline to express opinions or to issue a report as a result of this engagement.  

We will issue a written report upon completion of our audit of the Town’s basic financial statements. Our 
report will be addressed to the Town Commission. We cannot provide assurance that unmodified opinions 
will be expressed. Circumstances may arise in which it is necessary for us to modify our opinions, add an 
emphasis-of-matter or other-matter paragraph(s), or withdraw from the engagement. 

In accordance with the requirements of Government Auditing Standards, we will also issue a written report 
describing the scope of our testing over internal control over financial reporting and over compliance with 
laws, regulations, and provisions of grants and contracts, including the results of that testing. However, 
providing an opinion on internal control and compliance over financial reporting will not be an objective 
of the audit and, therefore, no such opinion will be expressed. 

We also will issue a written report as required by Chapter 10.550, Rules of the State of Florida, Office of 
the Auditor General upon completion of our audit.  

Audit of Major Program/Project Compliance 

Our audit of the Town’s major federal award program(s) and state project(s) compliance will be conducted 
in accordance with the requirements of the Single Audit Act, as amended; the Uniform Guidance; and 
Chapter 10.550, Rules of the State of Florida, Office of the Auditor General; and will include tests of 
accounting records, a determination of major programs/projects in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, 
Chapter 10.550, Rules of the State of Florida, Office of the Auditor General, and other procedures we 
consider necessary to enable us to express such an opinion on major federal award program and major state 
project compliance and to render the required reports. We cannot provide assurance that an unmodified 
opinion on compliance will be expressed. Circumstances may arise in which it is necessary for us to modify 
our opinion or withdraw from the engagement. 

The Uniform Guidance requires that we also plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance 
about whether the entity has complied with applicable laws and regulations and the provisions of contracts 
and grant agreements applicable to major federal award programs. Our procedures will consist of 
determining major federal programs and performing the applicable procedures described in the U.S. Office 
of Management and Budget OMB Compliance Supplement for the types of compliance requirements that 
could have a direct and material effect on each of the entity’s major programs. The purpose of those 
procedures will be to express an opinion on the entity’s compliance with requirements applicable to each 
of its major programs in our report on compliance issued pursuant to the Uniform Guidance. 

Also, as required by the Uniform Guidance, we will perform tests of controls to evaluate the effectiveness 
of the design and operation of controls that we consider relevant to preventing or detecting material 

177



Town of Melbourne Beach, Florida 
July 26, 2021 
Page 4 

noncompliance with compliance requirements applicable to each of the entity’s major federal award 
programs. However, our tests will be less in scope than would be necessary to render an opinion on these 
controls and, accordingly, no opinion will be expressed in our report.  

Chapter 10.550, Rules of the State of Florida, Office of the Auditor General requires that we also plan and 
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the auditee has complied with applicable 
laws and regulations and the provisions of contracts and grant agreements applicable to major state projects. 
Our procedures will consist of tests of transactions and other applicable procedures described in the State 
of Florida State Projects Compliance Supplement for the types of compliance requirements that could have 
a direct and material effect on each of the Organization’s major state projects. The purpose of these 
procedures will be to express an opinion on the Town’s compliance with requirements applicable to each 
of its major state projects in our report on compliance issued pursuant to Chapter 10.550, Rules of the State 
of Florida, Office of the Auditor General. 

Also, as required by Chapter 10.550, Rules of the State of Florida, Office of the Auditor General, we will 
perform tests of controls over compliance to evaluate the effectiveness of the design and operation of 
controls that we consider relevant to preventing or detecting material noncompliance with compliance 
requirements applicable to each major state project. However, our tests will be less in scope than would be 
necessary to render an opinion on those controls and, accordingly, no opinion will be expressed in our report 
on internal control issued pursuant to Chapter 10.550, Rules of the State of Florida, Office of the Auditor 
General. 

We will issue a report on compliance that will include an opinion or disclaimer of opinion regarding the 
entity’s major federal award programs and major state projects, and a report on internal controls over 
compliance that will report any significant deficiencies and material weaknesses identified; however, such 
report will not express an opinion on internal control. 

Management’s Responsibilities 

Our audit will be conducted on the basis that management acknowledge and understand that they have 
responsibility: 

1. For the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; 

2. For the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation 
and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether 
due to fraud or error; 

3. For identifying, in its accounts, all federal awards received and state financial assistance 
expended during the period and the federal programs under which they were received, including 
federal awards and funding increments received prior to December 26, 2014 (if any), and those 
received in accordance with the Uniform Guidance (generally received after December 26, 
2014); 

4. For maintaining records that adequately identify the source and application of funds for federally 
funded activities; 

5. For preparing the schedule of expenditures of federal awards and state financial assistance 
(including notes and noncash assistance received) in accordance with the Uniform Guidance and 
Chapter 10.550, Rules of the State of Florida, Office of the Auditor General requirements; 

6. For the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control over federal awards, state 
financial assistance, and compliance; 

7. For establishing and maintaining effective internal control over federal awards and state 
financial assistance that provides reasonable assurance that the nonfederal entity is managing 

178



Town of Melbourne Beach, Florida 
July 26, 2021 
Page 5 

federal awards and state projects in compliance with federal and state statutes, regulations, and 
the terms and conditions of the federal awards and state financial assistance; 

8. For identifying and ensuring that the entity complies with federal and state statutes, regulations, 
and the terms and conditions of federal award programs and state financial assistance projects 
and implementing systems designed to achieve compliance with applicable federal and state 
statutes, regulations, and the terms and conditions of federal award programs and state financial 
assistance projects;   

9. For disclosing accurately, currently, and completely the financial results of each federal award 
and major state project in accordance with the requirements of the award; 

10. For identifying and providing report copies of previous audits, attestation engagements, or other 
studies that directly relate to the objectives of the audit, including whether related 
recommendations have been implemented; 

11. For taking prompt action when instances of noncompliance are identified; 
12. For addressing the findings and recommendations of auditors, for establishing and maintaining 

a process to track the status of such findings and recommendations and taking corrective action 
on reported audit findings from prior periods and preparing a summary schedule of prior audit 
findings; 

13. For following up and taking corrective action on current year audit findings and preparing a 
corrective action plan for such findings; 

14. For submitting the reporting package and data collection form to the appropriate parties;  
15. For making the auditor aware of any significant vendor relationships where the vendor is 

responsible for program compliance; 
16. To provide us with: 

a. Access to all information of which management is aware that is relevant to the preparation 
and fair presentation of the financial statements, and relevant to federal award programs 
and state financial assistance projects, such as records, documentation, and other matters; 

b. Additional information that we may request from management for the purpose of the audit; 
and 

c. Unrestricted access to persons within the entity from whom we determine it necessary to 
obtain audit evidence. 

17. For adjusting the financial statements to correct material misstatements and confirming to us in 
the management representation letter that the effects of any uncorrected misstatements 
aggregated by us during the current engagement and pertaining to the current year(s) under audit 
are immaterial, both individually and in the aggregate, to the financial statements as a whole; 

18. For acceptance of nonattest services, including identifying the proper party to oversee nonattest 
work; 

19. For maintaining adequate records, selecting and applying accounting principles, and 
safeguarding assets;  

20. For informing us of any known or suspected fraud affecting the entity involving management, 
employees with significant role in internal control and others where fraud could have a material 
effect on compliance; 

21. For the accuracy and completeness of all information provided; 
22. For taking reasonable measures to safeguard protected personally identifiable and other sensitive 

information;  
23. For confirming your understanding of your responsibilities as defined in this letter to us in your 

management representation letter; and 
24. For identifying and ensuring that the entity complies with applicable laws, regulations, contracts, 

agreements, and grants. Additionally, as required by Uniform Guidance and Chapter 10.550, 
Rules of the State of Florida, Office of the Auditor General, it is management’s responsibility 
to follow up and take corrective action on reported audit findings and to prepare a summary 

179



Town of Melbourne Beach, Florida 
July 26, 2021 
Page 6 

schedule of prior audit findings and a corrective action plan. The summary schedule of prior 
audit findings should be available for our review at the commentment of fieldwork. 

With regard to the supplementary information referred to above, you acknowledge and understand your 
responsibility (a) for the preparation of the supplementary information in accordance with the applicable 
criteria, (b) to provide us with the appropriate written representations regarding supplementary information, 
(c) to include our report on the supplementary information in any document that contains the supplementary 
information and that indicates that we have reported on such supplementary information, and (d) to present 
the supplementary information with the audited financial statements, or if the supplementary information 
will not be presented with the audited financial statements, to make the audited financial statements readily 
available to the intended users of the supplementary information no later than the date of issuance by you 
of the supplementary information and our report thereon.  

As part of our audit process, we will request from management written confirmation concerning 
representations made to us in connection with the audit. 

Additional Examination Engagements 

You have requested that we examine the Town’s compliance for the years ended September 30, 2021, 2022, 
and 2023, with the following statutes (collectively, “the Statutes”): 

 Section 218.415, Florida Statutes, Local Government Investment Policies 

We are pleased to confirm our acceptance and our understanding of this examination engagement by means 
of this letter. Our examination will be conducted with the objective of expressing an opinion as to whether 
the Town complied in all material respects with the Statutes. 

Practitioner Responsibilities 

We will conduct our examinations in accordance with the attestation standards related to examinations of 
the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants. An examination-level attestation engagement 
involves performing procedures to obtain attest evidence about whether the Town is in compliance, in all 
material respects, in conformity with the Statutes. The procedures selected depend on the practitioner’s 
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement or misrepresentation of the subject 
matter, whether due to fraud or error.  

Because of the inherent limitations of an examination, together with the inherent limitations of internal 
control, an unavoidable risk that some material misstatements or misrepresentations may not be detected 
exists, even though the examination is properly planned and performed in accordance with the attestation 
standards related to examinations of the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants. However, we 
will inform you of any material errors or fraud that comes to our attention, unless clearly inconsequential. 

Management Responsibilities 

Our examination will be conducted on the basis that management and, when appropriate, those charged 
with governance acknowledge and understand that they have responsibility: 

1. For the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the Statutes,  which 
is the best means of preventing or detecting errors or fraud; 

2. For selecting and determining the suitability and appropriateness of the criteria upon which 
compliance with the Statutes will be evaluated; and 

3. To provide us with: 

180



Town of Melbourne Beach, Florida 
July 26, 2021 
Page 7 

(1) Access to all information of which management is aware that is relevant to the Statutes 
such as records, documentation, and other matters and that you are responsible for the 
accuracy and completeness of that information; 

(2) Additional information that we may request from management for the purpose of the 
examination; and 

(3) Unrestricted access to persons within the entity from whom we determine it necessary to 
obtain attest evidence. 

As part of our examination process, we will request from you written confirmation concerning 
representations made to us in connection with the examination.  

Reporting 

We will issue a written report(s) upon completion of our examination of compliance with the Statutes. Our 
report will be addressed to the governing body. We cannot provide assurance that an unmodified opinion 
will be expressed. Circumstances may arise in which it is necessary for us to modify our opinion, add an 
emphasis-of-matter or other-matter paragraph(s), or withdraw from the engagement. 

Nonattest Services  

We will perform the following nonattest services: preparation of financial statements, preparation of data 
collection form (if applicable). With respect to any nonattest services we perform, we will not assume 
management responsibilities on behalf of the Town. However, we will provide advice and 
recommendations to assist management of the Town in performing its responsibilities. The Town’s 
management is responsible for (a) making all management decisions and performing all management 
functions; (b) assigning a competent individual (Elizabeth Mascaro/Jennifer Kerr) to oversee the services; 
(c) evaluating the adequacy of the services performed; (d) evaluating and accepting responsibility for the 
results of the services performed; and (e) establishing and maintaining internal controls, including 
monitoring ongoing activities. 

Our responsibilities and limitations of the engagement are as follows. We will perform the services in 
accordance with applicable professional standards. This engagement is limited to the services previously 
outlined. Our firm, in its sole professional judgment, reserves the right to refuse to do any procedure or take 
any action that could be construed as making management decisions or assuming management 
responsibilities, including determining account coding and approving journal entries. Our firm may advise 
the Town with regard to different matters, but the Town must make all decisions with regard to those 
matters.  

Any nonattest services performed by us do not constitute an audit performed in accordance with 
Government Auditing Standards. 

Engagement Administration, Fees, and Other 

We understand that your employees will prepare all cash, accounts receivable, or other confirmations we 
request and will locate any documents or support for any other transactions we select for testing. 

We are not the custodian of, and accept no responsibility for your financial and non-financial data. You 
acknowledges that you have sole responsibility for the storage and preservation of your financial and non-
financial data. 

We do not host, are not the custodian of, and accept no responsibility for your financial and non-financial 
data. You acknowledge that you have sole responsibility for the storage and preservation of your financial 
and non-financial data. 

181



Town of Melbourne Beach, Florida 
July 26, 2021 
Page 8 

During the course of the audit, we may observe opportunities for economy in, or improved controls over, 
your operations. We will bring such matters to the attention of the appropriate level of management, either 
orally or in writing.  

You agree to inform us of facts that may affect the financial statements of which you may become aware 
during the period from the date of the auditor’s report to the date the financial statements are issued. 

Zach Chalifour is the service leader for the audit services specified in this letter. His responsibilities include 
supervising the services performed as part of this engagement and signing or authorizing another qualified 
firm representative to sign the reports. 

Our fees for the audit of the financial statements and related services, including expenses, for each of the 
fiscal years included in this engagement are as follows:  

Year Ending 
September 30, Audit Fee 

2021 $22,300 
2022 $22,700 
2023 $23,100 

Should the Town be subject to a Federal and/or State Single Audit in any years under this engagement, an 
additional fee of $3,500 per major program tested shall apply to the respective year under audit. 

This engagement may be terminated by either party for noncompliance with the terms as noted in this 
engagement letter. The parties will provide 60 days’ notice of their intention to terminate the engagement. 
Upon completion of this engagement with the audit for the year ended September 30, 2023, new 
engagement can be entered into for up to two additional three-year periods, at the option of both parties. 
Any such engagements will be evidenced by a new engagement letter. 

At the conclusion of our audit engagement, we will communicate to those charged with governance the 
following significant findings from the audit: 

 Our view about the qualitative aspects of the entity’s significant accounting practices; 
 Significant difficulties, if any, encountered during the audit; 
 Uncorrected misstatements, other than those we believe are trivial, if any; 
 Disagreements with management, if any; 
 Other findings or issues, if any, arising from the audit that are, in our professional judgment, 

significant and relevant to those charged with governance regarding their oversight of the 
financial reporting process;  

 Material, corrected misstatements that were brought to the attention of management as a result 
of our audit procedures; 

 Representations we requested from management; 
 Management’s consultations with other accountants, if any; and 
 Significant issues, if any, arising from the audit that were discussed, or the subject of 

correspondence, with management. 

In accordance with the requirements of Government Auditing Standards, we have attached a copy of our 
latest external peer review report of our firm for your consideration and files. 

The audit documentation for this engagement is the property of James Moore & Co., P.L. and constitutes 
confidential information. However, we may be requested to make certain audit documentation available to 
a grantor or their designee, a federal or state agency providing direct or indirect funding, or the U.S. 
Government Accountability Office pursuant to authority given to it by laws or regulation, or to peer reviews. 

182



Town of Melbourne Beach, Florida 
July 26, 2021 
Page 9 

If requested, access to such audit documentation will be provided under the supervision of James Moore & 
Co., P.L. personnel. We will notify you of any such request. Furthermore, upon request, we may provide 
copies of selected audit documentation to these agencies and regulators. The regulators and agencies may 
intend, or decide, to distribute the copies or information contained therein to others, including other 
governmental agencies. 

This engagement letter includes the attached James Moore & Co., P.L. Standard Terms and Conditions as 
Attachment A which is incorporated and made a part of this engagement letter by reference. 

We appreciate the opportunity to be of service to the Town of Melbourne Beach, Florida and believe this 
letter accurately summarizes the significant terms of our engagement. If you have any questions, please let 
us know. If you agree with the terms of our engagement as described in this letter, please sign the enclosed 
copy and return it to us. 

Very truly yours, 
 

 

JAMES MOORE & CO., P.L. 

RESPONSE: 

This letter correctly sets forth the understanding of the Town of Melbourne Beach, Florida. 

By  

Title  

Date  

183



184



- 1 -

Attachment A 
James Moore and Co., P.L.  

Standard Terms and Conditions 

The terms and conditions set forth below are incorporated into the engagement letter agreement pursuant to 
which James Moore & Co., P.L. (“JMCO”, the “Firm”) will provide services to the Town of 
Melbourne Beach (“Client”). 

1. Management’s Responsibilities – Management of Client is responsible for establishing and
maintaining an effective internal control system. JMCO services may include advice and
recommendations which management may or may not adopt. Client’s management shall be fully and
solely  responsible for applying independent  business judgment with respect to the services and
work product provided by JMCO, to make implementation decisions, if any, and to determine further
courses of action with respect to any matters addressed in any advice, recommendations, services,
reports, or other work product or deliveries to Client.  Management is responsible for the
safeguarding of assets, the proper recording of transactions in the books of accounts, the substantial
accuracy of the financial records, and the full and accurate disclosure of all relevant facts affecting
the engagement to JMCO. Client should retain all the documents, canceled checks, and other data
that form the basis of income and deductions. If the engagement also includes tax services, these
records may be necessary to prove the accuracy and completeness of tax returns to a taxing authority.
Client has final responsibility for the tax return(s) and; therefore should review the return(s) carefully
before signing and filing.

2. Responsible Person – Client designates the individual signing the engagement letter
(“Representative”) as the individual to whom JMCO should look to provide information,
communicate, and answer questions. Client understands that JMCO will rely on the Representative
designated above and that decisions by the Representative may be beneficial to some and detrimental
to others.  JMCO is directed to rely on the Representative for all Client decisions including but not
limited to tax treatments, allocation of income and expense items, tax elections and accounting
treatments.  All communication with the Representative is deemed to be communication with Client.

3. Advice in Writing – JMCO only provides advice for Client to rely upon in writing.  Casual
discussions of tax, accounting or other issues and informal communication are not advice upon
which Client can rely. Client agrees that the only advice from JMCO upon which Client may rely is
written advice received from JMCO on our letterhead or via e-mail.

4. Unencrypted E-Mail Use Authorized for Communication – In connection with this engagement,
JMCO may communicate with Client or others via e-mail transmission.  As e-mails can be
intercepted and read, disclosed, or otherwise used or communicated by an unintended third party, or
may not be delivered to each of the parties to whom they are directed and only to such parties,
JMCO cannot guarantee or warrant that e-mails from JMCO will be properly delivered and read only
by the addressee.  Therefore, JMCO specifically disclaims and waives any liability or responsibility
whatsoever for interception or unintentional disclosure or communication of e-mail transmissions or
for the unauthorized use or failed delivery of e-mails transmitted by JMCO in connection with the
performance of this engagement.   In that regard, Client agrees that JMCO shall have no liability for
any loss or damage to any person or entity resulting from the use of e-mail transmissions, including
any consequential, incidental, direct, indirect, or special damages, such as loss of revenues or
anticipated profits, or disclosure or communication of confidential or proprietary information.
During the term of this engagement Client may elect by notification in writing to JMCO to suspend
or terminate the use of e-mail.

185



 

- 2 - 

5. Cooperation – Client agrees to cooperate with JMCO in the performance of JMCO services for the 
Client, including providing JMCO with reasonable facilities and timely access to Client’s data, 
information and personnel. Client shall be responsible for the performance of Client’s employees and 
agents and for the accuracy and completeness of all data and information provided to JMCO for 
purposes of this engagement.  In the event that JMCO is unable to obtain required information on a 
timely basis JMCO may revise its estimate of fees, alter the services required and/or terminate the 
engagement. 

6. Independent Contractor – Client and JMCO are both independent contractors and neither Client 
nor JMCO are, or shall be considered to be, an agent, distributor or representative of the other. 
Neither Client nor JMCO shall act or represent itself, directly or by implication, as an agent of the 
other or in any manner assume or create any obligation on behalf of, or in the name of, the other. 

7. Payment of Invoices – JMCO will bill Client for professional services, expenses, and out-of-pocket 
costs on a monthly basis. Payment is due within 30 days of the date on the billing statement.  JMCO 
reserves the right to suspend work or terminate the engagement in the event that payment is not 
received within 30 days of the date on the billing statement. JMCO may also suspend work or 
terminate the engagement if information furnished is not satisfactory for JMCO to perform work on a 
timely basis. JMCO will notify Client if work is suspended or terminated.  If JMCO elects to 
terminate the engagement for nonpayment or for any other reason provided for in this letter, the 
engagement will be deemed to have been completed for purposes of payment being due from Client.  
Upon written notification of termination, even if JMCO has not released work product,  Client will 
be obligated to compensate JMCO for all time expended and to reimburse JMCO for all out-of-
pocket costs through the date of termination.  Suspension of work or termination of the engagement 
may result in missed deadlines, penalties/interest along with other consequences and Client agrees 
that suspended work or termination of the engagement shall not entitle Client to recover damages 
from JMCO. All fees, charges and other amounts payable to JMCO hereunder do not include any 
sales, use, value added or other applicable taxes, tariffs or duties, payment of which shall be the sole 
responsibility of Client, excluding any applicable taxes based on JMCO’s net income or taxes arising 
from the employment or independent contractor relationship between JMCO and JMCO’s personnel. 
A late payment charge of 1½% per month will be assessed on any balance that remains unpaid after 
deduction of current payments, credits, and allowances after 90 days from the date of billing. This is 
an Annual Percentage Rate of 18%. 

8. Confidential & Proprietary Information – Client and JMCO both acknowledge and agree that all 
information communicated by one party (the “Disclosing Party”) to the other (the “Receiving Party”) 
in connection with this engagement shall be received in confidence, shall be used only for purposes 
of this engagement, and no such confidential information shall be disclosed by the Receiving Party 
or its agents or personnel without the prior written consent of the other party. Except to the extent 
otherwise required by applicable law or professional standards, the obligations under this section do 
not apply to information that: (a) is or becomes generally available to the public other than as a result 
of disclosure by the Receiving Party, (b) was known to the Receiving Party or had been previously 
possessed by the Receiving Party without restriction against disclosure at the time of receipt thereof 
by the Receiving Party, (c) was independently developed by the Receiving Party without violation of 
this agreement or (d) Client and JMCO agree from time to time to disclose. Each party shall be 
deemed to have met its nondisclosure obligations under this paragraph as long as it exercises the 
same level of care to protect the other’s information, except to the extent that applicable law, 
regulations or professional standards impose a higher requirement. JMCO may retain, subject to the 
terms of this Paragraph, one copy of Client’s confidential information required for compliance with 
applicable professional standards or internal policies. If either Client or JMCO receives a subpoena 
or other validly issued administrative or judicial demand requiring it to disclose the other party’s 
confidential information, such party shall (if permitted to do so) provide written notice to the other of 
such demand in order to permit it to seek a protective order. So long as the notifying party gives 

186



 

- 3 - 

notice as provided herein, the notifying party shall be entitled to comply with such demands to the 
extent permitted by law, subject to any protective order or the like that may have been entered into in 
the matter.  In the event that Client wishes to assert a privilege or Client fails to respond and JMCO 
asserts the privilege on Client’s behalf, Client agrees to pay for all expenses incurred by JMCO in 
defending the privilege, including, by way of illustration only, JMCO’s attorney’s fees, court costs, 
outside adviser’s costs, penalties and fines imposed as a result of Client asserting the privilege or 
Client’s direction to JMCO to assert the privilege.  JMCO’s techniques, judgments, methodology, 
and practices relating to its engagement practices are agreed by Client and JMCO to constitute 
proprietary confidential business information in the nature of trade secrets, security measures, 
systems and procedures which are in the nature of competitive interests which would impair the 
competitive business of JMCO should the information be released. 

9. Disclosures – Certain communications involving advice are privileged and not subject to disclosure. 
By disclosing the contents of those communications to anyone, or by turning over information about 
those communications to the government, Client, Client’s employees or Client’s agents may be 
waiving this privilege. To protect this right to privileged communication, please consult with JMCO 
or an attorney prior to disclosing any information about JMCO advice. Should Client determine that 
it is appropriate for JMCO to disclose any potentially privileged communication; Client agrees to 
provide JMCO with written, advance authority to make that disclosure. 

10. Force Majeure – Neither Client nor JMCO shall be liable for any delays resulting from 
circumstances or causes beyond our reasonable control, including, without limitation, fire or other 
casualty, act of God, strike or labor dispute, war or other violence, or any law, order or requirement 
of any government agency or authority. 

11. Indemnification – Client, its officers and directors hereby agrees to indemnify; agrees to pay for the 
defense (with counsel of JMCO’s choosing) of JMCO, (including JMCO’s principals, employees and 
authorized agents) and agrees to hold JMCO harmless from any and all suits, claims, actions, 
proceedings, liabilities, judgments, losses and costs whatsoever (including but not limited to 
attorneys’ fees and litigation costs) arising in connection with any services performed or products 
provided by JMCO pursuant to, or under the cover of this engagement letter (Indemnity) as 
described in this paragraph.  This Indemnity relates only to circumstances in which there is a 
knowing misrepresentation by Client and/or its management relating to this engagement. The 
foregoing indemnity is intended to apply to the extent not contrary to applicable law. This provision 
shall survive the termination of this engagement for a period of five years.  

12. Document Retention and Ownership – The parties agree that JMCO will endeavor to retain 
documents and records in accordance with the Firm’s Record Retention and Destruction Policy.  
Client agrees that after the specified period of retention expires (typically seven (7) years), 
documents and records may not be available. However, the related engagement records will not be 
destroyed regardless of the retention period, if JMCO has knowledge of potential or pending legal 
action and/or investigation by a regulatory agency, and it has been determined by the Firm that the 
records in question are relevant to said legal action and/or investigation.  If it is determined that the 
records in question are relevant to the legal action and/or investigation, the Firm will impose a 
litigation hold on the records thereby suspending the scheduled destruction of the records.  As 
potential or pending legal action or an investigation may not be public knowledge, we request that 
you inform us of any such legal action or investigation in a timely manner.  Likewise, we request 
that you inform us when all legal action or investigation has been concluded so that the Firm can 
release the litigation hold and the records related to our engagement can be destroyed in accordance 
with our Record Retention and Destruction Policy.  JMCO does not retain original client records or 
documents. Records prepared by us specifically for you as part of this engagement (for example, 
financial statements and other financial reports, tax returns, general ledgers, depreciation schedules, 
etc.) and other supporting records prepared by JMCO (for example, adjusting entries and related 

187



 

- 4 - 

support, data combining schedules, calculations supporting amounts in tax returns and financial 
statements, letters, memos and electronic mail, etc.) will remain part of the engagement records. 
When any records are returned or provided to you, it is your responsibility to retain and protect them 
for possible future use, including potential examination by any government or regulatory agencies.  
JMCO owns and retains the rights to JMCO’s internal working papers; any information created by 
JMCO is not the property of Client.  In the event that documents are requested by the Representative 
or any other individual considered by law or regulation to be our client we will furnish the 
documents readily available in the Client file (which shall not include any obligation on JMCO’s part 
to undertake a search of JMCO’s electronic document and email files) to the requesting party.   

13. Hosting of Client Data – JMCO does not Host, is not the custodian of, and accepts no responsibility 
for Client financial and non-financial data.  Client acknowledges that it has sole responsibility for the 
storage and preservation of its financial and non-financial data. 

14. Professional Standards – JMCO will perform this engagement in accordance with the professional 
standards applicable to the engagement including those standards promulgated by the American 
Institute of Certified Public Accountants.  In the event that issues arise that present a conflict of 
interest and/or a potential for breach of professional standards it may become necessary to terminate 
or suspend services of this engagement. 

15. Use of Third Party Providers – In the normal course of business, JMCO uses the services of third-
parties and individual contractors, which are not employees of JMCO.  Those services are performed 
at various levels and in various aspects of JMCO’s engagements including bookkeeping, tax return 
preparation, consulting, audit and other attest services and clerical and data entry functions.  It is 
possible that during the course of the engagement JMCO may utilize such third-party and individual 
contractor sources.  Additionally, the engagement will, of necessity, require JMCO to handle 
confidential information and JMCO expects third-party service providers and individual contractors 
to maintain the confidentiality of such information.  To be reasonably assured that unauthorized 
release of confidential client information does not occur, JMCO requires those individuals and third-
party service providers to enter into a written agreement to maintain the confidentiality of such 
information.  Client acceptance of this arrangement acknowledges and accepts our handling of 
confidential Client information including access by third-party and individual service providers. 

16. Limitation of Liability and Actions – Neither party may assert against the other party any claim in 
connection with this engagement unless the asserting party has given the other party written notice of 
the claim within one (1) year after the asserting party first knew or should have known of the facts 
giving rise to such claim. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary, JMCO’s maximum aggregate 
liability in this engagement (regardless of the nature of the any claim asserted, including contract, 
statute, any form of negligence, tort, strict liability or otherwise and whether asserted by Client, 
JMCO or others) shall be limited to twice the sum of the fees paid to JMCO during the term of this 
engagement. In no event shall JMCO be liable for consequential, incidental, special or punitive loss, 
damage or expense (including, without limitation, lost profits, opportunity costs, etc.) even if JMCO 
had been advised of their possible existence. This provision shall survive the termination of this 
agreement.  

17. Mediation – Prior to resorting to arbitration or litigation that may arise regarding the meaning, 
performance or enforcement of this engagement or any prior engagement the parties agree to attempt 
resolution of any dispute in mediation administered by and conducted under the rules of the 
American Arbitration Association (AAA) in mediation session(s) in Alachua County, Florida.  
Unless the parties agree in writing to the contrary, the parties will engage in the mediation process in 
good faith once a written request to mediate has been given by any party to the engagement.  The 
results of any such mediation shall be binding only upon agreement of each party to be bound.  Each 
party may disclose any facts to the other party or to the mediator that it in good faith considers 

188



 

- 5 - 

reasonably necessary to resolve the dispute.  However, all such disclosures shall be deemed in 
furtherance of settlement efforts and shall not be admissible in any subsequent proceeding against 
the disclosing party.  Except as agreed to in writing by both parties, the mediator shall keep 
confidential all information disclosed during mediation.  The mediator shall not act as a witness for 
either party in any subsequent proceeding between the parties. The costs of any mediation 
proceeding shall be shared equally by the participating parties.   

18. Binding Arbitration – All disputes not resolved by mediation (as described above) arising out of 
and/or related to the services and/or relationship with JMCO and Client will be resolved through 
binding arbitration.   The parties agree that they are irrevocably voluntarily waiving the right to a 
trial by jury by entering into this voluntary binding arbitration agreement.  The arbitration 
proceeding shall take place in Alachua County, Florida.  The arbitration shall be governed by the 
provisions of the laws of Florida (except if there is no applicable state law providing for such 
arbitration, then the Federal Arbitration Act shall apply) and the substantive law of Florida shall be 
applied without reference to conflicts of law rules.  In any arbitration instituted hereunder, the 
proceedings shall proceed in accordance with the then current Arbitration Rules for Professional 
Accounting and Related Disputes of the AAA, except that discovery shall be limited to identification 
of witnesses, exchange of expert reports, deposition of experts only, exchange of documents in the 
Client file and interrogatories and shall not include any exchange of e-mail or any requirement to 
produce or search for e-mail.  Any Dispute regarding discovery, or the relevance or scope thereof, 
shall be determined by the Arbitration Panel (as defined below).  For amounts in dispute less than 
One Million Dollars, the arbitration shall be conducted before a single arbitrator appointed as a 
neutral by the AAA.  The single arbitrator shall be both a licensed attorney and a licensed certified 
public accountant at the time of appointment as the arbitrator.  If the amount in dispute is One 
Million Dollars or more, the arbitration shall be conducted before a panel of three persons, all panel 
members must be members of the AAA’s panel of neutrals with one arbitrator selected by each party 
(party selection shall be completed within twenty days of receipt of the panel nominees from the 
AAA or, failing party selection the panel members shall be appointed by the AAA), and the third 
member of the panel will be selected by the AAA will be licensed as a certified public accountant at 
the time of appointment to the panel (the “Arbitration Panel”).  The party-selected arbitrators shall be 
treated as neutrals.  The Arbitration Panel shall have no authority to award non-monetary or 
equitable relief, but nothing herein shall be construed as a prohibition against a party from pursuing 
non-monetary or equitable relief in a state or federal court.  The parties also waive the right to 
punitive damages and the arbitrators shall have no authority to award such damages or any other 
damages that are not strictly compensatory in nature.  In rendering their award the Arbitration Panel 
shall issue a reasoned award.  The Arbitration Panel is directed to award attorneys’ fees and costs 
along with the costs of the arbitration proceeding to the prevailing party as determined by the 
Arbitration Panel.  The confidentiality provisions applicable to mediation shall also apply to 
arbitration.  The award issued by the Arbitration Panel may be confirmed in a judgment by any 
federal or state court of competent jurisdiction.  In no event shall a demand for arbitration be made 
after the date on which the initiation of the legal or equitable proceeding on the same dispute would 
be barred by the applicable statute of limitations or statute of repose or this agreement.  For the 
purposes of applying the statute of limitations or repose or this agreement, receipt of a written 
demand for arbitration by the AAA shall be deemed the initiation of the legal or equitable 
proceeding based on such dispute. 

19. Employees – Both Client and JMCO agree that they will not employ any employee of the other 
within one year of the employee’s last day of employment with the other, unless mutually agreed 
upon in writing. Employment of a former employee within one year of the employee leaving the 
other party may cause significant economic losses and/or breach of professional standards for JMCO 
and potential economic loss and/or potential conflicts of interest for Client. If this provision is 
breached, client will pay 3 months’ salary of the employee to JMCO. 

189



 

- 6 - 

20. Posting and Distribution of Information – JMCO’s permission is required prior to distribution or 
posting of JMCO work product.  If Client plans to distribute or post  online any of JMCO’s work 
product, a copy of the document, reproduction master or proof will be submitted to JMCO not less 
than seven days prior to distribution or posting to provide JMCO sufficient time for our reading and 
approval prior to distribution or posting. If, in our professional judgment, the circumstances require, 
we may withhold our written consent.  Client agrees that prior to posting an electronic copy  of any 
of JMCO’s work product, including but not limited to financial statements and our report(s) thereon, 
that Client will ensure that there are no differences in content between the electronic version posted 
and the original signed version provided to management by JMCO.  Client agrees to indemnify 
JMCO, defend using counsel of JMCO’s choosing and hold JMCO harmless from any and all claims 
that may arise from any differences between electronic and original signed versions of JMCO’s work 
product.  

21. Assignment – Neither party may assign any of its rights or obligations under the terms of this 
engagement without the prior written consent to the other. 

22. Additional Work – From time to time Client may request that JMCO undertake to complete 
additional work.  In the event that such work is undertaken without a separate written engagement 
understanding then the terms of this engagement letter shall govern the additional work. 

23. Entire Agreement – This engagement letter constitutes the entire understanding between the parties 
regarding the JMCO services and supersedes all prior understandings relating to JMCO services. No 
amendment, modification, waiver or discharge of the terms of this engagement letter shall be valid 
unless in writing and signed by authorized representatives of both parties.  This understanding has 
been entered into solely between Client and JMCO, and no third-party beneficiaries are created 
hereby.  In the event any provision(s) of the terms of this document shall be invalidated or otherwise 
deemed unenforceable, such finding shall not cause the remainder of this document to become 
unenforceable. The proper venue for all actions involving the relationship between JMCO and Client 
are the tribunals of principal jurisdiction in Alachua County, Florida.  This engagement and the 
relationship between the parties shall be construed and enforced in accordance with, and governed by 
Florida law without giving effect to Florida’s choice of law principles. This document may be 
transmitted in electronic format and shall not be denied legal effect solely because it was formed or 
transmitted, in whole or in part, by electronic record; however, this document must then remain 
capable of being retained and accurately reproduced, from time to time, by electronic record by the 
parties and all other persons or entities required by law.  An electronically transmitted signature or 
acknowledgment will be deemed an acceptable original for purposes of binding the party providing 
such electronic signature. 

190



Town Commission Workshop    
 

Section:   New Business  

Meeting Date:  August 18, 2021 

Subject:  Parks Board Schedule of Events 

Submitted By:  Elizabeth Mascaro, Town Manager 

 

Background Information:  The Parks Board would like to have a standing lecture or 
event on the first Thursday of every month beginning in October 2021.  I have attached a 
rough draft of the events being discussed.   

The Parks Board would also like to have Yoga in Ryckman Park every Monday evening 
at 7pm.  The instructor would receive a $50.00 payment from the Town and would supply 
10 yoga mats and 10 yoga blocks or for a $35.00 payment from the Town she would not 
supply mats or blocks but would ask for voluntary donations from the participants.  There 
would be no limit to the number of individuals participating in the yoga. 

The Parks Board would like to provide classical music in the park monthly. 

Attached are two renderings of logo ideas for the Parks Board.   

 Recommendation:  Consider the logos for approval.  Approve the Yoga night and decide 
on the payment by the Town of $50.00 per class or $35.00 per class.  Consider the 1st 
Thursday of every month event. Consider classical music in the park. 

 
 
 
 
Attachments: Logos (two) 

     Tentative list of event 

      Flyer for Ryckman Park Yoga 

191



192



193



Schedule of Events-Parks Board 

 

October 2020 Garden Party in conjunction with Garden Club. Begin 6:30.  Garden 
Club to sell plantings, have music, possible food truck(s). 

November 2020 Native Plantings lecture 

 November 11, Veterans Day remembrance event in conjunction 
with Ryckman House.  Have flags, patriotic music, Color Guard. 

December Still questionable- Possibly get pro surfer, Carolyn Marks 

January Brevard Astronomers and Local Astronauts’ 

February First Aide in conjunction with MBVFD and/or the Boy Scouts 

March Sea Turtles in conjunction with Sea Turtle Preservation Society 

April Birds and Migratory Birds in possible conjunction with Shore Birds 

May Water Safety 

June Pet First Aide in conjunction with Melbourne Beach Animal Hospital 

July Protect the wildlife in conjunction with FWC 

August Danger Flora, Fauna, Fish and Fowl 

September Brevard Zoo (oyster and clam mats) 

 

The events are subject to change by month and or event depending upon availability 

 

194



Town Commission Workshop    
 

Section:   New Business  

Meeting Date:  August 18, 2021 

Subject:  Planning & Zoning 

Submitted By:  Elizabeth Mascaro, Town Manager 

 

Background Information:  At the P&Z meeting held on August 3rd, the Board requested 
I obtain permission from the Commission for P&Z to engage the Town Attorney and the 
Town Planner to discuss the current code regarding additions attached to a single family 
homes with the same roof line but have no interior access from the main house.  The 
Board’s concern is residents are building additions onto their homes and would these be 
considered multifamily properties?  Currently our Code prohibits the installation of an 
additional kitchen, which was also a concern of the Boards but is already in our Code. 
P&Z wants to prohibit these single family dwellings from becoming multi-family dwellings. 

 Recommendation: Consider allowing the P&Z Board to discuss with the Town Planner 
and Town Attorney their recent concerns. 

 
 
 
 
Attachments: Minutes from P&Z Meeting 

195



196



Town Commission Agenda Item    
Section: New Business 

Meeting Date:  August 18, 2021 

Subject:   Appointment of Conflict Legal Counsel for Code Enforcement Case 2020- 
  CE-198. 

Submitted By:  Town Attorney  

Background Information:  

Town Code Enforcement Staff is currently processing Code Enforcement Case 2020-CE-
198.  The case involves a property located at 303 Beau Jean Ave., Melbourne Beach, FL 
32951.  The property is owned by Funoe, LLC. 

The Town Attorney’s firm (WhiteBird, PLLC) has represented Funoe, LLC and the 
company’s principals on other unrelated matters.  Due to the prior representation on 
unrelated matters, the Town Attorney is conflicted from representation of the Town on the 
Code Enforcement matter.  The Town Attorney generally presents Code Enforcement 
cases to the Special Magistrate pursuant to Section 11-20 (b) of the Town Code. 

Morris Richardson has agreed to serve as Appointed Conflict Counsel for the Town on 
this Code Enforcement Case.  Mr. Richardson would serve for the limited purpose of 
handling the Code Enforcement Case at the same hourly rate ($210.00) as the Town 
Attorney. 

Mr. Richardson has served as the City Attorney for the City of West Melbourne since 2015 
to present.  Mr. Richarson is well-familiar with Code Enforcement cases and served as 
the Special Magistrate and Code Enforcement Board Attorney for the City of Palm Bay 
from July 2010 to August 2015.  Previously, Mr. Richardson served as Assistant County 
Attorney for Brevard County from 2005 to 2015.  A CV is attached.     

 

197



Morris Richardson 
2024 Botanica Circle, West Melbourne, Florida  32904 | (321) 615-7872 | morris.richardson@gmail.com 

Objective 
To provide excellent representation and legal leadership to local government clients.  

Legal Experience 
CITY ATTORNEY | CITY OF WEST MELBOURNE | SEPTEMBER 2015 – PRESENT 
As chief legal officer for the City, provides representation, opinions, and advice to the City Council, City 
Manager, and City boards and departments. Prepares or reviews proposed legislation, contracts, and 
various legal documents prior to City Council consideration. Represents the City in legal matters, including 
litigation and contract negotiations. Attends all meetings of the City Council, Planning and Zoning Board, 
Board of Adjustment, and Code Enforcement Board. Manages Legal Department staff and budget.  

ASSISTANT COUNTY ATTORNEY | BREVARD COUNTY | JUNE 2005 – AUGUST 2015 
Under the direction of the County Attorney, provided legal representation, opinions, and advice to the 
Board of County Commissioners, the County Manager, and assigned County departments, boards, and 
agencies. Represented the Board of County Commissioners in lawsuits in state and federal courts and 
administrative proceedings. Attended Board of County Commissioners zoning meetings, and all meetings 
of the Planning and Zoning Board and Contractor Licensing Board.  

SPECIAL MAGISTRATE & CODE ENFORCEMENT BOARD ATTORNEY | CITY OF PALM 
BAY | JULY 2010 – AUGUST 2015 
On a contract basis, presided over hearings and decided code enforcement lien reduction petitions and 
parking citation appeals. Provided representation and advice to the Code Enforcement Board. 

ASSOCIATE | LOWNDES, DROSDICK, DOSTER, KANTOR & REED, P.A. | MAY 2000 – 
FEBRUARY 2002, APRIL 2003 – MAY 2005 | ORLANDO  
Represented private sector clients in construction, contract, real estate, land use, class action, and complex 
commercial litigation. 

ASSOCIATE | GRAY ROBINSON, P.A. | FEBRUARY 2002 – MARCH 2003 | MELBOURNE 
Represented private sector clients in contract, employment, labor, and land use matters.  

Education 
VANDERBILT UNIVERSITY SCHOOL OF LAW | DOCTOR OF JURISPRUDENCE | MAY 2000 
Dean’s List; Best Oralist Award, National Moot Court Competition Southeast Region; National Moot Court 
Team; Moot Court Board. 

FLORIDA INSTITUTE OF TECHNOLOGY | BACHELOR OF ARTS | AUGUST 1996 
Graduated with High Honor. 

198



Regular Town Commission Meeting Agenda    
 

Section:   New Business  

Meeting Date:  August 18, 2021  

Subject: Resolution 2021-05 – Budget Amendment. Remove $18,000 from 
Fund 125 Dept. 24 line item 581.00.00 TRANSFER OUT, transfer in 
from General Fund (001) to Debt Service Fund (201), transfer funds 
from long term capital (333) to Ryckman Park Parking (001-75) and 
Ocean Park Parking Fund (172), and increase the Stormwater Fund 
expenditure amount for Mil and Repave Roadway 341-41-530.64.01.   

Submitted By:  Jennifer Kerr, Finance Manager 

 

Background Information 
. 

At the Regular Town Commission Meeting on November 18, 2020, the Commission approved to 
stop the transfer of $18,000 from Building Fund (125) to the General Fund (001) and to use 
money from reserves to cover any short fall in the Building Department.  
 
Transfer in $9,297.00 from General Fund (001) to the Debt Service Fund (201) to cover 
expenses.  
 
Transfer $3,000.00 from Long Term Capital (333) and put $1,500 in Ryckman Park Parking 
(001-75) and $1,500.00 in Ocean Park Parking Fund (172) for the cost of painting the parking 
spots. 
 
At the Regular Town Commission Meeting on March 17, 2021, the Commission approved an 
increase in the mil and repave roadway expenditure in the Stormwater Fund (341) in the amount 
of $319,641.60 from the original budget amount of $437,241.00, for a total expenditure cost of 
$756,882.60. The final cost of the project was $695,238.14. This is a savings of $61,644.46 of 
the approved increase. The budget amendment will reflect the increased amount of 
$257,997.14.   
 
According to Town Code of Ordinances, 15-6 BUDGET AMENDMENTS AUTHORIZED at 
any time in any budget year, the Town Commission may amend the adopted budget or 
transfer any unencumbered balance, or portion thereof, from one fund, office, 
department or agency to another by approval of a resolution providing for same.  
  
Resolution 2021-05 complies with the ordinance. 
    
Recommendation:   

Motion to approve Resolution 2021-05 

199



Attachments:  

November 18, 2020, Regular Town Commission Meeting Minutes approving the stop 
transfer.  

March 17, 2021, Regular Town Commission Meeting Minutes approving the increase in 
expenditure for 341-41-530.61.01.  

Resolution 2021-05  

200



RESOLUTION NO. 2021-05 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF MELBOURNE BEACH, BREVARD 
COUNTY, FLORIDA, AMENDING THE BUDGET FOR THE FISCAL 
YEAR 2020-2021; AMENDING RESOLUTION NO 2020-13; AMENDING 
EXPENDITURES FOR THE TOWN’S GENERAL FUND; ESTABLISHING 
AUTHORITY FOR THE TOWN MANAGER TO IMPLEMENT THE 
BUDGET; AND PROVIDING FOR ADOPTION 

WHEREAS, the Town Commission adopted the Budget for the Town of Melbourne Beach for 
the fiscal year beginning October 1, 2020 and ending September 30, 2021 by Resolution No 2020-
13; and 

WHEREAS, this Resolution amends Resolution No 2020-13 covering the period October 1, 2020 
to September 30, 2021; and 

WHEREAS, the Town Commission of the Town of Melbourne Beach has conducted the requisite 
public hearing(s) on this resolution as required by Section 166.241, Florida Statues and Section 
15-6, Melbourne Beach Code of Ordinances. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Town Commission of the Town of Melbourne 
Beach, Florida, as follows: 

Section 1. That the 2020-2021 Town Budget for the General Fund and Resolution No 2020-13 
adopting the aforesaid amended budget, is hereby amended with the following amendments.  
Not all funds or accounts are depicted. Funds, accounts, and departmental budgets or 
appropriations not shown are not amended.  There are no revenue increases.  The overall 
budget bottom is not increased.  

#1 
Remove the $18,000 from Fund 125 Dept. 24 (Building) Transfer Out (125-00-581.00.00).  

  
Transfer $9,297 from General Fund (001) to the Debt Service Fund (201) to cover expenses. 
 
Transfer $3,000 from Long Term Capital (333) and put $1,500 in Ryckman Park Parking (001-
75) and put $1,500 in Ocean Park Parking Fund (172) for the cost of painting the parking spots. 
 
Increase the mil and repave roadway expenditure amount in the Stormwater Fund (341) from 
$437,241 to $695,238.14.  

Section 2. That the amounts shown in Section 1. of the Resolution are hereby appropriated out 
of the treasury of the Town and any revenues accruing to the Town available for said purposes 
of the Town’s budgetary accounts. 

Section 3. That the Town Manager is hereby authorized and directed to proceed with the 
implementation of the service programs and projects provided for in the budget. Such 

201



implementation is to be consistent with the provisions of the Town Code of Ordinances and 
policies established by the Mayor and Town Commission. 

Section 4. That the appropriations and authorizations provided in this resolution are hereby 
made effective as of August 18, 2021. 

 
 
PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Town Commission of the Town of Melbourne Beach, Brevard 
County, Florida, at its regular meeting this 18th day of August, 2021. 
 
 
       TOWN OF MELBOURNE BEACH, 
       FLORIDA, a Florida Municipal Corporation 
 
 
       By: ________________________________ 
        Wyatt R. Hoover, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Jennifer Torres 
Town Clerk 
 
(TOWN SEAL) 

 

202



203



204



205



206



Town Commission Agenda Item    
Section: New Business  

Meeting Date: August 18, 2021 

Subject:  Resolution 2021-06  

Submitted By: Town Clerk Torres 

Background Information:  

Resolution 2021-06 provides for a Zoning Application Amendment Fee of $1,000.00 plus 
$5,000.00 advance deposit for staff and administrative expenses.  

Recommendation: 

Approve Resolution 2021-06 

. 

Attachments:   

• Draft Ordinance 2021-06 
• Updated Fee Schedule 2021-06 

 
 

207



RESOLUTION 2021-06 

A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF MELBOURNE BEACH, BREVARD COUNTY, FLORIDA, AMENDING 
THE TOWN LAND DEVELOPMENT CODE APPLICATION FEE SCHEDULE; AMENDING TOWN 
RESOLUTION 2020-04; AMENDING THE LAND DEVELOPMENT CODE FEE SCHEDULE; ADDING A 
ZONING APPLICATION AMENDMENT FEE; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY, PROVIDING A REPEALING 
CLAUSE; PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE; AND PROVIDING FOR ADOPTION. 

 

WHEREAS, the Town Commission for the Town of Melbourne Beach has established a policy that land 
and building development activities be financed, to the greatest extent possible, by user fees; and  

WHEREAS, Section IA-4, Fees, of the Melbourne Beach Land Development Code authorizes the Town 
Commission to set land and building development fees by Resolution; and  

WHEREAS, Section 1A-5(e)(8), of the Melbourne Beach Land Development Code authorizes the Town 
Commission to set fees and charges for Land Development Code Text Amendment Applications; and  

WHEREAS, in setting non-proprietary fees or charges, the Town recognizes that it must either follow 
Florida Statutes or assure that the fee structure does not exceed the cost of providing the 
departmental service to the general public; and  

WHEREAS, other fees are set pursuant to the home rule powers of the Town of Melbourne Beach, 
Florida, as a Florida Municipal Corporation; and  

WHEREAS, pursuant to Resolution 2020-04, Exhibit "A" and "Exhibit B" the Town's current Land 
Development Code Fee Schedule was adopted and set; and  

WHEREAS, the Town Commission determines it to be in the public interest that additional fees be 
added or amended to the Land Development Code Fee Schedule adopted by Resolution 2021-05; and  

WHEREAS, the Town Commission has determined that it is necessary to review and amend the fees 
and charges associated with Town's Land Development Code Fee Schedule from time to time; and  

WHEREAS, the fees and charges shall be established by the appendage to this Resolution titled as  

"Exhibit 'A;"' and  

WHEREAS, Extraordinary Expenses shall be charged in accordance with the appendage to this 
Resolution titled "Exhibit 'B;"' and  

WHEREAS, the fees and charges related to zoning, comprehensive planning, variances, special 
exceptions, and the associated advertising are incorporated within "Exhibit 'A"' of this Resolution; and  

WHEREAS, on August 18, 2021 the Town Commission of the Town of Melbourne Beach considered 
this Resolution and approved the same in public session. 

208



 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE TOWN COMMISSION OF THE TOWN OF 
MELBOURNE BEACH, BREVARD COUNTY, FLORIDA, that:  
 
SECTION 1. APPL YING OF FEES: The fees and charges set forth in the attached and 
incorporated Exhibits "A" and "B" are hereby effective August 19, 2021, and shall hereby 
amend the fee schedule previously adopted by Town Resolution 2020-04.  
 
SECTION 2. SEVERABILITY: Should any section or provision of this Resolution be declared by a 
court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, that decision shall not affect the validity of the 
Resolution as a whole or any part thereof, other than the part so declared to be invalid.  
 
SECTION 3. REPEALING CLAUSE: All other Resolutions or part of Resolutions in conflict 
herewith, are to the extent of such conflict, hereby repealed.  
 
SECTION 4. EFFECTIVE DATE: This Resolution shall be in full force and effective immediately 
upon adoption and publication as provided by law.  
 
PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Town Commission of the Town of Melbourne Beach, Brevard 
County, Florida, at its regular meeting of the Town Commission on the 18th day of August, 
2021. 
 
 
PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Town Commission of the Town of Melbourne Beach, Brevard 
County, Florida, at its regular meeting this 18th day of August, 2021. 
         
       TOWN OF MELBOURNE BEACH,  
       FLORIDA, a Florida Municipal Corporation 
 
 
       By: ______________________________ 
         Wyatt Hoover, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
__________________________________  

 Jennifer Torres, Town Clerk      

209



 

FEE TYPE FEE EXPLANATION 
 
 

ADMINISTRATIVE APPEALS 
Administrative Appeals $250.00 Includes first two hearings by Board of Adjustment. Hearings and 

Continuances initiated by BOA are no charge. 
Appeals made by Applicant   

Town Staff $80.00 Per hour, per continuance 
Town Attorney Actual Cost Per hour, per continuance 
Town Planner Actual Cost Per hour, per continuance 
Outside Professional Services Actual Cost Per Contract Agreement 

CHANGE OF USE 
Application to Change Use $250.00 Zoning Districts: Commercial 6-B, 7-C, 8-B, Downtown Business, General 

Commercial, Residential Commercial 
Town Staff $80.00 Per hour, per continuance 
Town Attorney Actual Cost Per hour, per continuance 
Town Planner Actual Cost Per hour, per continuance 
Outside Professional Services Actual Cost Per Contract Agreement 
Advertising Actual Cost Per Invoice 

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN AMENDMENT 
Comprehensive Plan Amendment $1,000.00 Per Change 

Advertising Actual Cost Per Invoice 

SITE PLAN REVIEW 
Commercial Site Plan Review $1,200.00 Zoning Districts: 6-B, 7-C, 8-B, Downtown Business, General Commercial, 

Residential Business 
Residential Site Plan Review $500.00 Zoning Districts: 1-RS, 2-RS, 3-RS, New Single-Family Residence 
Residential Site Plan Modification $200.00 Zoning Districts: 1-RS, 2-RS, 3-RS 
Residential Site Plan Review $1,000.00 Zoning Districts: 4-RM, 5-RMO, New Multi-Family Res & Oceanfront 
Residential Site Plan Modification $750.00 Zoning Districts: 4-RM, 5-RMO, New Multi-Family Res & Oceanfront 

210



 

SPECIAL EXCEPTIONS 
Special Exceptions $1,000 Zoning Districts: Commercial 6-B, 7-C, 8-B, Downtown Business, General 

Commercial, Residential Business. Includes first two hearings by Board of 
Adjustment. Additional hearings or continuances initiated by 
BOA at no charge. 

Hearings Initiated by Applicants 
Town Staff Hours $80.00 Per hour, per continuance 
Town Attorney Actual Cost Per hour, per continuance 
Town Planner Actual Cost Per hour, per continuance 
Outside Professional Services Actual Cost Per Contract Agreement 
Advertising Actual Cost Per Invoice 

VARIANCES 
Commercial Variance $1,000 Zoning Districts: Commercial 6-8, 7-C, 8-B, Downtown Business, General 

Commercial, Residential Business. Includes first two hearings by Board of 
Adjustment. 

Hearings Initiated by Applicants 
Town Staff Hours $80.00 Per hour, per continuance 
Town Attorney Actual Cost Per hour, per continuance 
Town Planner Actual Cost Per hour, per continuance 
Outside Professional Services Actual Cost Per Contract Agreement 
Advertising Actual Cost Per Invoice 
Residential Variance $500.00 Zoning Districts: 1-RS, 2-RS, 3-RS. 4-RM, 5-RMO, Single Family Residence, 

Multi-Family Residence, Multi-Family Oceanfront Residence. Includes 
first two hearings by Board of Adjustment. Additional hearings or 
Continuances initiated by BOA at no charge. 

Hearings Initiated by Applicants 
Town Staff Hours $80.00 Per hour, per continuance 
Town Attorney Actual Cost Per hour, per continuance 
Town Planner Actual Cost Per hour, per continuance 
Outside Professional Services Actual Cost Per Contract Agreement 
Advertising Actual Cost Per Invoice 

211



 

ZONING 
Application Amendment Fee $1,000.00 plus $5,000.00 

advance deposit for staff 
and administrative 
expenses. NOTE: Applicant 
is responsible for actual 
costs which may exceed 
the deposit.  If/when 
deposit is exhausted, it 
will be replenished ($5000 
increments) by the 
applicant before 
proceeding further 

Per application 

Zoning Verification Letter $50.00   Per Letter 
Zoning Interpretation Actual Cost Per Hour 
Change Fee for Zoning $1,000.00 Per Change Request 
Advertising Zone Change Actual Cost Per Invoice 
Ordinance Development Actual Cost Per Ordinance 
Ordinance Advertising Actual Cost Per Advertisement 
Hearings Initiated by Applicants 
Town Staff Hours $80.00 Per hour, per continuance 
Town Attorney Actual Cost Per hour, per continuance 
Town Planner Actual Cost Per hour, per continuance 
Outside Professional Services Actual Cost Per Contract Agreement 
Advertising Actual Cost Per Invoice 

LDC TEXT AMENDMENT 
Text Amendment Application Pursuant to 
Sec. 1A-5, Code of Melbourne Beach 

$1,000.00 plus $5,000.00 
advance deposit for staff 
and administrative 
expenses. NOTE: Applicant 
is responsible for actual 
costs which may exceed 
the deposit.  If/when 
deposit is exhausted, it 
will be replenished ($5000 
increments) by the 
applicant before 
proceeding further. 

Per application  

Total Staff Hours $80.00 Per hour 

212



Town Attorney Actual Cost   Per hour 
Town Planner Actual Cost  Per hour 
Advertising Ordinance Actual Cost Planning & Zoning Board Public Hearing; Town Commission First and 

Second Readings 
 

LOCAL BUSINESS TAX 
Existing Business Tax Receipt Per Town Code Town Code of Ordinances Chapter 65 
New Business Zoning Review Actual Cost Per Review 
New Business Application Fee $25.00  

New Business Fire Review $75.00 Per Town Code and Florida Statute 
Annual Fire Inspections $75.00  

1st Fire Re-Inspection $30.00  

2nd Fire Re-Inspection $60.00  

All Subsequent Re-Inspections $60.00  

PUBLIC RECORDS REQUEST 
Single-Sided Copies .15 cents Not to exceed 8.5” x 14” 
Double-Sided Copies .20 cents Not to exceed 8.5” x 14” 
All Other Copies Actual Cost Per Florida Statute 119.07 
Certified Copies $1.00 Per Page Certification 
Inspection of Public Records Per Fl. Statute Per Florida Statute 119.07 
Computer Lien or Permit Search Free Address Search 
Manual Lien or Permit Search $15.00 Per Request 

213



 

POLICE CITATIONS 
Parking Tickets $50.00 Per Citation 
Equipment Check $4.00 Per Citation 
Off Duty Detail $40/hour Minimum of (4) Hours 

SPECIAL EVENTS 
Application Fee $75.00 Per Event 
Special Event Permit $150.00 1-299 Participants 
Special Event Permit $250.00 300-499 Participants 
Special Event Permit $350.00 500-750 Participants 
Special Event with Police Security Service $50.00 Per Hour, Per Officer. Minimum (4) Hour Charge 
Special Event With Public Works $30.00 Per Hour, Per Person 
Special Event with Fire Personnel $25.00 Per Hour, Per Person 
Alcohol Permit $200.00 Deposit Per Permit 

FACILITY RENTALS 
Community Center (Residents) $65.00 plus tax Per Hour. Melbourne Beach Residents (Monday-Friday) 
Community Center (Residents) $390 plus tax 6-Hour Minimum. Melbourne Beach Residents (Sat., Sun. & Holidays) 
Community Center (Residents) $65.00 plus tax Each Additional Hour Over 6-Hour Minimum for Residents 
Community Center (Non-Residents) $100.00 plus tax Per Hour. Non-Residents (Monday-Friday) 
Community Center (Non-Residents) $600.00 plus tax 6-Hour Minimum. Non-Residents (Sat., Sun. & Holidays) 
Community Center (Non-Residents) $100.00 plus tax Each Additional Hour Over 6-Hour Minimum for Non-Residents 
Community Center Damage Deposit $350.00 Refundable, 7-10 Days After Event 
Ryckman Park Pavilion (Residents) $30.00 plus tax Per Hour. Resident 
Ryckman Park Pavilion (Non-Resident) $45.00 plus tax Per Hour, Non-Resident 
Ryckman Park Pavilion Deposit $250.00 Refundable, 7-10 Days After Event 
Restroom Key $100.00 Refundable, 7-10 Days After Event 
Old Town Hall $25.00 plus tax Per Hour 
Old Town Hall Damage deposit $100.00 Refundable, 7-10 Days After Event 
Old Town Hall Key Deposit $100.00 Refundable, 7-10 Days After Event 

FOUNDERS DAY 
Arts & Crafts Vendor, Food Vendor, Alcohol As Determined Annually Per Space 

214



 

Extraordinary Expense: Must be paid in full prior to commencement 

In addition to the fee schedule adopted by the Town, the applicant shall be responsible for the payment of any 
extraordinary expense incurred by the Town in analyzing or reviewing all or any part of the application and other 
activities related to the land development as initiated by said application. Extraordinary expenses may include, 
but   shall not be limited to: specialized consultants, experts, planning consultants, engineering services, legal 
consultants (excluding for the purposes of litigation), or any other services necessary to evaluate the proposal of 
the applicant and to advise the Town regarding same. Such expense shall be charged to the applicant at the 
actual cost of fees and expenses incurred by the Town for these services. The Town may decide to obtain such 
services at the beginning of, or any time during, the development process. The Town shall notify the applicant of 
the Town's intention to retain such services in advance of incurring the expense on the behalf of the applicant. 
However, the Town's failure to provide said notice shall not relieve the applicant of its obligation to pay such 
expenses. The Town shall, within its sole discretion, determine when and whether to retain such services. 

Upon determination of the Town to retain such services, the applicant will be required to place a deposit with the 
Town to cover the anticipated cost of the required services. All expenses associated with such services including 
any administrative cost of the Town attributable to the service(s) shall be paid from the deposit. The deposit must 
be received by the Town prior to the Town proceeding with any action. Should the deposit be depleted prior to 
the completion of the development process, the applicant will be required to replenish the deposit prior to 
additional action on the part of the Town. Any unused portion of the deposit shall be refunded to the applicant 
within thirty (30) days from the date of the Certificate of Occupancy. Upon the request of the applicant, the Town 
Commission may review such extraordinary expenses as to the necessity and amount. 

215



216



Town Commission Agenda Item    
Section: New Business 

Meeting Date: August 18, 2021  

Subject: Proposed Updates to Town of Melbourne Beach Code of Ordinances as it  
  pertains to Fire Protection.   

Submitted By: Gavin Brown & Dave Micka 

Background Information:  

Proposed Updates to Town of Melbourne Beach Code of Ordinances as it pertains to Fire 
Protection. 

Recommendation: 

1) Update Chapter 11 to reflect current verbiage and additional items not addressed 
that are commonly found in other local municipalities.    

 
2) Update Chapter 45 to reflect current verbiage and requirements not addressed 

that are commonly found in other local municipalities.    
 

3) Creation of additional subsections in Chapter 45 to address the following items 
that are commonly found in other local municipalities: 

a. Fire inspections 
b. Imminent hazards 
c. Access boxes 
d. Pull station protection 
e. Fire protection system outages 
f. Recreational fires 

i. Beach fires 
ii. Residential/Commercial property fires 

 
Creation of new chapter (#75) to address hazardous material incident cost recovery 

.Attachments:   

• Proposed Town of Melbourne Beach Code of Ordinance updates (Chapter 11, 
45, & 75) 
 
 

217



§ 11-40.  ESTABLISHMENT. 

   (a)   Pursuant to Section 3.02 of the Town Charter, there is hereby established the 
Town Fire Department. 

('75 Code, § 11-16) (Ord., passed 9-25-68) 

 

§ 11-41.  POWERS AND DUTIES. 

   The functions of the Fire Department shall be as follows: 

(1) Inspections.   
a. Inspect all buildings, and structures and premises , except single-family and 

two-family dwellings, in the Town to prevent the occurrence of fire and to 
assure compliance with the fire prevention regulations adopted by the 
Town and establish an active and ongoing fire prevention program as 
outlined in the Standard Florida Fire Prevention Code, National Fire 
Protection Association, and current state statutes. 

(2) Firefighting.   
a. Extinguish fires and salvage property subsequent to such extinguishment. 

(3) Personnel.   
a. Recruit, train, and command volunteer members of the firefighting force 

and other Town employees whose duties relate to the Fire Department. 
(4) Maintenance of department property.   

a. Maintain departmental quarters, supplies and equipment in an orderly, 
neat and proper state. 

(5) Investigations and reports.   
a. Investigate fires, determine their cause and make damage estimates and 

regular and special reports, including the gathering of evidence for the 
prosecution of arson, where found. 

(6) Assisting police.   
a. Assist the Police Department with its duties and functions which relate to 

the Fire Department and as directed by the Town Manager. 
(7) Fire Chief to report to manager.  

a. The Fire Chief shall report to the Town Manager. The Fire Chief shall 
make reports as the Town manager may require including, but not limited 
to a monthly report of the status of the department to include responses to 
emergency calls for service.  

(8) Obedience to fire department officials. 
a. It is unlawful and a misdemeanor of the second degree, punishable as 

provided in FS. 775.082 or FS. 775.083, for any person willfully to fail or 
refuse to comply with any lawful order or direction of any member of the 
fire department at the scene of a fire, rescue operation, or other 
emergency. FS 316.072 (3)  

218

https://codelibrary.amlegal.com/codes/melbournebeach/latest/melbournebeach_fl/0-0-0-16686#JD_3.02
http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0700-0799/0775/Sections/0775.082.html
http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0700-0799/0775/Sections/0775.083.html


(9) Control of fire area.  
a. The Fire Chief or fire department officer in command at a fire, rescue 

operation, or other emergency shall have full control of any area and 
personnel in the vicinity of the fire, rescue operation, or emergency.  

(10) Obedience to fire lines.  
a. No person shall approach any closer to any fire than the fire line 

established by the Fire Chief or other member of the fire department.  
(11) Power to remove parked vehicle at the scene of fire, rescue operation, or 

emergency. 
a. When ordered by any member of the fire department, or other person 

under the control and supervision of the Fire Chief, in the vicinity of a fire, 
rescue operation, or emergency, no person shall fail or refuse to move a 
parked vehicle owned or operated by him/her, or under his/her control. 
F.S. 316.2025.  

(12) Control of firemen at fire, rescue operation, or other emergency.  
a. The Fire Chief or fire department officer in command at a fire shall have 

full control and supervision of all members of the fire department, 
volunteer or otherwise, during the progress of any fire, rescue operation, 
or other emergency. 

(13) Damaging, tampering with equipment. No person shall damage or tamper with 
any equipment or apparatus owned by or in the possession of the fire 
department. F.S. 806.13.  

      (7 14)   Other duties.  Perform such other duties as may be assigned by the Town 
Manager. 

('75 Code, § 11-17) (Ord. passed 9-25-68) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

219



45-0.  FIRE PROTECTION AND PREVENTION 

 

45-1. ADMINISTRATION 

The Fire Chief, or their designee, shall be responsible for fire and life safety 
inspections and the issuance of fire protection permits for occupancies other than 
single-family and two-family dwellings. 

45-2 ANNUAL FIRE INSPECTION REQUIRED; EXEMPTIONS. 

All buildings and structures within the Town, except single-family and two-family 
dwellings, shall have and be subject to an annual fire prevention inspection by the 
Town to insure compliance with all applicable provisions of the Florida Fire Prevention 
Code and the Life Safety Code as adopted by the Town. The owner or occupant of 
any building or structure subject to such an inspection shall have 30 days to correct 
violations identified as the result of such an inspection, unless a longer period of time 
for such corrective action is granted by the Town upon a showing of good cause. 

45-3 FIRE PROTECTION PERMIT FEES AND FIRE PREVENTION INSPECTION 

FEES. 

The fees for permits required by the Florida Fire Prevention Code and fire prevention 
inspections performed by the Town shall be those from time to time established by 
duly adopted resolution of the Town Commission. In such resolution, the Town 
Commission shall also have the authority to establish fees for administrative services 
including, but not limited to, site plan review, water flow tests and re-inspection. 

 

45-14.  FIRE PREVENTION CODE ADOPTED. 

   The Standard Florida Fire Prevention Code, and the Southern Building Code 
Congress International, Inc.,  1994  Florida Building Code latest editions, together with 
Appendices A, B, C, and D, is are hereby adopted as the Fire Prevention Code of the 
Town, except for those amendments listed herein, and by this reference is hereby 
incorporated and made a part of this chapter as though fully set forth at length herein. 

(Ord. 86-19, passed 12-9-86; Am. Ord. 92-12, passed 1-20-93; Am. Ord. 96-04, passed 
4-17-96) 

§ 45-65.  LIFE SAFETY CODE ADOPTED. 

   The 1994 latest edition of the National Fire Protection Association (NFPA) 101, Life 
Safety Code, shall be known as the “Town of Melbourne Beach Life Safety Code” and is 
hereby adopted by reference and incorporated herein as if fully set out. The provisions 

220



thereof shall be controlling within the Town except to the extent any such provision is in 
conflict with the Town Charter or any Town ordinance or provision therein. 

(Am. Ord. 92-12, passed 1-20-93; Am. Ord. 96-04, passed 4-17-96) 

 

§ 45-26.  CONFLICT. 

   In the event of any conflict between any provision, requirement or standard contained 
in this chapter, and any provision, requirement or standard contained in the Building 
Code of the Town as set forth in Chapter 4A, Appendix A, the more stringent provision, 
requirement or standard shall apply. 

(Ord. 86-19, passed 12-9-86; Am. Ord. 92-12, passed 1-20-93)) 

§ 45-37.  REPEALED. 

(Ord. 86-19, passed 12-9-86; Am. Ord. 92-12, passed 1-20-93; Repealed by Ord. 96-
04, passed 4-17-96) 

 

§ 45-58.  REVIEW OF BUILDING PLANS AND SPECIFICATIONS BY A FIRESAFETY 
INSPECTOR. 

   (a)   Purpose. The purpose of these provisions is to ensure that the citizens of the 
Town and the patrons of establishments located in the Town are protected in their life 
and property from the hazards of fire, explosion, and hazardous fumes which may 
accrue as a result of new construction, alteration or repair of buildings, and the erection 
of fences, hedges, and other barriers subsequent to the approved occupancy of a 
building. 

   (b)   Applicability. The provisions of this section apply to construction, erection, 
alteration, repair, or demolition in all zoning districts of the Town; provided, however, 
that one and two-family detached residential dwelling units in any zoning district, when 
used as a one or two-family detached residential dwelling units, shall not be subject to 
the provisions of this section. 

   (c)   Building plan review by a state certified Firesafety Inspector. The Building Official, 
in conjunction with the Fire Marshal Chief, or his/her designated representative, either of 
whom is a State of Florida certified FIRESAFETY INSPECTOR, as that term is defined 
in Section 633.052(1)(a), Florida Statutes, as amended, transferred, or revised, from 
time to time,  will review all plans and specifications for construction, erection. alteration, 
repair, or demolition before any permit is issued by the Town or the Building Official for 
said construction, erection, alteration, repair, or demolition. The review will be to ensure 
that the plans and specifications are in compliance with the building codes adopted in 
§§ 4A-20, 4A-21, 4A-65, 4A-66, 4A-81 through 4A-84, Appendix A, of this code, the 
Florida Fire Prevention Code adopted by § 45-1 4, and the applicable Life Safety Code 
adopted by § 45-6 5 of this code.  No permit for construction, erection, alteration, repair, 
or demolition, of a building, structure, illuminated sign, or change in occupancy 
classification, shall be issued until both officials have found the plans and specifications 

221

https://codelibrary.amlegal.com/codes/melbournebeach/latest/melbournebeach_fl/0-0-0-29675#JD_4A-20
https://codelibrary.amlegal.com/codes/melbournebeach/latest/melbournebeach_fl/0-0-0-29720#JD_4A-21
https://codelibrary.amlegal.com/codes/melbournebeach/latest/melbournebeach_fl/0-0-0-29765#JD_4A-65
https://codelibrary.amlegal.com/codes/melbournebeach/latest/melbournebeach_fl/0-0-0-29770#JD_4A-66
https://codelibrary.amlegal.com/codes/melbournebeach/latest/melbournebeach_fl/0-0-0-29772#JD_4A-81
https://codelibrary.amlegal.com/codes/melbournebeach/latest/melbournebeach_fl/0-0-0-29783#JD_4A-84
https://codelibrary.amlegal.com/codes/melbournebeach/latest/melbournebeach_fl/0-0-0-28931#JD_AppendixA
https://codelibrary.amlegal.com/codes/melbournebeach/latest/melbournebeach_fl/0-0-0-18965#JD_45-1
https://codelibrary.amlegal.com/codes/melbournebeach/latest/melbournebeach_fl/0-0-0-18992#JD_45-6


are in compliance with the aforementioned codes.  Any building or structure which is not 
subject to a fire safety code and any building or structure which is exempt from the local 
building permit process shall not be required to have its plans and specifications 
reviewed as provided herein. 

   (d)   Repealed. 

   (e)   Fences, hedges, and access or egress barriers.  No permit for the erection of a 
fence, hedge, or access or egress barrier shall be issued unless and until the completed 
application therefor has been reviewed by the Fire Chief to ensure that access to the 
property for firefighting purposes will not be impaired. A barrier to site access or egress 
may exist through erection of ornamental, decorative, or functional pillars, columns, or 
poles; flagpoles; exterior sign supports; or site landscaping which includes trees of a 
size to impede fire equipment access or damage fire equipment as a result of proximity 
to the entrance, exit, or interior driveways and vehicular aisles of the property. 

   (f)   Errors, omissions, or hazardous conditions detected on building plans will 
immediately be reconciled by informal consultation between the applicant, the Building 
Official and Fire Chief before a building permit is issued. If reconciliation cannot be 
effected, then the officials concerned will jointly and immediately request the Town 
Commission for a decision and provide written briefs to accompany their request. The 
issuance of a building permit in such cases will be held in abeyance pending decision of 
the Town Commission. 

('75 Code, § 11-8)  (Ord. 79-6, passed 3-13-79; Am. Ord. 97-03, passed 11-19-97) 

 

§ 45-9.  IMMINENT HAZARDS.  

   (a)   If, during a fire safety inspection, the Fire Chief, building official or designee 
thereof determines that a violation exists that poses an imminent and substantial 
danger to the public health, safety and welfare, the Fire Chief, building official or their 
designee may take such actions as deemed necessary in order to protect the public 
health, safety and welfare. The actions of the Fire Chief, building official or their 
designee shall include, but are not limited to: 

1. Issuing such corrective orders as may be necessary to protect the public 
from any imminent and substantial danger. An order issued by the Fire Chief, 
building official or their designee shall become effective immediately upon 
service of such order on the person in violation. 

b. Requesting the Town manager to cause the Town attorney to commence a 
civil action for appropriate relief, including a restraining order or permanent or 
temporary injunction. 

c. Authorizing any lawful action immediately necessary to summarily abate or 
correct any condition which presents an imminent and substantial hazard to life 
and property. 

222



   (b)   If If any person refuses to comply with any order or unlawfully interferes with the 
Fire Chief, building official or designee thereof carrying out any duties or functions 
prescribed by this section, the person shall be punished by a penalty or by 
imprisonment for a term not exceeding sixty (60) days or by both such penalty and 
imprisonment, in the discretion of a court of competent jurisdiction. 

 

§ 45-6.  LIFE SAFETY CODE ADOPTED. 

   The 1994 latest edition of the National Fire Protection Association (NFPA) 101, Life 
Safety Code, shall be known as the “Town of Melbourne Beach Life Safety Code” and is 
hereby adopted by reference and incorporated herein as if fully set out. The provisions 
thereof shall be controlling within the Town except to the extent any such provision is in 
conflict with the Town Charter or any Town ordinance or provision therein. 

(Am. Ord. 92-12, passed 1-20-93; Am. Ord. 96-04, passed 4-17-96) 

 

§ 45-10.  ACCESS BOX. 

 All structures that are required to have fire alarm, standpipe or sprinkler systems, shall 
provide a public safety key access box(es) for fire department use. The key box shall contain 
any key necessary for access to occupied floors within the structure for emergency fire and 
rescue purposes such as but not limited to keys for elevator return and door opening, elevator 
rooms, fire alarm box, electric rooms, and storage rooms. The key box system may be 
surface-mounted or flush-mount in an easily accessible location, (as determined by the fire 
department), at a height of 6 (six) feet or less to the top of the box. The fire department shall 
maintain possession of the only key. In the event locks are changed in any of the above-
mentioned rooms, the fire department shall be notified immediately. 

 

§ 45-11.  PULL STATION PROTECTION. 

All exterior fire alarm pull stations on new and existing buildings shall be protected by 
a weatherproof guard to deter false alarms. 

 

§ 45-12.  FIRE PROTECTION SYSTEM OUTAGES. 

If any fire protection system installed in a structure including fire alarm systems, goes 
out of service for any reason, the owner or tenant shall notify the fire department 
within four (4) hours. An approved fire watch will be implemented until the fire 
protection system is operational again. Repairs shall be made to the fire protection 
systems within seventy-two (72) hours. The fire department shall be notified in writing 
of the date of completion. In the event repairs cannot be completed with seventy-two 
(72) hours, the plans and schedule for repairs shall be coordinated with and approved 
by the fire department. Any repairs, testing, or inspections, of existing standpipe 

223



and/or sprinkler system, including underground piping and valves, shall be done by a 
company that is certified by the State of Florida for installation and repair of fire 
protection systems. When the system is operational again a copy of the fire watch 
documentation shall be provided to the fire department. 

 

§ 45-413.  OPEN BURNING RESTRICTIONS. 

   (a)   No person shall kindle or maintain any bonfire or rubbish fire (including but not 
limited to trash, shrubs, trees, litter, motor oil, combustible or flammable liquids, 
wooden pallets, construction waste products or any other materials) within the limits of 
the Town.  

   (b)   Open cooking fires within a residential or commercial building are permitted. 

   (c b)   Open Cooking fires located on the , including beach cooking fires (not within a 
residential or commercial building), shall be permitted, providing: 

      (1)   The beach cooking fire shall only be fueled by charcoal propane within a self-
contained cooking apparatus. 

      (2)   The beach cooking fire shall not be kindled located within 25 feet seaward of 
the dune or vegetation line. 

      (3)   The residue from the beach cooking fire be removed from the beach by the 
parties responsible for the fire and disposed of elsewhere in a safe manner so as not to 
be a nuisance to anyone else. 

      (4)   The fire shall be constantly attended by a competent person until the fire is 
extinguished. 

      (5)   The Fire Chief or his designated representative may prohibit any such fires 
when atmospheric conditions or local circumstances make such fires hazardous. 

(c)   Cooking fires not located on the beach shall be permitted, providing: 

      (1)   The cooking fire shall be contained within the confines of a BBQ Grill or 
similar device used solely for cooking purposes. 

(2)   The cooking fire shall only be fueled by charcoal, natural wood (no lumber or 
construction materials), propane or butane within the self-contained cooking apparatus. 

      (3)   The cooking fire must be a minimum of 10 feet from any structure or 
combustible material. 

 

   (d)   Recreational beach fires are only allowed by permit in compliance with the 
following: 

(1) Beach fire permits are only available during non-turtle nesting season (November 
– February). 

224



(2) Beach fires are allowed daily from 5 p.m. to 10 p.m. with a permit in Town 
designated fire pits only.  

(3) Beach fires are only allowed in Town designated fire pits.  

(4) Applicant must be 21 years of age or older.  

(5) Proof of Driver's License or State-issued ID will be required to obtain a Permit. 
This is important since the permittee will be responsible for all individuals 
attending the beach fire activity and will be expected to sign a waiver for the 
attendees of the beach fire. The permittee must be on site at all times during 
scheduled time listed on Permit. They must have in their possession a copy of 
this permit (paper or digital) and present it upon the request of a Fire Official or 
Police Officer.  

(6) The number of attendees at a beach fire is limited to 20 persons 16 years of age 
and older  

(7) Beach fires shall not exceed three (3) feet in flame height. Anything greater shall 
be considered a bonfire which is prohibited. 

(8) The use of flammable and/or combustible liquids to ignite or fuel fires is 
prohibited. Solid fire starter must be used to ignite your fire. Permit holders must 
have extinguishment material available such as a bucket of water or sand and a 
shovel.  

(9) Vegetation or materials located within the beach park or on the beach are not 
allowed to be taken, damaged, or used as material to burn. 

(10) Only commercially purchased seasoned dry firewood or artificial logs (duraflame 
type products) are to be used. These products can be purchased at most 
grocery stores and hardware stores. NO EXCEPTIONS. The use of beach 
driftwood, lumber, plywood, pallets, creosote treated lumber, glue impregnated 
material, plastic, foam, rubber, household trash, trees, Christmas trees or any 
wood that is painted, has nails, pressure treated, or such is PROHIBITED. 
Violations are subject to fines, penalties, cleanup costs, total loss of deposit and 
revocation of permit. The fire will be immediately extinguished, and the permit 
holder may be denied future permits.  

(11) The Town, through any of its applicable departments, reserves the right to 
cancel or revoke any permit if the Town believes a violation or unsafe conditions 
are present. 

(12) All beach fires must be thoroughly extinguished, cooled down and cleaned up 
prior to 10 PM. The beach fire site MUST BE FULLY CLEANED prior to your 
departure. Cleanup and restoration of the site must be completed by the 
expiration date and time set forth by the issued permit. All ash and leftover 
material must be thoroughly wet down and allowed to properly cool before 
being removed from the beach. A Town supplied metal container is to be used 
for removal of any leftover material. At no time should warm embers be placed 
in any trash receptacles. The fire pit must be leveled to return the beach to its 
previous status. MATERIAL AND/OR ASH SHALL NOT BE BURIED IN THE 

225



SAND, THROWN IN THE OCEAN OR PLACED IN PLASTIC GARBAGE 
RECEPTACLES AT THE BEACH. Beach fire sites will be inspected post 
cleanup. Failure to clean the site will result in a total loss of deposit, and permit 
holder will be banned from future beach fires.  

(13) Smoke complaints may result in the fire being required to be extinguished. 

(14) Unsuitable wind or weather conditions must be taken into consideration prior to 
and during the time of the permitted beach fire. If unsuitable conditions exist and 
permit must be canceled, the Town will contact the permittee at the contact 
phone number provided before the start of permitted time. 

(15) The Town will make every effort to contact the permittee at least 2 hours prior 
to activity, however, due to wind and weather conditions that may arise, the 
Town, has the right to cancel permitted activity at any time or to request 
extinguishment of fire at any time. 

(16) Anytime the State or County has issued a red flag warning or a drought exists, 
no permits will be issued and permits will be canceled. For cancellations made 
by the Town based on these conditions, the Town may issue a refund or offer 
another day to the permittee as an option. 

(17) Should the permittee cancel their event for any reason, other than for severe 
weather or safety-related issues, refunds may not be issued, so please plan 
your activity accordingly. 

(18) Beach fire permits are subject to public record request.  
(19) The amount of the permit fee and deposit shall be determined by the Town 

commission. 

(e)   Recreational fires located on a residential or commercial property, shall be 
permitted, providing: 

(1)   The recreational fire shall be contained within the confines of a metal or 
masonry pit, outdoor fireplace, portable outdoor fireplace, or similar device not 
greater than 9 sq feet fire box area for pleasure, religious, ceremonial, warmth or 
similar purposes. 
(2)   Flame height not greater than three (3) feet. Anything greater shall be 
considered a bonfire which is prohibited. 
(3)   The recreational fire shall only be fueled by charcoal, natural wood (no 
lumber or construction materials), propane or butane. 
(4) The burning of other materials including but not limited to lumber, plywood, 
pallets, creosote treated lumber, glue impregnated material, plastic, foam, 
rubber, household trash, shrubs, trees, Christmas trees, litter, motor oil, 
combustible or flammable liquids or any wood that is painted, has nails, 
pressure treated, or such is  considered a rubbish fire which is PROHIBITED. 

(5)   The recreational fire must be a minimum of 10 feet from any structure or 
combustible material. 

226



(6)   Must have a method to put out the fire (such as a hose or fire 
extinguisher) capable of total extinguishment of the burn area. 
(7)   Must have an adult in attendance at all times until extinguished.  
(8)   Smoke complaints may result in the fire being required to be extinguished. 
(9)   Violations of the above are subject to fines, penalties, and the fire will be 
immediately extinguished.  
(10)  Anytime the State or County has issued a red flag warning, or a drought exists, or 
if weather conditions are such that an open fire would present a hazard to life or 
property the Fire Chief or his designee is authorized to require that the fire will be 
immediately extinguished. Failure to comply can result in fines and penalties. 
 

 

(Ord. 87-14, passed 9-22-87) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

227



§ 75-0. HAZARDOUS MATERIALS INCIDENTS COST RECOVERY 

§ 75-1.INTENT AND PURPOSE; STATUTORY AUTHORITY; JURISDICTION. 

(a) Intent and purpose. This article is intended to provide for recovery by the Town, a 
political subdivision, its agencies or agents, of costs incurred in response and recovery 
efforts related to hazardous material incidents. In addition, it is intended to provide for 
cost recovery for damages to natural resources and government-owned properties. 

(b) Authority. The Town Commission has the authority to adopt this article pursuant to 
the provisions of F.S. chs. 166 and 252. When the Melbourne Beach Vol Fire 
Department provides response for hazardous materials incidents it shall have the 
authority to take whatever action it determines to be necessary to contain and mitigate 
the situation in the interest and well-being of the public. The fire department personnel 
shall be authorized to contact hazardous waste disposal companies to provide 
expeditious mitigation of hazardous materials incidents. Severity and toxiTown of the 
incident may be considered in evaluating the response capability of each private 
company for each incident. 

(c) Jurisdiction. This article shall apply to the Town of Melbourne Beach, located in 
Brevard County in the State of Florida. 

§ 75-2 DEFINITIONS. 

The following words, terms and phrases, when used in this article, shall have the 
meanings ascribed to them in this section, except where the context clearly indicates a 
different meaning: 

Costs means and includes, but is not limited to: 

(1) All costs incurred for remedial actions, to include response, incident assessment, 
control, containment, abatement, disposal, including costs associated with 
transportation, temporary storage, permanent storage or disposal of hazardous 
materials if such transportation, temporary storage, permanent storage or disposal is 
necessary to control, contain and abate the hazardous materials incident. 

(2) Damages for injury to, destruction of or loss of natural resources, as determined by 
the appropriate local, state or federal agency, including the reasonable costs of 
assessing such injury, destruction or loss resulting from a hazardous material incident. 

(3) Health costs for persons or animals injured from or costs of any health assessment 
or health effects study carried out as a necessity resulting from a hazardous material 
incident. 

228



(4) Costs of labor, including benefits, overtime and administrative overhead, for time 
devoted specifically to the hazardous materials incident including personnel costs to 
"backfill" when necessary, in order to maintain sufficient personnel for response to 
other emergencies or requests for service. 

(5) Costs of equipment, operation, leasing, repair and replacement where necessary. 

(6) Costs of contract labor and equipment. 

(7) Costs of labor and equipment, including rental or leased equipment, utilized or 
contracted by the Town of Melbourne Beach to the extent such labor and equipment is 
necessary for emergency response, incident assessment, control, containment and 
abatement of the immediate hazard. Costs for equipment, owned and operated by the 
Town of Melbourne Beach and owned and operated by a governmental agency shall 
be those contained in the Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA) Schedule 
of Equipment rates in force at the time of the incident. Rates for equipment not listed 
in the schedule will be requested from FEMA if necessary. Labor costs of operators 
are not included in the schedule and shall be considered as separate. 

(8) Costs of materials such as sorbents, foam, dispersants, neutralization agents, 
overpack drums or containers, etc. 

(9) Costs of supervision and verification of cleanup and abatement. 

Hazardous material means any substance or material defined, listed, characterized or 
classified as a hazardous material, hazardous substance, hazardous waste or toxic 
substance according to chapter 38F-41, Florida Administrative Code (the Florida 
Substance List); title 40 Code of Federal Regulations 261 (Identification and Listing of 
Hazardous Wastes); title 40 Code of Federal Regulations 3,021.4 (Designation of 
Hazardous Substances); title 40 Code of Federal Regulations 355, appendices A and 
B (List of Extremely Hazardous Substances); and title 49 Code of Federal Regulations 
172.101 and 172.102 (Hazardous Materials Tables). 

Hazardous material incident means actual or threatened release of hazardous 
substances or materials, including hazardous waste, which pose an imminent threat to 
the health, safety or welfare of the population. 

Hazardous substance means a substance or material that the United States Secretary 
of Transportation has determined is capable of posing an unreasonable risk to health, 
safety, and property when transported in commerce, and has designated as 
hazardous under section 5103 of Federal hazardous materials transportation law (49 
U.S.C. 5103). The term includes hazardous substances, hazardous wastes, marine 
pollutants, elevated temperature materials, materials designated as hazardous in the 
Hazardous Materials Table (see 49 C.F.R. 172.101), and materials that meet the 
defining criteria for hazard classes and divisions in 49 C.F.R. 173. 

229



Natural resources means land, fish, wildlife, biota, air, water, groundwater, drinking 
water supplies and other such resources belonging to, managed by, held in trust by, 
appertaining to or otherwise controlled by the county, county agencies and the 
municipalities. 

Person means an individual, firm, corporation, association, partnership, commercial 
entity, consortium, joint venture, governmental entity or any other legal entity. 

Recovery means a phase of emergency management which restores the site of an 
incident to pre-emergency conditions. 

Release means the accidental or intentional, sudden or gradual spilling, leaking, 
pumping, pouring, emitting, emptying, discharging, injecting, escaping, leaching, 
dumping or disposing into the environment (including the abandonment or discarding 
of barrels, containers and other receptacles containing any hazardous material or 
substance or waste or pollutant or contaminant). 

Response means a phase of emergency management which occurs during and 
immediately following an incident, provides emergency assistance to victims of the 
event, and reduces the likelihood of secondary damage. 

Responsible party means the person whose negligent or intentional act or omission 
caused a release, or the person who owned or had custody or control of the 
hazardous substance or waste at the time of such release without regard to fault or 
proximate cause, or the person who owned or had custody or control of the container 
which held the hazardous substance at the time or immediately prior to such release 
without regard to fault or proximate cause. 

§ 75-3 LIABILITY FOR COSTS. 

(a) Any responsible party who causes a hazardous material incident shall be liable for 
the payment of all costs incurred by the Town and its agents for response to and 
remediation of such an incident. 

(b) The Town will seek all available remedies at law, to include the provisions of this 
article, against any parties responsible for any environmentally damaging event, to 
include those actions and remedies available under the U.S. Bankruptcy Code relating 
to such matters. 

§ 75-4 COLLECTION AND DISBURSEMENT OF FUNDS. 

(a) Agent for collection. The Town Finance Department may serve as the Town's 
agent for collecting invoices and billing the responsible party for costs. Agencies of the 
Town and organizations responding to a hazardous materials incident at the request 

230



of the Town will be eligible to submit bills. A third-party cost recovery collection service 
may be utilized by the Town. 

(b) Submission of invoices. Invoices identifying eligible costs under this article shall be 
submitted to the Finance Department within 30 days after the cost was incurred or 
identified. Submitted invoices should include sufficient documentation for cost 
reimbursement (i.e., copies of time sheets for specific personnel, copies of bills for 
materials, equipment and supplies procured or used, etc.). Accepting invoices from 
agencies outside the Town shall not incur liability to the Town to pay costs from such 
agencies until payment is received by the Town from the responsible party. 

(c) Method of payment. The Finance Department shall submit one or a series of 
consolidated invoices to the responsible party identifying agencies, agents or 
municipalities and their specific costs of reimbursements. The responsible party shall 
issue a certified check to each eligible agency, agent or municipalities requesting cost 
recovery for the amount incurred, within 60 days of receiving a consolidated invoice. 

§ 75-5 METHODS OF ENFORCEMENT. 

(a) Supplemental beneficial projects (SBP). This article shall not prohibit the Town of 
Melbourne Beach from entering into binding agreements with the responsible party for 
monetary payment, provided that all or part of the responders agree with the SBP in 
lieu of payment or the Town of Melbourne Beach accepts the SBP and compensates 
the other responders. SBPs are projects which a responsible party agrees to 
undertake to benefit the emergency response entity but is not otherwise legally 
required to perform. The SBP must have a direct benefit to the responding entity of the 
Town of Melbourne Beach and the value of the SBP can be used to offset monetary 
payment on a dollar for dollar basis. There is no minimum or maximum amount of 
monetary payment that can be offset by a SBP. 

(b) Civil action. The Town may enforce the provisions of this article by civil action in a 
court of competent jurisdiction for the collection of any amounts due under this article 
plus administrative collection costs and attorneys' fees, or for any other relief that may 
be appropriate. A certified copy of a judgment in favor of the Town may be recorded in 
the public records and thereafter shall constitute a lien upon any real or personal 
property owned by such person; and such lien shall be coequal with the lien of all 
state, district and municipal taxes, superior in dignity to all other liens, titles and claims 
until paid or extinguished. 

(c) Other remedies. This article shall not prohibit the Town from pursuing any other 
remedy, whether civil or criminal, or from instituting any appropriate action or 
proceedings, including injunction in a court of competent jurisdiction, nor shall the 
recovery of extraordinary expenses under this article in any way release the various 
parties, or limit them, from legal liability incurred as a result of hazardous material 
cleanup or abatement as defined under any local, state or federal rule or regulation. 

231



232



Town Commission Agenda Item    
Section: New Business 

Meeting Date: August 18, 2021 

Subject:   Landscaping 

Submitted By: Public Works Director Davis  

Background Information:  

The landscaping areas in Town have been expanded with plans to greatly expand those 
areas even more.  Our vision is to create landscaped areas to offer more aesthetic appeal 
by use of colorful plantings in various locations. These plants will be non-invasive plants 
with all types of flowering plants to include some Florida native as defined by the 
University of Florida.    

The existing areas alone will require a great deal of attention to keep them in a pristine 
state.  Bi-Centennial Park alone is very large plus the areas along the river front near the 
pier just to point out two of the very large areas.  Our belief is that all our Town owned 
areas should reflect an image that is visually appealing and additionally set the example 
for our residents. 

We have had some very dedicated volunteers but the task of keeping these areas nice is a 
rather daunting task to cast upon volunteers. 

Recommendation: 

Given our desire to accomplish this mission I would request that the Commission 
consider contracting a landscaping company.  Our current mowing contractor does not 
possess the expertise to carry out this work.  I believe having a contractor that devotes 
their efforts to just our landscaping will be better.  I do not feel that proper attention can 
be provided by Public Works to keep what should be very attractive areas beautiful. 

Before I came to this conclusion I did speak with the Public Works Directors of 
Indialantic and Indian Harbour Beach.  The following information was obtained: 

Indialantic has 6 full time employees and 4 part-time employees.  They do contract out 
the general mowing and edging.   

Indian Harbour Beach has 14 full time employees.  They do their own mowing in house.  
One employee is a mechanic and is responsible for keeping the equipment operating  

 

233



 

234



       Town Manager Report for August 2021 
1. As of August 12, 1762 parking permits have been issued.   
  
2.  The current year-to-date revenues: $72,284 
 March revenue:   $ 2,700.25          Units:   OPark-444,     Ryckman-444        Cr Overs  -1 
       April revenue:     $14,081.25 Units:   OPark-1923    Ryckman-941        Cr Overs-323 
 May revenue:  $22,645.24 Units:   OPark-2310,   Ryckman-1347      Cr Overs-601  
 June revenue:  $18,383.04 Units:   OPark-1992,   Ryckman-1322      Cr Overs-366 
 July revenue:  $22,142.46  Units:   OPark-2490,   Ryckman-1272      Cr Overs-504 

 
3.  The Orange Street Paving Project has been completed on schedule.  I received the final bill with a 
Change Order reducing the project cost by $61,644.46 due to the reduction in landscaping, erosion 
control, swale grading, seed and sod and the removal of mailboxes and stop signs. 

4.  Remaining with Health First for the employee health insurance plan is the most beneficial and 
least expense cost to the employee and the Town.  I anticipate a more competitive marketplace next 
year as the insurance companies will have adequate time to file their upcoming premiums with the 
Insurance Commissioner.  The search for a new health insurance carrier will begin next summer. 
 
5.  The Police Officers via the Union, have agreed to the 3% increase for FY22. 
 
6.  I was selected to serve as the Secretary for the Space Coast Public Management Association for 
the next year.  Our meeting will return to virtual meetings in August. 
 
7.  I spoke with a Representative from the Electric Car Company who took the Town’s information 
and what we are interested in and pushed our request further up the response line. 
 
8. I spoke with Rachel Rutledge about the intern program for Brevard County Schools students and 
how the Town might participate in that program.  We will have a follow up conversation to discuss 
possible option. 
 
9.  Public Works Director Davis and I attend a meeting of Island Managers and Public Works 
Directors to discuss the possibility of splitting a sand bagging machine that could fill 1200 sand bags 
per hour.  More research is being conducted as well as site plan reviews on where the equipment 
could be stored.  There was additional discussion about raccoons devastating turtle nests in Satellite 
Beach.  Satellite is hiring a company to euthanize the raccoons and take preventative measures to 
stop a reoccurrence.  The cost is $9,000.  City Manager Barker suggested each Town on the Island 
look into having an analysis done of predation issues. 
 
10.  Attended P&Z meeting.  Board has asked for an agenda item (New Business-August) to be able 
to speak with Town Planner and Attorney regarding Town Code.  Attended Parks Board meeting, 
also an agenda item ( New Business August) approving Board Logo, monthly lecture series, and 
evening yoga in Ryckman Park. 
 
11.  I have received confirmation on the amount the Town will receive under the American Rescue 
Plan, 1,651,815.00  I have not seen all of the conditions required to use the money. 

235



236



 
Building Department Report   

July 2021 
 

• 60 permits issued 
• Construction Value of the 60 permits totaled $833,368.00 
• Total Permit fees $11,597.27 
• 119 inspections completed 
• 64 plans reviewed 
• 3 Site Plan review for P&Z 
• 1 BTR reviews 
• 1 Vacation Rental inspections 
•  0 New homes 

A comment on New Homes:  The Building Department is working with 7 different 
properties in the development of new homes.  If this trend continues, there will be an 
increase in new homes over the current fiscal year. 
 

Period 10/01 – 07/31 FY 2019 FY 2020 FY 2021 

Inspections 1,674 1,754 1,439 

    

Permits Issued 563 602 573 

    

Construction Value $9,819,651 $9,963,676 $10,652,663 

    

Fees $123,674 $134,736 $130,957 
 

This comparison is to provide the observed direction in the flow of work and 
permitting.  Please take note that the number of permits is lower, however, the 
construction value is higher.  This is following a current trend due to product and 
contractor availability.  It is foreseeable in the next year there may be a reduction in 
the number of permits as the cost of materials and the high demand for contractors.   
We are noting there are longer waiting periods for materials.  An example: if you 
want to replace windows, currently most waiting times for materials is @ 6-8 months.  
If you are building or resurfacing a pool the wait time is @ 1.5 years.   

237



Permit Description Issue Company Address

MB20_432 PV SOLAR, INSTALL

7/20/2021 BOB HEINMILLER 411 SIXTH AVE

MB21_249 FENCE
7/2/2021 Carrie's Fence of Palm Bay 401 RIVER VIEW LN

MB21_268 FENCE AND GATE, INSTALL
7/2/2021 Carrie's Fence of Palm Bay 303 SHANNON AVE

MB21_285 FENCE, INSTALL
7/2/2021 Carrie's Fence of Palm Bay 312 OAK ST

MB21_287 FENCE AND GATE, INSTALL
7/2/2021 Carrie's Fence of Palm Bay 307 BANYAN WAY

MB21_299 Pool Resurface
7/12/2021 Brevard Pools Inc 215 CHERRY DR

MB21_300 PAVERS, DRIVEWAY/WALKWAY/BOAT PAD
7/14/2021 Surfside Pavers Inc. 509 ANDREWS DR

MB21_322 PAVERS, DRIVEWAY

7/15/2021 MANICURE AMERICA LANDSCAPING 410 FIFTH AVE

MB21_328 GARAGE DOOR, REPLACE

7/9/2021 QUALITY GARAGE DOOR SERVICES 413 SECOND AVE

MB21_334 FENCE, INSTALL
7/2/2021 Carrie's Fence of Palm Bay 405 RIVERSIDE DR

MB21_336 PAVERS, DRIVEWAY

7/20/2021 ELITE PAVERS & PRICE RITE PAINTING INC 512 AVENUE B

MB21_340 WINDOWS

7/7/2021 Window World of Central Florida Inc 305 THIRD AVE

MB21_342 DOORS

7/30/2021 Tropical Dreams Renovations 1910 CEDAR LN

238



MB21_345 SEAWALL
7/7/2021 Dock Masters Inc 447 RIVER VIEW LN

MB21_346 REROOF
7/14/2021 Patrick Roofing Inc 604 SHANNON AVE

MB21_349 DOOR

7/15/2021 SUNSET VIEW CONSTRUCTION 452 SANDY KEY

MB21_352 WALL, DECK, DEMOLITION OF POOL

7/15/2021 Excel Construction Corp 313 OAK ST

MB21_359 PLUMBING, REPLACE
7/14/2021 Drain Mechanics LLC 100 RIVERSIDE DR

MB21_361 GAS LINE, REPLACE
7/7/2021 ERIC THE GAS MAN 305 HIBISCUS TRL

MB21_362 INTERIOR REMODEL

7/26/2021 Coastal Builders of Brevard LLC 809 ATLANTIC ST  0

MB21_363 WINDOW/INTERIOR REMODEL
7/12/2021 Schopke & Maguire Inc. 701 RIVERSIDE DR

MB21_364 RE ROOF W/FLAT
7/1/2021 DC ROOFING 536 SUNSET BLVD

MB21_365 RE ROOF W/FLAT
7/1/2021 DC ROOFING 213 SURF RD

MB21_366 WINDOWS/SGD, REPLACE

7/7/2021 Window World of Central Florida Inc 300 SURF RD

MB21_367 HVAC, REPLACE

7/7/2021 Brevard Cooling and Heating Inc 503 SECOND AVE

MB21_368 GARAGE DOOR, REPLACE

7/9/2021 Atlantic Garage Doors of So.  Brevard Inc. 1400 ORANGE ST

MB21_369 WINDOWS AND DOORS, REPLACE

239



7/7/2021 500 HIBISCUS TRL

MB21_370 HVAC, REPLACE

7/9/2021 ABLE AIR, INC 103 OAK ST

MB21_371 RE ROOF, W/FLAT

7/7/2021 G&G ROOFING CONSTRUCTION INC 604 HIBISCUS TRL

MB21_372 METER CAN, REPLACE/FPL

7/6/2021 LIGHTHOUSE ELECTRIC SERVICE 310 SIXTH AVE

MB21_373 PROPANE TANK, INSTALL
7/7/2021 COMO OIL & PROPANE 501 RIVERSIDE DR

MB21_375 SHUTTERS, INSTALL

7/8/2021 BIG WAVE STORM SHUTTERS 510 HIBISCUS TRL

MB21_376 RE ROOF
7/7/2021 PRO'S CHOICE ROOFING LLC 215 BIRCH AVE

MB21_378 GARAGE DOOR, REPLACE
7/12/2021 Tropical Doors Inc 401 FOURTH AVE

MB21_379 DOOR, sliding glass replace
7/14/2021 Lowe's Home Centers 2050 ATLANTIC ST  322

MB21_380 RE ROOF
7/13/2021 Florida Top Shield Roofing Inc 1200 ATLANTIC ST

MB21_381 HVAC, REPLACE

7/15/2021 Walters Refrigeration & A/C 310 SUNSET BLVD

MB21_384 Electric, Replace
7/30/2021 EAU GALLIE ELECTRIC, INC. 507 OCEAN AVE  T.H&PD

MB21_385 PAVERS, INSTALL

7/21/2021 Surfside Pavers Inc. 209 ASH AVE

MB21_387 PAVERS, DRIVEWAY

240



7/21/2021 MANICURE AMERICA LANDSCAPING 452 SANDY KEY

MB21_388 PAVERS, POOL DECK
7/21/2021 Surfside Pavers Inc. 503 ANDREWS DR

MB21_389 GENERATOR AND PROPANE, INSTALL
7/21/2021 EAU GALLIE ELECTRIC, INC. 432 RIVER VIEW LN

MB21_391 PAVERS, DRIVEWAY
7/30/2021 Dave Nielsen LLC 504 HARLAND AVE

MB21_392 WINDOWS, REPLACE

7/26/2021 STEHEN A SHEEHAN AND ASSOCIATES INC 1400 ATLANTIC ST  A

MB21_393 PAVERS, WALKWAY AND DECK
7/23/2021 ALLIANCE PAVERS 318 SIXTH

MB21_394 INTERIOR DEMOLITION

7/22/2021 ATLANTIC BUILDING & DEVELOPMENT LLC 312 HIBISCUS TRL

MB21_395 PAVERS, WALKWAY
7/23/2021 ALLIANCE PAVERS 225 FOURTH AVE

MB21_396 ELECTRIC, REPLACE
7/23/2021 E Z Electric Inc 430 RIVER VIEW LN

MB21_397 RE ROOF, FLAT W/SKYLIGHTS

7/20/2021 CCC HOLDING COMPANY INC 400 ATLANTIC ST

MB21_398 RE ROOF
7/27/2021 Hippo Roofing 408 RIVER VIEW LN

MB21_399 REMODEL, INTERIOR

7/22/2021 ATLANTIC BUILDING & DEVELOPMENT LLC 312 HIBISCUS TRL

MB21_401 PROPANE, INSTALL
7/20/2021 AMERIGAS PROPANE LP (2) 207 ELM AVE

MB21_402 RE ROOF

7/27/2021 Pro-Tech Roofing of Brevard 507 AVENUE B

241



MB21_407 DEMOLITION SINGLE FAMILY HOME

7/30/2021 Sun Quality Builders LLC 407 THIRD AVE

MB21_409 HVAC, REPLACE
7/29/2021 ABLE AIR, INC 1802 PINE ST

MB21_410 SHUTTERS, INSTALL
7/29/2021 Affordable Glass Protection Inc 1709 PINE ST

MB21_411 PAVERS, REPLACE
7/29/2021 Dave Nielsen LLC 508 HARLAND AVE

MB21_412 HCAC, REPLACE

7/29/2021 COMFORT EXPERTS USA INC 200 SHANNON AVE

MB21_416 WATER HEATER, INSTALL

7/27/2021 Tucker's Cutrate Plumbing & Service 527 AVENUE B

MB21_417 FENCE, INSTALL
7/27/2021 220 SIXTH AVE

242



Public Works Activities 

July 2021 

 

Continued ditch witch cleaning of stormwater baffle boxes 

Coordinated proper installation of Florida High Speed Internet connection 

Moved connex box position to allow room for new building 

Repaired flagpole for life guard flags Ocean Park 

Trimmed some crossover areas 

Cleaned PW garage areas 

Filled emergency generator fuel prep for storm season 

Mowed and clean landscape front of post office 

Cleaned parks of heavy presences of blown down palm branches 

Installed sides on flatbed dump truck 

Removed and replaced all sand on the volleyball courts 

Installed pole covers and nets volleyball courts/ground markings installed 

Moved speed trailer numerous times for PD 

Had large Austrialian pine removed behind Neptune by oak – leaning threat to property 

Continued monitoring of Orange project and viewed final 

Corrected loose manhole cover at elm and rosewood 

Repaired potholes riverside dr.  

Sodded area of berm Magnolia where washed out 

Trimmed some areas at Ocean Park 

Inspected trip hazard 200 block cherry 

Set up Community Center for meeting 

Replaced toilet seat in PD 

243



Placed a rat screen roof area over FD 

Patched leaking irrigation well pipe 300 block ocean 

Repaired sprinkler 1505 Orange 

Repaired picnic table on pier 

Replaced irrigation control box Ryckman by pier 

Dug swale on ash near orange 

Replaced lock on irrigation control box Ryckman 

Repaired and covered a very old stormwater drain 501 Riverside 

Trimmed tree by ocean ave school crossing light prior to start of school 

Installed new led outside lights ocean park restrooms 

Street sweeping 

Cleaned up railroad display areas by pier and ocean flag pole 

Installed stop signs, stop bars and lights s. palm and magnolia and magnolia and hibiscus 

 

244



CODE ENFORCEMENT MONTHLY RE   Report July 2021   

NEW CASES FOR THE MONTH OF July
CASE NUMBER                                                    DATE ADDRESS CODE VIOLATION DATE CLOSED ACTIVE
2020-CE-122 8/5/2020 404 Ocean Avenue Coc. Palm plant.inROW 7/9/2021 Aproval letter to be Signed Case Closed Waitng on Lawer
2020-CE-123 8/5/2020 406 Ocean Avenue Coc. Palm plant.inROW 7/9/2021 Aproval letter to be Signed Cese Cglsed Waitng on Lawer
2020-CE-124 8/5/2020 408 Ocean avenue Coc. Palm plant.inROW 7/9/2021 Aproval letter to be Signed Case Closed Waitng on Lawer
2020-CE 125 8/5/2020 410 Ocean Avenue Coc. Palm plant.inROW 7/9/2021 Aproval letter to be Signed Case Closed Waitng on Lawer
2020-CE-149 9/2/2020 802 Pine St. Planting palms inROW 7/9/2021 Aproval letter to be Signed Cese Cglsed  Waiting on Lawer
2021-CE-022 3/7/2021 505 Magnolia Ave Selling Itemes in Dr. 7/18/2021 Owner went before Commision, they are looking at it No results as of 7/1   Cncommision, they are looking at C econ, they are looking at it
2021-CE-031 3/29/22021 316 Oak Street Swim Pool not clean 7/9/2021 PoolCleaned Fnce instaled Needs final Ins Case Closed isue NOV issued 04/12
2021-CE-050 5/16/2021 305 Avenue B Short term Rental 7/6/2021 Issue NOV 05/17 Owner ocupied Case Closed
2021-CE-057 5/24/2021 1101 Pine Street Boat in Drive and Trailer 7/6/2021 Left door tag Issued NOV 06/02/21 Trailer Moved Case Closed
2021-CE-064 6/9/2021 407 Third Avenue Frnt. Yard is overgrown 7/15/2021 Left Door tag  NOV Issued  07/06/21 House sold Will be Take    

OPEN/ACTIVE CASES FROM PRIOR MONTHS
CASE NUMBER     DATE      ADDRESS             CODE VIOLATION                DATE CLOSED          ACTIVE
2020-CE-198 11/20/2020 303 Beau Jean shed witout permit X Sent NOV owner working with her lawer 08/05/21 NTA issued
2021-CE-041 5/3/2021 406 Fourth Avenue Roof covering M/H encroch X Left copy of code and door tag issued NOV 05/19/21 NOV Issued 05/!& NTA Issued 
2021-CE-050 5/16/2021 305 Avenue B Short term Rental 7/6/2021 Issue NOV 05/17 Owner ocupied Case Closed
2021-CE-051 5/16/2021 1009 Atlantic StreetShort term Rental X Issue NOV 05/17 Application Applied for Clalication Applied Cehaon Applied for
2021-CE-052 5/16/2021 400 Avenue B Short term Rental X Issue NOV 05/17Working on Paper Application Cnaing on Paper Ceha Paper Application
2021-CE-053 5/16/2021 315 Avenue B Short term Rental X Issue NOV 05/17  Application Applied For Cnfplication Applied Cehfion Applied For
2021-CE-054 5/19/2021 202 Surf Road Short term Rental X Issued NOV 05/20 CfnovOV Cehnov20
2021-CE-055 5/19/2021 602 Shannon AvenuShort term Rental X Issued NOV 05/20 CnnovOV Cehnov20
2021-CE-057 5/24/2021 1101 Pine Street Boat in Drive and Trailer 7/6/2021 Left door tag Issued NOV 06/02/21 Trailer Moved Case Closed
2021-CE-058 5/27/2021 387 Riverview Lane Short term Rental X Issued NOV 05/27 Application Applied For Application Appied For
2021-CE-063 6/9/2021 409 Third Ave Frnt. Yard is overgrown X Left Door Tag Nov Issued07/06 NOVreturned checing on owner location 
2021-CE-064 6/9/2021 407 Third Avenue Frnt. Yard is overgrown 7/15/2021 Left Door tag  NOV Issued  07/06/21 House sold Will be Take    
2021-CE-069 6/14/2021 306 Avenue B Home is an air B&B X Issued NOV Cnnovsued C onovOV
2021-CE-070 6/16/2021 1203 Atlantic StreetTutle Lighting X Sent violation letter Owner Called Said He Would fix problem
2021- CE-077 6/16/2021 2230Atlantic St, uni  Turtle Lighting X Sent violation letter Called owner She will fix lighting problem
2021-CE-081 6/27/2021 1103 Atlantic StreetTurtle Lighting X Sent violation letter

 PRIOR CASES CLOSED IN July
2021-CE-089 7/3/2021 417 Second Avenue Boat, Aband. Car, Overgrown Ck. Property No violations Case Closed
2021-CE-090 7/5/2021 500 Hibiscus St. Trailer in ROW 7/6/2021 Left door tag Customer Moved trailer Case Closed  Moved trailer Case Case closed
2021-CE-
2021-CE-091 7/15/2021 399 Riverview Lane Boat and Trailer in yrd 7/23/2021 07/23/21 Boat moved to side of home Case Closedd
2021-CE-092 7/15/2021 402 River View LaneLot overgrown 7/31/2021 07/31/21/ Crass cut Case Closed
2021-CE-093 7/18/2021 800 Pine St. Abandon car in drive 8/5/2021 Car moved and Covered.  Cvase Closed
2021-CE-093 7/19/2021 406 Driftwood Lawn needs cutting 8/1/2021 No answer, left door tag, business card and copy of code Grass cut Case Closed
2021-CE-094 7/19/2021 219 Surf Road Boat in Drive way X Left adoor tag And business card Owner working on larger gate
2021-CE-095 7/21/2021 903 Pine Street Van Not Registered 8/1/2021 08/01/21 Van has been moved Case Closed
2021-CE-096 7/25/2021 1500 Pine Street Boat in Drive 7/29/2021 07/29/21 Boat and trailer gone Case Closed
2021-CE-097 7/25/2021 416 Third Avenue Property over grown 8/1/2021 Grass Mowed Case Closed.
2021-CE-098 7/29/2021 306 Secound Avenu Boat in drive 8/1/2021 08/01/21 Boat Gone Case Closede
2021-CE-099 7/29/2021 307 Sunset Drive Boat in drive 8/1/2021 08/01/21 Boat moved Case Closed

NUMBER OF CASES CLOSED THIS MONTH 13
NUMBER OF CASES OPEN AND CLOSED SAME MONTH 5
TOTAL NUMBER OF CASES STILL OPEN 24
NUMBER OF CASES THAT WENT THE MAJISTRATE 0

PREPARED BY Robert Schaefer, CODE ENFORCEMENT OFFICER, 

245



   
 
 
 
 
In the month of July, we had a total of 9 arrests. Those arrests range from Driving Under the Influence, Narcotics, 

Domestic Battery, and Traffic.    

House checks/residential and business checks are continued daily. The officers and I continue to be proactive 

as they conducted several "directed traffic enforcement details" throughout the town. Our radar trailers are also 

placed in various locations throughout the city to assist in deterring speeders. 

We had five animal complaints/calls this month consisting of; 

2 Loose/stray dog 

1 Dog on the beach 

1 Pregnant opossum  

1 Deceased dog on the beach (Turned over to Animal Services) 

One of our areas of high volume calls consists of Injured/Ill persons. These calls are unpredictable, and each of 

the officers is First Responder/CPR/AED certified and is first on the scene to provide medical treatment as 

necessary.  

Community Event 

The Movie in the Park was canceled due to technical difficulties and rain. We are going to reschedule TBD.  

Before the start of the movie, the residents were able to enjoy the BCSO Mounted Posse. We thanked them and 

look forward to having them revisit us in the future.  

 

 

 

Melbourne Beach Police Department 
Monthly Report 

July 2021 

 

246



PD News 

• Summer Series of public service announcements ranging from Bicycle and Pedestrian laws, Lock it or 

Lose it, and Turtle Season, to name a few. The PSA's will be posted on our Facebook weekly throughout 

the summer. Like our page on Facebook at https://www.facebook.com/Melbournebeachpolice 

• ATV patrols are routinely performed during the evening hours by the Officers. 

• Congratulations to Officer Tejeda and his wife as they welcome Baby Valencia Olivia Tejeda, 7lbs 10oz. 

Mom and baby are doing well.  

Attached you will see a brief overview of the Sergeants monthly report highlighting some of our calls for 

service.  

Stay Safe, Chief Melanie Griswold 

 

 

247

https://www.facebook.com/Melbournebeachpolice


   
 
 

Monthly Report July 2021 
 

 
 

• 07/04- Male was arrested for drugs in the area of Atlantic Street and Fourth Avenue.  

• 07/11- DUI arrest 400 block Riverside Drive. Male subject was in a single vehicle crash and 
arrested for DUI. 

 
• 07/19- Traffic arrest 1700 block of Atlantic Street. Male subject failed to register trailer and 

was issued a court date. 
 

• 07/20- Traffic arrest 400 block of Oak Street. Male subject was stopped for speeding. Court 
date issued for expired FLDL. 
 

• 07/20- Traffic crash (2) vehicles in the 900 block Oak Street. (1) Vehicle left the scene, 
minor damage reported, no injuries.      

• 07/20- Traffic arrest Ocean Avenue and Atlantic Street. Male subject was stopped for 
speeding and issued a court date for no driver’s license ever issued. 

•  07/22- Marchman Act of a male in the 1000 block of Atlantic Street. Male subject was 
causing a disturbance, was under the influence, and could not take care of himself. 

• 07/27- Domestic disturbance 2100 block of Redwood Avenue. Both parties were separated, 
and the incident was verbal only. 

• 07/27- Traffic crash (2) vehicles at Oak Street and Ocean Avenue. Both vehicles had 
disabling damage and were towed from the scene. One person was injured in the crash and 
transported to the hospital.   

• 07/28- Assist other agency (Palm Bay PD) in the 200 block of Birch Avenue. Took male into 
custody for PBPD who had three felony charges.   

• 07/29- DUI Arrest, female arrested in the 1800 block of Oak Street for DUI. Traffic stop for 
failure to stay in a single lane.   

• 07/30- Traffic crash 900 block Oak Street. (2) Vehicles, minor damage to both vehicles, and 
no injuries.   

MELBOURNE BEACH POLICE DEPARTMENT 
Jason Hinchman 

Sergeant 
507 Ocean Ave, Melbourne Beach, FL 32951 

Phone: (321) 723-4343  Fax: (321)725-3253 
 

248



   
 

 
MEMORANDUM 

 
TO: LT. Smith 
 
FROM: Sgt. Kino 
 
RE: July Monthly Call Report 
 
DATE: 08/1/2021   

 
7/2- A Baker Act in the 400 block of Sunset Blvd.  A W/M was transported to the hospital 
by BCFR due to mental and health concerns. 
 
7/10- A fire in a hot tub in the 400 block of Pelican Key.  It was extinguished with a garden 
hose prior to FD arrival. 
 
7/10- DUI in the area of Oak St. / Beau Jean Ave.  W/M arrested. 
 
7/15- Fraud in the 200 block of Cherry Dr.  Investigation is still ongoing. 
 
7/16- A Baker Act in the 600 block of Mango Dr.  A W/M was transported to COC for further 
evaluation. 
 
7/26- Narcotics arrest in the 100 block of Ocean Ave.  W/F was arrested for possession of 
methamphetamine and Possession of drug paraphernalia. 
 
7/26- Domestic disturbance in the 700 block of Riverside Dr.  Vebral only in nature and 
one of the involved parties left prior to our arrival. 
 
7/26- Marchman Act in the 2000 block of Oak St.  A B/F was under the influence of 
narcotics and was transported to the hospital for further treatment.  
 
7/31-Arrest in the 200 block of Ocean Ave.  H/F arrested for battery DV.  

MELBOURNE BEACH POLICE DEPARTMENT 
Steven Kino 

Sergeant 
507 Ocean Ave, Melbourne Beach, FL 32951 

Phone: (321) 723-4343  Fax: (321)725-3253 
 

249



JULY JUNE MAY APR MAR FEB JAN YTD
Total Calls for Service 1421 1113 912 788 863 770 815 6682
Total Felonies 3 3 9 2 9 9 2 37
Total Misdemeanors 13 8 6 9 11 8 8 63
Total Capias Requests 0 1 2 0 0 1 2 6
Total Traffic Arrests 3 1 0 2 1 0 0 7
Total Other Arrests 6 5 1 3 2 5 3 25

911 Investigation 25 20 26 19 31 18 20 159
Alarm Business 5 3 2 1 4 1 4 20
Alarm Residence 2 4 3 0 1 5 6 21
Alarm Vehicle 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 1
Animal Complaint 5 2 10 14 8 22 8 69
AOA LEO 16 20 16 16 22 19 18 127
Assist Citizen 7 8 9 12 7 3 4 50
Assist DCF 0 0 1 1 1 1 1 5
Assist Motorist 2 2 1 2 4 2 2 15
Attempt To Contact 5 4 2 1 3 5 0 20
Baker Act 2 0 0 0 1 0 1 4
Battery 0 0 2 1 0 1 1 5
Burglary - Vehicle 0 0 0 1 1 1 0 3
Civil Matter 1 4 2 2 3 3 3 18
Crash 4 7 9 9 2 4 3 38
Criminal Mischief 2 2 3 1 0 0 2 10
Death Investigation 0 0 0 2 2 1 1 6
Disturbance Domestic 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 14
Disturbance Domestic Battery 1 2 1 1 1 1 1 8
Disturbance 1 0 3 1 1 0 3 9
Disturbance Noise 6 5 3 3 0 1 5 23
Disturbance Verbal 0 0 0 0 4 1 1 6
Drowning 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 1
Fire 2 5 1 4 6 3 4 25
Fraud / Forgery 1 0 2 0 2 1 0 6
Harassment 1 0 0 0 0 0 1 2
House Checks 330 229 77 40 74 44 68 862
Illegal Parking 59 48 61 39 18 24 18 267

Melbourne Beach Police Department250



JULY JUNE MAY APR MAR FEB JAN YTD
Information 15 15 15 6 14 19 8 92
Injured/Ill Person 21 23 17 13 19 16 11 120
Intoxicated Driver 3 2 0 2 0 4 1 12
Intoxicated Person 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 1
Investigation 2 3 3 8 6 0 0 22
Marchman Act 2 0 0 0 1 0 1 4
Missing Person 0 2 0 0 0 0 1 3
Narcotics 2 2 1 0 1 0 2 8
Open Door 3 3 4 3 1 0 0 14
Overdose 0 0 0 0 1 0 1 2
Parking Citations 79 50 78 85 21 26 8 347
Patrol Area 141 123 86 97 94 68 117 726
Patrol Area Business 179 170 95 92 119 115 165 935
Patrol Area Residential 456 316 218 153 149 148 156 1596
Patrol Area School 17 11 28 41 33 20 17 167
Private Investigator 0 0 0 1 1 0 0 2
Property Confiscated 1 0 4 0 1 1 1 8
Property Found 3 3 2 5 2 1 1 17
Property Lost 1 4 0 0 1 0 1 7
Reckless Driving 7 4 7 4 8 3 4 37
Search 0 0 1 3 0 0 0 4
Special Detail 2 0 1 0 0 0 0 3
Special Unit  Response ATV 1 0 0 0 0 3 1 5
Special Unit Response Drone 0 2 1 0 0 1 0 4
Standby-Keep the Peace 0 1 0 2 0 0 1 4
Suicide Threat 0 1 0 0 1 0 0 2
Suspicious Incident 7 5 6 10 5 10 5 48
Suspicious Person 7 6 8 3 6 4 3 37
Suspicious Vehicle 10 8 5 5 15 6 12 61
Theft 0 0 0 1 3 1 0 5
Traffic Citations 48 39 18 24 20 29 25 203
Traffic Complaint 0 1 4 3 1 2 1 12
Traffic Enforcement 205 130 132 105 107 114 74 867
Traffic Obstruction 2 2 2 1 1 0 0 8

Melbourne Beach Police Department251



JULY JUNE MAY APR MAR FEB JAN YTD
Traffic Stop 196 168 102 92 156 126 135 975
Trespassing 0 3 2 0 1 1 0 7
Vehicle Abondoned 1 0 0 1 0 0 0 2
Vehicle Inspection 2 1 0 2 1 1 1 8
Vehicle Repo / Tow 1 0 0 0 1 1 0 3
Vehicle Stolen 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 1
Wanted Person 0 0 0 3 9 0 1 13

Vehicle Mileage JULY JUNE MAY APR MAR FEB JAN YTD
Car 359 - Salvaged 0 0 0 0 0 0 65 65
Car 360 994 566 693 631 751 21199 580 25414
Car 361 1014 989 897 941 1053 42651 1109 48654
Car 363 1048 1010 1274 969 1670 1057 1078 8106
Car 364 506 312 505 411 690 17189 219 19832
Car 366 322 459 586 890 543 15047 462 18309
Car 367 1003 983 221 0 0 0 0 2207
ATV 1 26 0 10 161 0 0 0 197
ATV 2 10 34 0 119 0 0 0 163

Melbourne Beach Police Department252



Melbourne Beach 
Vol. Fire Department 

507 Ocean Avenue 
Melbourne Beach, FL 32951 

(321)724-1736 
FireChief@MelbourneBeachFL.org 

 
 

 

FIRE DEPARTMENT MONTHLY REPORT 
July 2021 

 
 

 
Incident Response 

For the month of July 2021, the Melbourne Beach Volunteer Fire Department 
responded to 5 calls for service.  The average number of responding volunteer 
personnel per paged out call for the month was 12.    

Breakdown: 

• 4 Fire/Rescue 911 Calls (paged out) 
• 1 Public Service/Assist 

 

Notable Incidents 

• 07/10/2021 – Jacuzzi pump caught fire.  Damage contained to Jacuzzi, no 
structural damage to house. 

• 07/27/2021 – Vehicle accident with injuries and road blockage at intersection of 
Ocean and Oak.  1 Pt. transported to local hospital in stable condition. 

• 7/29/2021 – Stove range hood caught fire while homeowner was sleeping.  
Homeowner was awoken by smoke detector and was able to exit the structure.  
Minor damage contained to the range hood and surrounding cabinets. 

 

Department Membership 

• Certified Firefighters: 20 
• Support Services Personnel: 6 
• Administrative Personnel: 2 
• Probationary Personnel: 1 

 

253

mailto:FireChief@MelbourneBeachFL.org


Melbourne Beach, FL
This report was generated on 8/12/2021 7:27:34 PM

Melbourne Beach VFD

Incident Address and Type for Date Range (Landscape)

INCIDENT # DATE LOCATION 
TYPE ADDRESS INCIDENT TYPE ALARM CLEARED

SCENE
2021-83 07/01/2021 2005 Atlantic ST , Melbourne Beach, FL, 32951 Public service 07/01/2021 20:05 07/01/2021 20:17

2021-84 07/10/2021 409 Pelican KY , Melbourne Beach, FL, 32951 Outside equipment fire 07/10/2021 15:47 07/10/2021 16:21

2021-85 07/27/2021 Intersection  Oak ST  / Ocean Ave, Melbourne Beach, FL, 32951 Motor vehicle accident with injuries 07/27/2021 20:55 07/27/2021 21:58

2021-86 07/29/2021 406 Riverside DR , Melbourne Beach, FL, 32951 Building fire 07/29/2021 23:36 07/30/2021 00:27

2021-87 07/30/2021 2301 N Highway A1A , Melbourne (CCD), FL, 32903 Dispatched & cancelled en route 07/30/2021 20:03 07/30/2021 20:10

Incident Status(s): All Incident Statuses | Start Date: 07/01/2021 | End Date: 07/31/2021

Doc Id: 1251
emergencyreporting.com

Location Type is only filled in when it is marked Intersection, Directions, or National Grid on Basic Info 3.

Page # 1 of 1

254



 

Notable Events 

The Fire Department was contacted by the No Bad Days Foundation, a local 501(c)(3) 
organization, who offered to donate an Medical All Terrain Beach Wheelchair free of 
charge.  The Medical All Terrain Beach Wheelchair, valued at approx. $1,500.00, is 
designed to allow easier access in any kind of terrain like sand, gravel, grass or 
concrete. It is especially helpful for individuals with lower extremity or mobility 
disabilities or a spinal cord injury. The wheelchair has a high-quality, UV protected PVC 
frame which will not rust, chip, discolor or peel even when used around salt water.  This 
wheelchair will be loaned out by the Town, free of charge, to any resident or visitor with 
mobility issues wishing to visit the beach at Ocean Park.  

The Fire Department conducted live training exercises at 407 3rd Ave thanks to 
Commissioner Runte who generously donated the existing structure for fire training 
before it was demolished.  

Safety Chief Micka obtained certification as a State of Florida Fire Instructor I. 

The Volunteer Firefighters Association hosted their annual 4th of July BBQ in the Park.  
Unfortunately the event was rained out half way through and was ended early for safety 
reasons. 

The Fire Department will be starting another Volunteer Firefighter course in September.  
This course will assist non-certified members of the MBVFD, as well as of other local 
beachside volunteers, in obtaining their State of Florida Volunteer Firefighter 
certification. 

Safety Chief Micka and Chief Brown reviewed of the Town of Melbourne Beach Code of 
Ordinances pertaining to fire protection and the Town’s Fire Department.  
Recommended updates were drafted to reflect the current State Statues, provide better 
protection for the Town, and put us more in line with other local municipalities.  A beach 
fire ordinance was also researched and drafted for the Commission to review and 
decide if they would like to allow permitted beach fires within Town limits. 

The Fire Department attended the quarterly Space Coast Fire Chiefs meeting. 

 

Grant Updates 

The Department submitted a new FEMA AFG grant early in 2021 to assist in offsetting 
the cost of purchasing new radios for the Fire Department.  At this point we are awaiting 
notification on if we were successful with this attempt. 

 

255



Melbourne Beach, FL
This report was generated on 8/12/2021 7:28:33 PM

Melbourne Beach VFD

Personnel Count per Incident for Date Range

INCIDENT NUMBER OF PEOPLE

NUMBER DATE INCIDENT TYPE FDID ON 
APPARATUS

NOT ON 
APPARATUS TOTAL

2021-83 7/1/2021 20:05:41 553 - Public service 19112 1 0 1

2021-84 7/10/2021 15:47:27 162 - Outside equipment fire 19112 5 2 7

2021-85 7/27/2021 20:55:06 322 - Motor vehicle accident with injuries 19112 9 11 20

2021-86 7/29/2021 23:36:18 111 - Building fire 19112 7 4 11

2021-87 7/30/2021 20:03:28 611 - Dispatched & cancelled en route 19112 1 9 10

TOTAL # OF INCIDENTS: 5 AVERAGES: 4.6 5.2 9.8

Start Date: 07/01/2021 | End Date: 07/31/2021

Doc Id: 358
emergencyreporting.com

Only REVIEWED incidents included

Page # 1 of 1

**
**
**
**

** Without EMS Assist or Service Calls:                  5.5               6.5            12.0
             (Paged out calls only)

256



Memo 
To: Mayor, Vice Mayor and Commissioners 
From: Jennifer Kerr, Finance Manager 
Date: August 5, 2021 
Re: July 2021   

We are in the tenth month of our fiscal year 2021. The target expenditure rate for July is 83.3%. All departments are 
managing their expenditures even though several budget lines are over the targeted expenditure rate. All budget 
items highlighted in green are over the target rate but within the anticipated spending of that budget line. All items 
highlighted in yellow are being monitored. Items highlighted in red are over expended. Some budget lines are fully 
expended early in the budget year while other lines like salaries and health insurance are paid on a monthly basis. 
The total General Fund expenditure rate, year to date is 78.3%. The Departmental expenditure rate breakdown is as 
follows:  
 

Legislative:        72.7% 
  Executive:                     86.9% 
  Finance:       86.4%  
  Legal:                      59.6% 
  Comp & Plan:         48.9% 
  General Services:      66.8% 
  Law Enforcement:      84.9% 
  Fire:        76.7% 
  Code:        78.6% 
  Public Works:         81.5% 
  Parks:        81.5% 
  Ocean Parking:          68.1% 
  Ryckman Parking:                 61.8% 
 
 
Discussion Items:  
 
Revenue for Ocean Park Parking is $13,247.45 
Revenue for Ryckman Park Parking is $7,485.84  
  
  

257



For the Period:  10/1/2020 to 7/31/2021
Targe Rate: 83.3%

Fund:  125 - Building Dept
Expenditures

Dept:  24  Protective Inspections Original Bud. Amended Bud. YTD Actual UnencBal % Bud

500.12.00  Regular Salaries 75,116.00 75,116.00 54,641.08 20,474.92 72.7
500.14.00  Salaries Overtime 0.00 0.00 817.52 -817.52 0.0
500.21.00  FICA Taxes - Employer Portion 5,746.00 5,746.00 3,980.27 1,765.73 69.3
500.22.20  Retirement Town Employees 7,512.00 7,512.00 5,545.87 1,966.13 73.8
500.23.01  Health Insurance 18,144.00 18,144.00 16,214.41 1,929.59 89.4
500.23.02  Life Insurance 136.00 136.00 112.60 23.40 82.8
500.25.00  Unemployment Compensation 240.00 240.00 102.93 137.07 42.9
520.31.00  Professional Services 112,320.00 112,320.00 51,287.79 61,032.21 45.7
520.51.00  Office Supplies 200.00 200.00 266.00 -66.00 133.0
520.51.10  Postage 30.00 30.00 0.00 30.00 0.0
520.52.00  Uniforms 130.00 130.00 0.00 130.00 0.0
520.52.20  Tools & Hardware 0.00 0.00 46.91 -46.91 0.0
520.54.00  Dues & Subscriptions 0.00 0.00 95.00 -95.00 0.0
520.54.10  Training & Schools 0.00 0.00 80.00 -80.00 0.0
581.00.00  TRANSFER OUT 18,000.00 18,000.00 0.00 18,000.00 0.0

56.1

258



For the Period:  10/1/2020 to 7/31/2021
Target Rate: 83.3%

Fund:  001 - General Fund
Expenditures

Dept:  11  Legislative Original Bud. Amended Bud. YTD Actual UnencBal % Bud

500.11.00  Executive Salaries 16,200.00 16,200.00 13,499.90 2,700.10 83.3
500.12.00  Regular Salaries 58,937.00 58,937.00 50,706.22 8,230.78 86.0
500.21.00  FICA Taxes - Employer Portion 4,509.00 4,509.00 4,857.79 -348.79 107.7
500.22.20  Retirement Town Employees 5,894.00 5,894.00 5,070.60 823.40 86.0
500.23.01  Health Insurance 6,874.00 6,874.00 7,452.73 -578.73 108.4
500.23.02  Life Insurance 136.00 136.00 61.93 74.07 45.5
500.25.00  Unemployment Compensation 189.00 189.00 89.14 99.86 47.2
510.31.00  Professional Services 160.00 160.00 213.80 -53.80 133.6
510.40.00  Travel & Meetings 3,640.00 3,640.00 143.00 3,497.00 3.9
510.40.10  Travel & Meetings - Staff 2,788.00 2,788.00 0.00 2,788.00 0.0
510.47.00  Printing 4,015.00 4,015.00 2,130.58 1,884.42 53.1
510.48.00  Promotional Activities 600.00 600.00 427.52 172.48 71.3
510.48.40  Legal Notices 8,000.00 8,000.00 1,476.77 6,523.23 18.5
510.49.50  Election Expense 2,500.00 2,500.00 373.14 2,126.86 14.9
510.54.00  Dues & Subscriptions 855.00 855.00 440.00 415.00 51.5
510.54.10  Training & Schools 4,310.00 4,310.00 440.75 3,869.25 10.2
510.64.00  Machinery & Equipment 2,000.00 2,000.00 495.99 1,504.01 24.8
543.00.00  Licenses & Fees 7,870.00 7,870.00 6,285.13 1,584.87 79.9

72.7

Dept:  12  Executive Original Bud. Amended Bud. YTD Actual UnencBal % Bud

500.12.00  Regular Salaries 117,820.00 117,820.00 99,164.02 18,655.98 84.2
500.14.00  Salaries Overtime 0.00 0.00 172.20 -172.20 0.0
500.21.00  FICA Taxes - Employer Portion 9,013.00 9,013.00 7,820.28 1,192.72 86.8
500.22.01  Retirement - ICMA 9,650.00 9,650.00 8,692.24 957.76 90.1
500.22.20  Retirement Town Employees 2,132.00 2,132.00 1,693.23 438.77 79.4
500.23.01  Health Insurance 22,109.00 22,109.00 22,880.06 -771.06 103.5
500.23.02  Life Insurance 735.00 735.00 686.18 48.82 93.4
500.25.00  Unemployment Compensation 377.00 377.00 176.08 200.92 46.7
510.40.00  Travel & Meetings 420.00 420.00 15.00 405.00 3.6
510.52.50  Gas & Oil 2,400.00 2,400.00 2,000.00 400.00 83.3
510.54.00  Dues & Subscriptions 895.00 895.00 570.00 325.00 63.7

86.9

Dept:  13  Finance Original Bud. Amended Bud. YTD Actual UnencBal % Bud

500.12.00  Regular Salaries 59,450.00 59,450.00 50,532.53 8,917.47 85.0
500.14.00  Salaries Overtime 0.00 0.00 300.11 -300.11 0.0
500.21.00  FICA Taxes - Employer Portion 4,548.00 4,548.00 3,865.89 682.11 85.0
500.22.20  Retirement Town Employees 5,945.00 5,945.00 5,083.19 861.81 85.5
500.23.01  Health Insurance 7,620.00 7,620.00 6,792.55 827.45 89.1
500.23.02  Life Insurance 68.00 68.00 61.93 6.07 91.1
500.25.00  Unemployment Compensation 190.00 190.00 91.46 98.54 48.1
510.31.00  Professional Services 7,400.00 7,400.00 8,183.07 -783.07 110.6
510.32.00  Auditing Services 22,300.00 22,300.00 21,000.00 1,300.00 94.2
510.32.90  Banking Fees 4,700.00 4,700.00 3,457.80 1,242.20 73.6
510.40.00  Travel & Meetings 1,900.00 1,900.00 0.00 1,900.00 0.0
510.47.00  Printing 180.00 180.00 105.96 74.04 58.9
510.54.00  Dues & Subscriptions 60.00 60.00 50.00 10.00 83.3
510.54.10  Training & Schools 800.00 800.00 0.00 800.00 0.0

86.4

259



Dept:  14  Legal Counsel Original Bud. Amended Bud. YTD Actual UnencBal % Bud

510.31.00  Professional Services 96,000.00 96,000.00 53,789.50 42,210.50 56.0
510.31.01  Code Enforcement Attorney 2,250.00 2,250.00 4,808.00 -2,558.00 213.7

59.6

Dept:  15  Comprehensive Planning Original Bud. Amended Bud. YTD Actual UnencBal % Bud

510.31.00  Professional Services 18,000.00 18,000.00 13,551.50 4,448.50 75.3
510.31.95  Grants Services 10,000.00 10,000.00 127.50 9,872.50 1.3

48.9

Dept:  19  General Services Original Bud. Amended Bud. YTD Actual UnencBal % Bud

500.24.00  Workers Compensation 2,290.00 2,290.00 2,290.00 0.00 100.0
510.31.00  Professional Services 4,000.00 4,000.00 3,100.00 900.00 77.5
510.31.11  Security 1,998.00 1,998.00 1,452.39 545.61 72.7
510.34.10  Janitorial Services 13,308.00 13,308.00 11,390.00 1,918.00 85.6
510.35.00  Pre-Employment Exp 135.00 135.00 90.00 45.00 66.7
510.41.00  Telephone 8,856.00 8,856.00 7,673.36 1,182.64 86.6
510.41.10  Communication Services 41,592.00 41,592.00 43,702.50 -2,110.50 105.1
510.43.00  Street Lights 45,000.00 45,000.00 34,097.39 10,902.61 75.8
510.43.10  Electricity 22,580.00 22,580.00 16,664.86 5,915.14 73.8
510.43.20  Water & Sewer 5,496.00 5,496.00 2,592.51 2,903.49 47.2
510.43.50  Waste Tax Service 2,807.00 2,807.00 2,965.98 -158.98 105.7
510.45.00  General Liability Insurance 62,192.00 62,192.00 62,192.00 0.00 100.0
510.45.01  Flood Insurance 3,410.00 3,410.00 3,776.00 -366.00 110.7
510.45.02  Property Insurance 45,938.00 45,938.00 47,758.00 -1,820.00 104.0
510.45.03  Auto Insurance 7,500.00 7,500.00 7,079.00 421.00 94.4
510.46.10  Office Equipment Maintenance 5,408.00 5,408.00 2,524.01 2,883.99 46.7
510.46.15  Equipment Maintenance 13,300.00 13,300.00 8,423.50 4,876.50 63.3
510.46.36  Pest Control 3,000.00 3,000.00 2,355.80 644.20 78.5
510.46.41  Mowing Contract 18,604.00 18,604.00 11,027.01 7,576.99 59.3
510.47.00  Printing 400.00 400.00 1,085.16 -685.16 271.3 Parking 
510.49.48  Env. Boards Expense 6,420.00 6,420.00 1,588.26 4,831.74 24.7
510.49.98  Contingency 30,000.00 30,000.00 37,041.21 -7,041.21 123.5 Park ligh
510.49.99  Miscellaneous 300.00 300.00 118.97 181.03 39.7
510.51.00  Office Supplies 10,500.00 10,500.00 6,441.86 4,058.14 61.4
510.51.10  Postage 2,000.00 2,000.00 1,257.32 742.68 62.9
510.52.10  Janitorial Supplies 5,000.00 5,000.00 2,675.86 2,324.14 53.5
510.54.00  Dues & Subscriptions 270.00 270.00 317.03 -47.03 117.4
510.64.01  Capital Outlay 131,296.00 131,296.00 10,531.79 120,764.21 8.0
543.00.00  Licenses & Fees 19,732.00 19,732.00 10,886.84 8,845.16 55.2

66.8

Dept:  21  Law Enforcement Original Bud. Amended Bud. YTD Actual UnencBal % Bud

500.12.00  Regular Salaries 557,875.00 557,875.00 468,090.11 89,784.89 83.9
500.12.50  Holiday Pay 19,000.00 19,000.00 0.00 19,000.00 0.0
500.14.00  Salaries Overtime 30,300.00 30,300.00 27,798.70 2,501.30 91.7
500.15.00  Education Incentive Pay 6,600.00 6,600.00 6,075.00 525.00 92.0
500.15.01  First Responder 7,920.00 7,920.00 4,875.00 3,045.00 61.6
500.21.00  FICA Taxes - Employer Portion 47,560.00 47,560.00 37,559.86 10,000.14 79.0
500.22.02  Police Pension 262,355.00 262,355.00 237,549.21 24,805.79 90.5
500.22.20  Retirement Town Employees 3,421.00 3,421.00 2,921.11 499.89 85.4
500.23.01  Health Insurance 78,104.00 78,104.00 70,492.27 7,611.73 90.3
500.23.02  Life Insurance 2,255.00 2,255.00 2,190.70 64.30 97.1
500.23.10  Statutory AD&D 1,000.00 1,000.00 1,000.00 0.00 100.0
500.24.00  Workers Compensation 13,125.00 13,125.00 13,125.00 0.00 100.0
500.25.00  Unemployment Compensation 1,989.00 1,989.00 922.53 1,066.47 46.4
520.31.00  Professional Services 680.00 680.00 854.00 -174.00 125.6 Shreddin   

260



520.34.40  Dispatching Services 17,756.00 17,756.00 16,938.09 817.91 95.4
520.40.00  Travel & Meetings 1,540.00 1,540.00 1,200.07 339.93 77.9
520.41.10  Communication Services 1,080.00 1,080.00 1,970.59 -890.59 182.5
520.46.10  Office Equipment Maintenance 3,000.00 3,000.00 3,863.45 -863.45 128.8 New con  
520.46.15  Equipment Maintenance 2,000.00 2,000.00 290.89 1,709.11 14.5
520.46.16  Radar Calibration 700.00 700.00 405.00 295.00 57.9
520.46.20  Vehicle Maintenance 10,000.00 10,000.00 5,757.31 4,242.69 57.6
520.48.00  Promotional Activities 1,200.00 1,200.00 41.98 1,158.02 3.5
520.48.50  Crime Prevention 1,100.00 1,100.00 150.77 949.23 13.7
520.49.99  Miscellaneous 100.00 100.00 0.00 100.00 0.0
520.52.00  Uniforms 4,000.00 4,000.00 5,036.41 -1,036.41 125.9
520.52.05  Protective Gear 6,242.00 6,242.00 653.61 5,588.39 10.5
520.52.50  Gas & Oil 13,000.00 13,000.00 8,976.32 4,023.68 69.0
520.52.70  Medical 600.00 600.00 249.98 350.02 41.7
520.52.90  Operating Supplies 3,720.00 3,720.00 1,976.22 1,743.78 53.1
520.54.00  Dues & Subscriptions 450.00 450.00 755.00 -305.00 167.8
520.54.10  Training & Schools 3,500.00 3,500.00 1,965.87 1,534.13 56.2
520.64.01  Capital Outlay 61,080.00 61,080.00 66,462.39 -5,382.39 108.8
543.00.00  Licenses & Fees 13,819.00 13,819.00 9,238.96 4,580.04 66.9

84.9

Dept:  22  Fire Control Original Bud. Amended Bud. YTD Actual UnencBal % Bud

500.12.00  Regular Salaries 55,000.00 55,000.00 46,538.36 8,461.64 84.6
500.14.00  Salaries Overtime 0.00 0.00 594.95 -594.95 0.0
500.21.00  FICA Taxes - Employer Portion 4,208.00 4,208.00 6,966.12 -2,758.12 165.5
500.22.01  Retirement - ICMA 0.00 0.00 4,380.29 -4,380.29 0.0
500.22.20  Retirement Town Employees 6,050.00 6,050.00 428.08 5,621.92 7.1
500.23.01  Health Insurance 4,932.00 4,932.00 4,417.16 514.84 89.6
500.23.02  Life Insurance 162.00 162.00 61.93 100.07 38.2
500.23.10  Statutory AD&D 180.00 180.00 10.00 170.00 5.6
500.24.00  Workers Compensation 7,200.00 7,200.00 7,431.00 -231.00 103.2
500.25.00  Unemployment Compensation 176.00 176.00 115.61 60.39 65.7
520.31.00  Professional Services 93,000.00 93,000.00 56,397.89 36,602.11 60.6
520.34.40  Dispatching Services 5,000.00 5,000.00 3,750.00 1,250.00 75.0
520.35.00  Pre-Employment Expense 2,380.00 2,380.00 374.00 2,006.00 15.7
520.40.00  Travel & Meetings 500.00 500.00 317.75 182.25 63.6
520.41.10  Communication Services 1,260.00 1,260.00 1,176.00 84.00 93.3
520.46.15  Equipment Maintenance 7,162.00 7,162.00 8,870.93 -1,708.93 123.9
520.46.20  Vehicle Maintenance 23,150.00 23,150.00 2,179.52 20,970.48 9.4
520.48.55  Fire Prevention 4,536.00 4,536.00 4,190.80 345.20 92.4
520.51.00  Office Supplies 400.00 400.00 402.26 -2.26 100.6
520.52.00  Uniforms 6,195.00 6,195.00 0.00 6,195.00 0.0
520.52.02  S.C.B.A. 1,950.00 1,950.00 882.24 1,067.76 45.2
520.52.05  Protective Gear 2,605.00 2,605.00 2,157.76 447.24 82.8
520.52.10  Janitorial Supplies 750.00 750.00 698.28 51.72 93.1
520.52.20  Tools & Hardware 1,500.00 1,500.00 841.89 658.11 56.1
520.52.50  Gas & Oil 2,400.00 2,400.00 2,116.26 283.74 88.2
520.52.70  Medical 900.00 900.00 84.00 816.00 9.3
520.54.00  Dues & Subscriptions 215.00 215.00 0.00 215.00 0.0
520.54.10  Training & Schools 6,750.00 6,750.00 2,533.00 4,217.00 37.5
520.54.12  Training Materials 800.00 800.00 1,008.55 -208.55 126.1
520.64.01  Capital Outlay 35,000.00 35,000.00 40,039.03 -5,039.03 114.4
520.71.00  Principal Retired 44,409.00 44,409.00 44,407.87 1.13 100.0
520.72.00  Interest Expense 4,054.00 4,054.00 4,053.19 0.81 100.0
543.00.00  Licenses & Fees 10,989.00 10,989.00 8,540.54 2,448.46 77.7

76.7

Dept:  29  Code Enforcement Original Bud. Amended Bud. YTD Actual UnencBal % Bud

500.12.00  Regular Salaries 13,645.00 13,645.00 11,496.40 2,148.60 84.3

261



500.21.00  FICA Taxes - Employer Portion 1,044.00 1,044.00 879.54 164.46 84.2
500.22.20  Retirement Town Employees 1,365.00 1,365.00 1,149.64 215.36 84.2
500.23.10  Statutory AD&D 100.00 100.00 0.00 100.00 0.0
500.24.00  Workers Compensation 200.00 200.00 166.00 34.00 83.0
500.25.00  Unemployment Compensation 44.00 44.00 20.31 23.69 46.2
520.40.00  Travel & Meetings 50.00 50.00 0.00 50.00 0.0
520.45.03  Auto Insurance 124.00 124.00 0.00 124.00 0.0
520.46.20  Vehicle Maintenance 250.00 250.00 0.00 250.00 0.0
520.49.99  Miscellaneous 0.00 0.00 30.59 -30.59 0.0
520.51.00  Office Supplies 100.00 100.00 19.40 80.60 19.4
520.51.10  Postage 350.00 350.00 366.50 -16.50 104.7
520.51.20  Recording Costs 120.00 120.00 0.00 120.00 0.0
520.52.00  Uniforms 75.00 75.00 0.00 75.00 0.0
520.52.50  Gas & Oil 450.00 450.00 38.83 411.17 8.6
520.54.10  Training & Schools 100.00 100.00 0.00 100.00 0.0

78.6

Dept:  41  Public Works Original Bud. Amended Bud. YTD Actual UnencBal % Bud

500.12.00  Regular Salaries 157,976.00 157,976.00 133,783.83 24,192.17 84.7
500.14.00  Salaries Overtime 4,000.00 4,000.00 1,960.31 2,039.69 49.0
500.21.00  FICA Taxes - Employer Portion 12,085.00 12,085.00 10,796.47 1,288.53 89.3
500.22.20  Retirement Town Employees 15,798.00 15,798.00 13,574.33 2,223.67 85.9
500.23.01  Health Insurance 16,980.00 16,980.00 14,745.25 2,234.75 86.8
500.23.02  Life Insurance 236.00 236.00 216.70 19.30 91.8
500.23.10  Statutory AD&D 200.00 200.00 0.00 200.00 0.0
500.24.00  Workers Compensation 2,500.00 2,500.00 2,500.00 0.00 100.0
500.25.00  Unemployment Compensation 506.00 506.00 259.04 246.96 51.2
530.34.91  Landscaping 3,300.00 3,300.00 4,465.00 -1,165.00 135.3 Mulch
530.40.00  Travel & Meetings 200.00 200.00 0.00 200.00 0.0
530.43.50  Dump Service 2,000.00 2,000.00 167.52 1,832.48 8.4
530.46.12  Maintenance Supplies 6,500.00 6,500.00 602.17 5,897.83 9.3
530.46.15  Equipment Maintenance 2,500.00 2,500.00 1,645.68 854.32 65.8
530.46.20  Vehicle Maintenance 8,000.00 8,000.00 11,534.10 -3,534.10 144.2 Transmi      
530.46.30  Building Maintenance 4,500.00 4,500.00 5,045.74 -545.74 112.1 ATP Fire      
530.46.31  Maintenance Old Town Hall 1,000.00 1,000.00 257.42 742.58 25.7
530.46.34  Maintenance Ryckman Park 0.00 0.00 306.00 -306.00 0.0
530.46.40  Grounds Maintenance 14,000.00 14,000.00 4,982.71 9,017.29 35.6
530.46.41  Mowing 0.00 0.00 4,095.00 -4,095.00 0.0
530.52.00  Uniforms 2,100.00 2,100.00 1,044.40 1,055.60 49.7
530.52.05  Protective Gear 1,000.00 1,000.00 666.04 333.96 66.6
530.52.20  Tools & Hardware 3,000.00 3,000.00 3,689.82 -689.82 123.0 Striper to
530.52.25  TOOL RENTALS 2,000.00 2,000.00 2,760.94 -760.94 138.0 Dunes p
530.52.50  Gas & Oil 3,600.00 3,600.00 2,802.92 797.08 77.9
530.53.10  Street Repair 5,500.00 5,500.00 7,330.42 -1,830.42 133.3 Road St  
530.53.20  Street Signs 6,000.00 6,000.00 8,786.45 -2,786.45 146.4 Grant m     
530.54.10  Training & Schools 1,500.00 1,500.00 0.00 1,500.00 0.0
530.57.25  Welding 2,696.00 2,696.00 212.15 2,483.85 7.9
530.64.01  Capital Outlay 25,500.00 25,500.00 10,356.08 15,143.92 40.6

81.5

Dept:  72  Parks & Recreation Original Bud. Amended Bud. YTD Actual UnencBal % Bud

570.46.42  Park Beautification 1,600.00 1,600.00 471.37 1,128.63 29.5
570.46.43  Tree Expense 800.00 800.00 0.00 800.00 0.0
570.48.10  Founder's Day 5,000.00 5,000.00 5,628.79 -628.79 112.6
570.48.50  Movies In The Park 1,400.00 3,900.00 2,535.52 1,364.48 65.0
570.48.52  Fourth of July 500.00 500.00 0.00 500.00 0.0
570.48.53  Christmas Decorations Park 1,500.00 4,500.00 4,685.49 -185.49 104.1
570.48.60  Easter Egg Hunt 50.00 50.00 0.00 50.00 0.0

81.5

262



Dept:  75  Town Parks Original Bud. Amended Bud. YTD Actual UnencBal % Bud

575.32.90  Banking Fees 3,700.00 3,700.00 538.57 3,161.43 14.6
575.34.10  Janitorial Cleaning 1,800.00 1,800.00 1,350.00 450.00 75.0
575.34.91  Landscaping 2,500.00 2,500.00 3,444.75 -944.75 137.8
575.41.10  IPS Communications Fee 660.00 660.00 25.57 634.43 3.9
575.43.10  Electricity 6,420.00 6,420.00 1,506.05 4,913.95 23.5
575.43.15  Electrical Work/Parts 0.00 5,500.00 4,234.51 1,265.49 77.0
575.43.20  Water & Sewer 1,104.00 1,104.00 71.72 1,032.28 6.5
575.46.12  Maintenance Supplies 500.00 500.00 1,737.36 -1,237.36 347.5
575.46.15  HVAC Maintenance 500.00 500.00 0.00 500.00 0.0
575.46.30  Building Maintenance 250.00 250.00 11.68 238.32 4.7
575.46.31  Building Maint Restrooms 250.00 250.00 0.00 250.00 0.0
575.46.32  Building Maint Ryckman House 1,000.00 1,000.00 974.49 25.51 97.4
575.46.35  Pier Maintenance 1,000.00 1,000.00 1,258.86 -258.86 125.9
575.46.40  Grounds Maintenance 1,000.00 1,000.00 3,303.32 -2,303.32 330.3
575.46.41  Mowing Contract 12,396.00 12,396.00 10,330.00 2,066.00 83.3
575.46.43  Tree Expense 1,000.00 1,000.00 0.00 1,000.00 0.0
575.53.15  Parking Lot Repairs 0.00 0.00 3,000.00 -3,000.00 0.0
575.63.01  Tennis Court 500.00 500.00 35.49 464.51 7.1
575.63.02  Basketball Court 500.00 500.00 0.00 500.00 0.0
575.63.05  Bocce Ball Court 500.00 500.00 0.00 500.00 0.0
575.64.01  Capital Outlay 33,214.00 33,214.00 14,106.95 19,107.05 42.5

61.8

Overall Expenditure Rate: 78.3

263



For the Period:  10/1/2020 to 7/31/2021
Target Rate: 83.3%

Fund:  172 - OCEAN PARK PARKING FUND
Expenditures

Dept:  75  Town Parks Original Bud. Amended Bud. YTD Actual UnencBal % Bud

575.31.02  Lifeguard Contract 19,600.00 19,600.00 19,524.90 75.10 99.6
575.32.90  Banking Fees 7,412.00 7,412.00 817.13 6,594.87 11.0
575.34.10  Janitorial Cleaning 1,800.00 1,800.00 1,350.00 450.00 75.0
575.34.91  Landscaping 7,150.00 7,150.00 4,288.01 2,861.99 60.0
575.41.10  IPS Communications Fee 660.00 660.00 34.93 625.07 5.3
575.43.10  Electricity 864.00 864.00 1,343.44 -479.44 155.5
575.43.20  Water & Sewer 3,996.00 3,996.00 673.87 3,322.13 16.9
575.43.50  Dump Service 558.00 558.00 0.00 558.00 0.0
575.46.12  Maintenance Supplies 3,156.00 3,156.00 668.50 2,487.50 21.2
575.46.31  Building Maint Restrooms 800.00 800.00 742.72 57.28 92.8
575.46.40  Grounds Maintenance 1,800.00 1,800.00 2,199.94 -399.94 122.2
575.46.41  Mowing Contract 4,844.00 4,844.00 1,614.68 3,229.32 33.3
575.46.43  Tree Expense 1,000.00 1,000.00 0.00 1,000.00 0.0
575.52.10  Janitorial Supplies 1,100.00 1,100.00 0.00 1,100.00 0.0
575.53.15  Parking Lot Repairs 0.00 0.00 3,000.00 -3,000.00 0.0
575.53.20  Signs 168.00 168.00 2,280.52 -2,112.52 1357.5
575.63.03  Volleyball Court 7,000.00 7,000.00 76.58 6,923.42 1.1
575.64.01  Capital Outlay 7,214.00 7,214.00 8,403.93 -1,189.93 116.5
764.10.00  Filing Fee Clerk-Parking Ticke 0.00 0.00 30.00 -30.00 0.0

68.1

264



 
ITEM OPENED DUE DATE CLOSED REQUESTOR ASSIGNED TO 
FDOT Traffic Stanchions 2/19/2020 08/18/2021  C. Walters PW Director 
DATE DIRECTION/NOTES 
7/21/2021 Update at August RTCM 
6/16/2021 PWD will ask FDOT if subcontractor (who is restriping cross walks) can also paint stanchions 
5/19/2021 PWD update at June RTCM 
4/21/2021 Commission asked for one more update at the May RTCM 
3/17/2021 PWD gave short update that he made contact and they are on the waiting list. 

2/17/2021 PWD is getting no response from FDOT and asked the Commission to intervene and reach out to their 
contacts. 

10/21/2020 Move item to January 2021 
8/19/2020 PWD asked to push this item to October RTCM. 
6/3/2020 PW Director said Town is on the wait list. Commission pushed item to August RTCM. 
4/15/2020 April RTCM cancelled. PWS submitted request to FDOT. 
2/19/2020 Commissioner Walters said the traffic light stanchions on Ocean Avenue are in need of maintenance. 
ITEM OPENED DUE DATE CLOSED REQUESTOR ASSIGNED TO 
Research Charging Stations 11/20/20 8/18/2021  Simmons Town Manager/PWD 
DATE DIRECTION/NOTES 
7/21/2021 Update at August RTCM 
6/16/2021 Follow up on “Electrify” a company that leases charging stations 
5/19/2021 Update at June RTCM 
4/21/2021 Town Manager was given a list by Commissioner Runte to evaluate and update again at May RTCM. 
1/20/2021 Update again at April RTCM 

 
12/16/2020 

Town Manager Mascaro said there is a lot to understand about these charging stations that effect cost 
and what’s included. She needs more time to assess the options and to conduct further research before 
making a final recommendation to the Commission. Update again at January 2021 RTCM. 

265



 
11/18/2020 Commission advised to keep this item open until the stations are installed 

10/21/2020 Commission approved cost to replace breaker box and TM was asked to get vendor contacts from Comm. 
Runte 

  

8/19/2020 PWS said breaker box must be replaced at cost of $3,000-$4,000.Commission asked TM to find 
install/generic cost for Sept RTCM. 

 
7/15/2020 

TM shared that the offer from Tesla no longer available, meaning the charging stations are no longer free. 
They cost $500. TM is looking at other options and will come back in August with information. Commission 
asked TM to look for similar offers and/or grants as Tesla was offering. 

6/17/2020 TM scheduled electricians Wednesday. First parking spot for bikes and two for charging stations. Update 
July RTCM 

3/18/2020 Commission suggested TM get with Tesla to see what they may offer - including getting one at no cost. To 
be discussed again at May TCW. 

 
6/3/2020 

Commission asked TM to contact Tesla to see what they have to offer and share information at June 
RTCM. 

ITEM OPENED DUE DATE CLOSED REQUESTOR ASSIGNED TO 
Research Ocean Ave 
Beautification 

2/17/2021 8/18/2021  Commission Town Manager 

DATE DIRECTION/NOTES 
7/21/2021 Check in with Susan (include VM Barton) and update at August RTCM 
6/16/2021 Commission will no longer pursue FDOT grant but will continue research of other funding and grants.  
4/21/2021 Commission approved increasing payment to designer. Grant will be awarded in June. Update July RTCM 

3/17/2021 VM Barton researched FDOT landscape grant. Commission approved $5,000 to begin landscape design 
process with an architectural designer. Discuss at April TCW and April RTCM. 

2/17/2021 Explore grants, etc. Discuss at TCW on March 3, 2021 

266



 
 

12/2/2020 
Mayor Hoover suggested they do the necessary research and reach out to landlords and business owners, 
starting with the area east of the traffic light on both sides of the road north and south – and then meet 
again to discuss in February. Plan for workshops with business owners and PNZ involvement. 

 
12/16/2020 

Commissioner Walters requested the Town research a better microphone system, including the option of 
wireless microphones. He feels the sound quality of the current microphones is very poor. Dual timers were 
also requested by the Commission (we have one and need one more). 

ITEM OPENED DUE DATE CLOSED REQUESTOR ASSIGNED TO 
Bike Trail Options 10/21/2020 8/18/2021  Commission PW Director 
DATE DIRECTION/NOTES 
7/21/2021 PWD suggested they do Palm and Hibiscus as well. Mayor said striping may help on shortcut roads – such as 

1st. Update at August RTCM. 
5/19/2021 PW Director update at July RTCM 
4/21/2021 Public Works Director asked to push this to May RTCM for update 

3/17/2021 PWD gave update and needs to do more research. Mayor said contrast in paint is important, color isn’t. 
PWD will report back at April RTCM 

2/17/2021 Mayor Hoover would like to know the cost of putting down a proper stencil and how many of those stencils 
in total are needed. He will forward photos of a proper bike stencil to the PWD. 

12/16/2020 Mayor Hoover asked PWD Davis to test it out on Orange first and then come back to the Commission with 
results. TM Mascaro thought there may be grant money available. PWD will report back at Feb 2021 TCW. 

10/21/2020 PWD shared some idea for creating bike trail awareness on certain streets, including posted signs, stencils, 
etc. The Commission will review at the Dec. TCW discuss again at the December RTCM. 

ITEM OPENED DUE DATE CLOSED REQUESTOR ASSIGNED TO 
Stop Sign Placement 06/16/2021 8/18/2021  Commission Town Manager 
DATE DIRECTION/NOTES 
7/21/2021 Town Manager Mascaro said she spoke with Chief and they are good to go forward. Commissioner Runte 

said that Magnolia and Palm should be included 
6/16/2021 Evaluate stop sign placement on Palm and Orange Avenue 

ITEM OPENED DUE DATE CLOSED REQUESTOR ASSIGNED TO 
Research Expanding Outdoor 
Seating on Ocean Ave and 
Parking 

2/17/2021 8/18/2021  Commission Town Manager 

DATE DIRECTION/NOTES 
6/16/2021 Scheduled for discussion at the August Workshop (postponed from July) 
5/19/2021 TM will continue research and update at June RTCM 

 
4/21/2021 

Town Manager said she would bring this forward as an agenda item at the May RTCM. Commission asked 
TM to look at other municipalities that have changed their parking space size – for example City Of 
Melbourne recently changed theirs. Call around and survey. 

3/17/2021 Send to April 6 PNZ for input. Discuss at April 21 RTCM. 

267



2/17/2021 
The Commission will decide exactly what it wants at March RTCM. Start looking at the parking situation on 
Ocean Avenue and seek to understand the relationships and formulas between parking and restaurants, 
and square footage and parking. In addition, consider code changes (78-50). Then send to PNZ. 

ITEM OPENED DUE DATE CLOSED REQUESTOR ASSIGNED TO 
Schedule Annual Town Board 
Meetings With Commission 

2/17/2021 8/18/2021  Commission Town Clerk 

DATE DIRECTION/NOTES 
 

5/19/2021 
Town Clerk presented draft schedule. Commission will review and reach out to TC with input. Commission 
agreed to conduct meetings during RTCM under “Boards & Committees” section of agenda. Update at 
August RTCM 

4/21/2021 Draft a schedule and present at May RTCM 

3/03/2021 Draft a schedule to meet with each Town Board on an annual basis on the same month for each group 
each year. Bring to April RTCM for approval. 

 
 

268


	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Attach - Cliff Attorney CodeMorris Richardson CV.pdf
	Objective
	Legal Experience
	City attorney | city of west melbourne | september 2015 – present
	assistant county attorney | brevard county | june 2005 – august 2015
	special magistrate & code enforcement board attorney | city of palm bay | july 2010 – august 2015
	associate | lowndes, drosdick, doster, kantor & reed, p.a. | may 2000 – february 2002, april 2003 – may 2005 | oRLANDO
	associate | gray robinson, p.a. | february 2002 – march 2003 | MELBOURNE

	Education
	Vanderbilt university school of law | doctor of jurisprudence | may 2000
	florida institute of technology | bachelor of arts | august 1996


	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	ADPA8D8.tmp
	Town Manager Report for August 2021

	Blank Page
	ADP28E9.tmp
	Permits Issued query

	ADPB8F8.tmp
	Sheet1

	ADPB6E8.tmp
	Sheet1

	ADPB5B1.tmp
	Sheet1

	ADPE407.tmp
	Sheet1

	ADP4C96.tmp
	Sheet1




